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About the Cover

building strengths...
nurturing growth

5 resilient and majestic as the bamboo,

PNB has resolutely pursued its twin

business strategies of building on strengths, while
at the same time, nurturing growth. This twin
strategy engendered a judicious balancing act
batween long-term results and short-term gains;
between managing for the future and achieving
immediate operational and financial gains.

The focus for 2007 is to bulld on established
core competencies. However 10 ensure its steady
growth through the implementation of set programs,
the company is also firm in its resolve to shatter
perceived limitations. The goal is not just to parform,
but to axcal.

Revared Chinese poets describe bamboo
as firm and straight, relating these features to
peopla's moral characteristics such as grittiness,
uprightness, modasty and openness.

Eventually, scholars began comparing
bamboo to men of moral integrity who are called
junzi in Chinese. In Chinesa culture, junzi is
said to be the highest title any person could attain.
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» Mission and Vision

We are a leading, dynamic Filipino financial services group with a global presence
committed to delivering a whole range of quality products and services that
will create value and enrich the lives of our customers, employees,
shareholders and the communities we serve.

. Vision for 2010 and Beyond

To be the most admired financial services organization in the country in terms of:

Financial Performance - rank #1 or #2 in its businesses in terms of return on equity

Innovativenass = in products, services, distribution and the use of cutting-edge
technology

Customer Perception - the preferred financial-services provider
- customer-canterad organization with a passion for service
axcellence

Social Hesponsibility - the employer of choice, a good corporate citizen and partner
in nation-building

* Long-Term Vision - developing competitive advantage on a sustained basis by
anticipating changes in customer's preferences and in the manner
of doing business




2 0 0 6

ANNUAL REPORT

Consolidated Financial Highlights
(in Thousand Pesos, Except Per Share Amounts)
December 31
2006 2005

upiuung Results
Gross Eamings 20,172,979 17,550,484
Total Expenses 19,352,950 6,922,946
MNet Income 820,029 627,538
Financial Condition
Total Resources 243,471,065 222 658,250
Loans and Receivables - net 83,592,219 80,072,004
Deposit Liabilities 181,667,692 167,826,777
Capital Funds 24,756,275 22,909,272
Per Share
Eamings Per Share

Basic 1.42 1.08

Diluted 1.42 1.08
Book Value Per Share

With Revaluation Increment 43.01 39.80

on Land and Buildings
Without Revaluation Incrament 38.70 araz
on Land and Buildings
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Report to the Shareholders

Sustaining a Four-year Profitabliity Streak

I/?/ Bank's performance [n the year 2006 can
] /:mrrrmdunuawbpm
: and operational efficiency.

Consgider these: We were able 10 achieve an
unprecedented four years of sustained profitabiity. We
posted a 16 percent increase in net income beginning
In 2003 from P52 milion to PB20 milion. We were able
io reduce our non-parforming assets by a hefty P20
bilson, Owr bank capital s stronger than ever at P24.8
billion by end-2008. This i translated to a 20 percant

capital adequacy ratio.

We are proud to repor that for 2008, your Bank contimued
to improve its performance way beyond expectations.
The Bank took full advantags of the positive enmvironment
to solidify ts path towards profitability and growth
registering an annual net income of PE20 million, more
than 30 percant hghar than tha 2005 kevel, Without tha
provisions for impaiment and credit losses, the Bank's
actual net income for 2008 would have registered at
P3.6 billion.

A P2.6 billion or 15 percent growth in revenue notably
from lending activities, treasury and trust operations
accounied for a major portion of the Bank's improved
profitability in 2006. At the same fime, your Bank
successfully controlled costs and expanses without
sacrificing operational efficiency. With the growth in
revenue not being matched by a comesponding increase
in operating expenses, the Bank's cost-to-income ratio
notably improved from 74 percent in 2005 to a lower
BE percent in 2008,

Youwr Bank's succass ¢can be attributed to its faithiul
adherence to the thres basic objectives of its business

model-reducing non-performing assets, strengthening
core businesses and increasing profitability.

Enhanced Asset Quality

With the successful sale of P20 billion of the Bank's
non-performing assets under the Special Purpose

Vehicle Facility consisting of P18 billion in non-perfomming
loars, and P4 billion in acquired assets, your Bank's

msset quality significantly improved.

We shall press on to further
strengthen your Bank and
leverage on what we do best,
drawing much from the wealth
of our experience and the
lessons leamed from the past.

Florencia G. Tarriela
Chalrman
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Your Bank's success can be
attributed to its faithful
adherence to the three basic
objectives of its business
model- reducing non-
performing assets,
strengthening core businesses
and increasing profitability.

Omar Byron T. Mier
Vice Chairman, President and CEO

Non-performing loans were reduced to P12 billion,
resulting in an NPL ratio of only 10.8 percent by end
2006, Simultanecusly, acquired assels were frimmed
down to P25 billon as of end-2008.

Soliditying Gains in Core Business

The Bank’s deposit level incressed by eight percent to
P1E2 bllllon in 2008, mostly consisting of low-post CASA
deposits which went up by an aggregate of P14.6 billion.
As a result, your Bank successfully maintained cost of
funds at one of the lowast levela in the industry.

Wa are happy to report that the Bank maintained its
stronghold in the overseas remiitance business. Thus
far, your Bank accounted for a substantial 19 percent
of the country's OFW remittance business, reaffirming
once again, its leadership in this core business.

Your Bank further strengthened its global imprint by
establishing during tha year bwo whally-owned remittance
subsidiaries In Auatria and Spain, and two additional
branches of PNB IFL in Shatin and in Yuan Long, both

in Hong Kong, ware opanad,

Value-added service to our overseas remittance clients
was provided by your Bank as it entered imto rem|tiance
te-ups with key partners. PNB Singapore fused girength
with tha United Overseas Bank (UOB) and the
Development Bank of Singapore to make full use of
UOB's bill payments services. Meanwhila, PNB Japan
launched the Virual Access Scheme in partnership with
Mizuno (Misuha) Bank

Moreover, PNB RCI in Los Angeles, California began
offering web remittance service, allowing remitters to
sign up online and sand money from their US bank
accounts via the Imternet.

Your Bank relaunched the "Chwn a Philippine Home Loan
Program,” the only dollar-denominated curmency financing
facility availgble for overseas Fllipinos who want to
purchase regidential properties in the Philippines.

On [is lending activities, your Bank gained momentum
in expanding the currant laans portfolio of its Corporate
Banking Sector with significant gains in the previoualy
untapped growth area of Small and Medium Enterprise
{SME). This expansion was achieved while the Bank
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malntalned 18 compatitve adpe In sarvicing the needs
of local government unit market as well as big corporate
Beoounts,

Priming for the Future

In preparation for your Bank's scheduled compliance
with the global implementation of stricter capial rules
under Basel Il, PNB successfully completed its Tier 2
capital offering in 2006 where it raised P5.5 billion in
new capital that added financial muscle to the Bank's
capilal base. The Tier 2 capital offering was two times
oversubscribad indicating Investors' overwhalming
Interest in the Bank,

PNE is also on its way to being one of tha mons
technologically advanced banks in the country today by
baing the first bank in the Philippinas to install the worid-
class core banking system called FLEXCUBE®, The
systenm is the word's best-selling banking solution which
hedps run over 500 financial Institutions in 105 counires.

The new cons banking system is an end-to-end solution
designed 1o automate the antire corporate and retall
businesses of your Bank. PNB will laverage on the
technological advances and global best practicos of the
new systam [n order to bring a world-class banking
experience to all our customers.

With this new systam, PNB will also be tha first lange
Philipine bank to shift from an old and expoansive

rrainframe basad cone banking system to a flexble open
software platiorm that is cost-effective. Scalable, reliable,
and secure, the new open system platform will
significantly lower technology operating costs.

Thus, with this ploneering technology investment, we
expect to post substantial savings and further enhance
your Bank's operaiional capabilities.

Milestones and Recognition

For threa years in a row, your Bank was awarded the
highly-coveted Trusted Brand Award in the Gold Category
by Readers’ Digest, affirming the public’s recognition of
PNB as a trusted brand in the Phiippine banking Industry.

Also, for two vears in succession, the BSP choass PNB
fior the Stakehoiders Award for Outstanding Commercial
Bank on OFW remittances. The citation recognized the
integrity of PNB's data and tha accuracy and timaliness
of its reportage. Your Bank also received the Best
Coliecting Commarcial Bank for OFW Ramittances from
the 555 Balikat ng Bayan Awards and Best Paying
Commencial Bank for 555 pensionars.

Determined Drive to the Top

Loaking forward to the future and guided by the corporale
objectives to nuriure growth and build on strength, we
shall presa on to further strengthen your Bank and
leverage on what we do best, drawing much from the
woalth of our experience and the lessons learned from
the past.
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President and CEQ Owmar BEyron T, Miar recaives the
Stakwholders Awarg for Quistanding Commancial Hank
an OFW mmifiaecas from B5P Govemor and Monaisry
Boang Chavrmaen Amando M. Tefangoo

These wil fortify our capability to surmount the challenges
we are sure o face in our determined drive to becomsa
bigger, stronger and among the top three most profitable
banks of our country.

As part of our strategy in the next five years, wa shall
remain proactive in the areas of capital formation and
operational efficiencies even as we continue to put
premium on the professional growth of our own
workiorce.

We will procesd in pushing forward our sirong brand
nama and corporale image through strategic advertising
and promotions timed with ouwr product launches and
re=kaunches.

To better adapt to operational
requirements in the future, your
Bank invested in the latest
banking technology, the
Flexcube.

Equally important, we shall honor our commitment to

empower our saasoned and highly eflectve management
liam.

Lot us therefore axpress our most sincens appreciation
to the members of the PNB family - our employees, the
officers and members of the Board for each one's most
valuable contribution in our continuing breakihrough n

profitabiity and operational efficiency,

Together, we will soon realize a retum to the premier
paosition in the Philippine banking industry.

Florencia G. Tamisla

Chairman Vice
and GED
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Operational Highlights

We succeed only as we identify in
life...or in anything else, a single
overriding objective, and make all
other considerations bend to that one
objective.

- Dwight D. Eisenhower (1890 - 1969)
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ilh the success of its three-pronged

Ir‘ /)/ strategy of reducing non-parforming assets,
strengihaning cons business and Increasing profitability,
your Bank was abie to set the tons for buiiding strategies

and continually nurturing growth for the future.

RETAIL BANKING

in 2006, total deposits of the Retall Banking Sector
greatly improved pAmanily as a eault of &0 axpansion
In the lower-cost cument and savings deposh accounts
(CASA). This allowed tha Bank to maintaln s poaition
&3 one of the Industry's generator of low cost funds,

During the year, compatitlvenass was enhanced with
the Introduction of additional products designed fior
both corporate and retail customers. Thase included
the Auto Debit Arrangemeant (ADA), using the Bank's
e-Collect product. This facility provides a hassle-free
settlament arrangament to pay recuring bills faster
and with ease, Payment to billers, creditors, suppliers
and other similar service providers are drawn
automatically from a checking or savings account.
Providing a safe, reliable, accurate and confidential
moda of ssttlamant,
ADA gimplifies the
business cycles and
positions tha Bank as
critical enabler
batwean corporate
cusiomers and their
trade partners.

Another product,
Corporata a-Pay
enables the Bank's
corporate client to
soltle paymants to
multi-benaficiaries
such as government, business partners, relail
consumers and individuals,

The groundwork for branch
expansion to better serve our
clientele was laid out based on
evolving regional business growth
and ease of physical coverage.

Tha service shal be made avallable in various modes
of slaciron|c iranamission to cater io varying combort
lovels of a business or corporate antity ranging from
file transfer protocol, portal or imternet banking. With
to payments dus them via a direct credit to thair PNB
account.

Lastly, interbank Fund Transfer I8 a paymeant gateway
that allows movement of money from one deposit
account to anotier deposit account maintained at two
different banks. PNB account holders can comen|enthy
transfer funds to and from other banks without the
need io issue checks and perform over-the-counier
transactions. Interbank Fund Transfer provides
corporate customars an altemative option to manags
disbursements to its suppliers or beneflciaries who
ara unable to maintain & deposit account with tha
Bank,

Mearwhila, the groundwork for branch expansion to
better sarve our clientsls was laid out based on evolving
regional business growth and ease of physical
coverage. Branch sizing and re-classificalion worg
made io give amphasis on business potential and the
appropriate business targets.

Ralative to this, the scorecards of business managers
and relationship officers were aligned with the
distribution and volumea goals of consurmear  lbans (such
as auto, housing personal loans and credil cards), on
top of their deposit growth targets.

In the years ahead, wo will continue to leverage on
o low-cost daposh base advantags lo further axpand
and accelerate loan growth in our consurmer, small
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and medium anferprisa and governmeant sectors, This
will ba done by enhancing our distribution capability for
loans, trust and investment products, through our
extanaive branch natwork, two-thinds of which ane

deployed in key provincial cities.

Consistent with the new direction, the Bank relocated
11 branchas last year to high-growth areas to fill the
gap in the Bank's distribution network. Corollary fo this,
48 now automatad telledng machines wer also instalied
to augment cliant servicing bringing PNB's total ATM
natwork to 361 by end-20086.

INTERNATIONAL BANKING

Your Bank focusaed efforts on
reaffirming its leadership in the
remiitance business as PNB
gamerad a 19 percent sham in the
total inward remittances to the
country, rapresenting USS 2.4
bilion being entrusted to and
coursed through PNB in 2006,

in its quest to continually expand
and enhance woridwide presance,
thi: PNE Group opaned four now
offices abroad that ratsed tha total
numibar of overseas offices 1o 103 as of Decembaer 31,
2006. PNB International Finance Ltd. (PNB IFL)
asiablished two branches in Shatin and Yuen Long,
both located in Hong Kong. The PNB Vienna
Representative Office was upgraded with its replacement
by PMB Austria Financial Sarvices GmbH, a wholly-
ownied remittance subsidiary. The Bank also opened
the PMB Global Filiging Ramittancs Spain, S.A. in Madrid
to replace the PNB Madrid Representative Office and
lts Extansion Office in Barcedona

PNB Europe PLG, for its part, successfully secured
approval from Bangue da France for the establishment
of a full-service PLC Paris Branch. Likewise, PNB Europe
PLC was granied a license to offer cross-border

transactions and establish tie-ups with other Europsan
banks in the 18 European Economic Area [EEA) mamber
siates. By end-2006, PNBE Europe PLC's esiablished
te-Lips for cross-border transactions conssied of threa
EEA mamber states, namely: Ireland, Norway and
Swadan.

PMB antered into synergistic remittance tie-ups with
salacted foreign and local institutions that allowead the
Bank to introduce a number of altermative remittance
pay-out and send-out channals to further enhance its

appaal to our Oversess Flipino Workers. In Hong Kong,
PNB Remittance Center Lid (PNB RCL) entered into

an agreemant with Abenson Appliances where PNB
remitters can make direct purchases from Abenson
stores for delivery to their Philippine-based beneficlares.
PHB Singapone Bunched an intermnet remittance sandcs
with the use of the bill payment services of United
Overseas Bank and the Development Bank of
Singapore/ POS Bank of Singapore. PNB Japan, on
the other hand, partnered with Mizuno Bank to launch
& "Virtual Access Schema®,

In North America, PNB Remittance Centers, Inc. (PNB

RC) In Los Angelas began offering its Web Remittance
Service whers remitters sign up online and send money




from their US bank accounts via the Intarnet. PNB
Remittance Company Canada (PNB RCC) aside from
similarly launching its own Intermet and phone banking
sanices, introduced a Bll Payment Schame that allows
remittars o use any Canadian bank ATM to fund their
ramittance. PNB RCC also launched a debit facility
arrangamant whena remitters’ Canadian bank accounts
can be debited dirsctly.

PINB Mew York stirted two acddiona! moses on remithng
funds Lsing “Standing Payment Remittance Instructions™
aither through BaiPay checks or fax. Furthermore, in fing
with a campalgn of the Faderal Resarve Board 1o mathate
USA-based racipients of fedaral benefits 1o use the diract

deposit systom, PNB Now York registord as a financial
institution pariner of GoDirect.

CORPORATE BANKING

The year 2008 provided the first real opportunity for the
Bank to give more emphasis to targating growth for its
business loan portiolio by positioning s resources o
embark on a more aggressive lending stralegy, For betier
focus and control, business centers (initlally thosa
handling large corporate accounts) wene recrganized in
onder to saegragate the credit function from the marketing
function for enhanced delivery systems.

In addition to blg corporate accounts, tha secior
continued to nurture its long-established relationship
with LGUs and GOCC accounts. However, [t was in the
relatively untapped small and medium enterprise [SME)
sector whera PNB's market penetration galned
momanturm. Significant growth prospects on the SME
market started 10 be realized towards the end of the
year. Also notewortfty an the varous Commarcial Landing
Centers organized for both Metro Mania and provincial
locations,

The Bank successiully acted as co-lead in a8 mamber of

major loan syndications including, among other accounts,
the P12.0 billon Meralco and US3$65.0 million Luzon

Hydro syndications. The Bank also participated in the
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To ensure proper support for the
newly-reorganized sector, the
Bank's credit policies were
amended making these more
attuned to current market trends.

Manila Morth Tollway termn lgan refinancing and the
Petron Corporation term loan,

To ensure proper support for the newly-recrganized
sactor, the Bank's credit policies wers amended making

these more attuned to cument market trends. Approving
authorities were decentralized, a rsk-adjusted pricing
was implemented, and desired industry target markets
werg more clearly identified. Loan products were
improved and repackaged to make thess mors
competitive in the industry, New corporate banking
products wera introduced to stimulate loan growth
such as Suppilers' Financing, Structured Trade
Financing/Guarantees and LGU Contractor Financing.
Markating afforts wers intensifled through branch
referrals, product briefings and participation in trade
fairs. Corporata Banking is also packaging loans for
key manning agencies to support the Bank's thrust
to regain the fop position in the OFW remittance
business.

By end-2006, Corporate Banking's current loan
portfolio grew by 23.3% with well diversified loan mix
among LGLs, big corporate actounts and SMEs. With
an P8.0 billion growth in curment loans, the group's
loan portiolio mare actively contributed to tha Bank's
increased profitability during the year despite a scanario
of substantial reduction in Intorest rates.

Trading operations continued 1o generate substantial
revenuas for the Bank resulting from higher investrment
portfolio levels in both the domestic and foreign
securities markal. The significant drop in the yiolds
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of Philippine fixed income instruments during 2006
ensbled your Bank to strategize and reglize frading
gaina in both markets that strengthensd overall
profitability performance,

Treasury continuad to pursus its bulld-up of competent
professional traders / officers for an expanded reach,
hﬂﬂﬁyhmmhlhhﬂmﬂlmmd
gales capabilities as well. These are all in line with the
objective of providing aftemative investment products’
instruments not only 1o our customers natomaids but
glgo to those overseas as may be allowed by the
periinent regulations in their country of work or
residancs,

CONSUMER FINANCE

This was another growth
amrea for your Bank n 2008

as direct marketing efioris
led fo the Consumer Loans
portiolio axpanding by 22%
during the year, mainly
accountad for by a 26%
growth in housing loans and a
38% increase in auio loans that
were made mone attractive with
the implementation of incentive
programs. The Bank also
lnunched the Surs Home Flex|
Loan program which allows
housing loan borrowers to avail of
sdditional loans for personal

consumplion purposes.

Consumer Finance further enhanced
the features and expanded the coverage of the Contract
1o Sall Financing Schema to include regional / provincial
real estate developers.

As part of the Bank's thrust to provide the widest range
of banking and financial services o oversess Filipinos,
the Bank relaunched the Own a Philippine Home Loan

12

facity available for cverseas Fllipinos desirdng to acquire
residential properties in the Philippines. The Global
Filipino Auto Loan program was launched to enable
oversaas Filipinos to purchase automotive wehicles for
the use of their loved ones in the Philippines.

To further improve customer service and expand its
porifiolio, Consumer Financea's organizational structure
was streamlined to achieve faster turn-around time,
of customer conceams,

TRUST

Trust Banking Group (TBG) posted a 168.8%: growth in
Met Income in 2008 versus 2005, To sustain business
volume and profitabliity during the year, TBG relled
substantially on transactions of its Special Government
Escrow Accounts and the Trusteeship of the bond
flotations of varous Local Government Uinits (LGLs).

TBG continued to offer its Unit investmant Trust Funds
(UIMFs) both domestically and overseas to gain wide
acceptance. By yearend 2008, OFWs abroad and
Imvestors through the PNB branches jointly accounted
for more than half of the Bank's outstanding LNTF
imestments.

For its support system, TBG completed implemeniation
in 2008 of the second phase of the Total Accounting




2006 witnessed a shared
awareness that each one has an
important contribution in building
strengths, both personal and as
part of the PNB corporate family
to nurture the Bank's successful
growth in the years to come.

and Porifelio Management Systam (TAPS) to expand

covarage to all Trust accounts thus enhancing monlioring
of all trust transactions as wedl as delivery of varlous
trust sarvices.

An integral part of PNB's continuing efforts toward
improved profitability Is the disposal of non-performing
loans (MPL) that place a heavy drag on the Bank's eaming
capabllities. In 2008, the Bank successiully reduced s

Inventory of Mon-Performing Loans through a P15.3
bilicn sale under the Special Purpose Vehicla Law.

Together with other NPL accounts that were either
collacted, restructured or subjected o the final option
of foreclosure, the Bank's total NPL level was brought
down to a manageable P12.1 billion by end 2008 from
a high of P45.0 billion in 2003, With NPL ratio substantially
reduced to only 10.8%, Remedial Management is
pursuing further significant improvements (n the Bank's
NPL ratio with prospects for additional sales under the
Special Purpose Vishicla Law.

ASSET MANAGEMENT

“iour Bank continues o address the aggressive dispossal
of acquirad assets. A total of 1,481 acquirad assets with
an aggregate book value of P5.02 bilion were soid in
2006, These included P4.0 bilion, which wene part of
the successful P20 bilicn sale of the Bank's non-
parforming assets under the Spec|al Purpose Vehicle
(SPV) Law.
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To improve focus on tha disposal of the varety of acquired
assois, Asset Managemant segregated thoem into four
diffarent assel pools. Account handling has thus bean
customized for: traditional channels (negotiated sales,
auction, biddings and cross selling), small assets, joint
vantures and SPY sales.

During the year, broker accraditation incraased by 48%.,
This led 1o broker-retated transactions registering new
higha with a 67% increase from 2005.

To expedite the disposal of foreciosed assets, further
innovations wens introduced such as in outsourcing for
fithe consolidation and writ-of-possession.

The yvear also saw the near-completion of the sactor's
information technology support comprisad of centralized,
automated data processing managemant system. This
would expedite disposal of the acquired assets and
ensure proper asset adminkstration with accurate and
updated information.

2006 witnassad a shanad awaraneas that each ona has
an important contribution in bulkding strengths, both
personal and as part of the PMB corporata family to
nurture the Bank's successful growth in the years to
coma, The retum o its premiers position in the Philippine
banking industry is not far from reality.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

aitended to s corporate social responsiblity
Prograrms. During the year, the Bank forped a partnenship
with Gawad Kalinga 1o provide property donations,
financial assistance and human resources 1o help bulld
Gawad Kalinga communities in salact arsas with PNB
branch officea. In addition, PNB employees contributed
in thair own humble way to assist typhoon Raming
victims through savings collected from the Bank's
Christmas Party budget.
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® Statement of Management’s Responsibility

for Financial Statements o

The management of Philippine National Bank and Subsidiaries (the Group) and of Philippine National Bank
(the Parent Company] is responsible for all information and representations comained in the consolidaned
financial statements of the Group and the Parenl Company financial stalements which comprise the
staternents of condition as at December 31, 2006 and 2003 and the statements of income, statements of

in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three vears in the period ended
December 31, 2006. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS), except for the deferral of losges on sale of nonperforming assets (NPAs) to
special purpase vehicles (SPYs) in 2004, 2005 and 2006 and the non-consolidation of the SPV that
aoquired the NPAs sokd in 2006 and reflect amowunts thal ane bazed on the best estimates and informed

Judgment of management with an appropriale consideration to materiakiy.

In this regard, manggement maintaing & system of accounting and reporting which provides for the necessary
internal controls to ensure that transactions are properly authorized and recorded, assets are safeguarded
against unauthorized use or disposition and linbilities are recognized. The management likewise discloses 1o
the Group's and Parent Company’s audit committee and o its extermal anditor: (i) all significant deficiencies
in the design or operation of intemal controls that could adversely affect its ability 10 record, process, and
repart fnancial data; (ii) material weaknesses in the imternal controls; and (i) any frasd that involves
management of other employees who exercise significant roles in intemal contrals,

The Board of Directors reviews the aforementioned financial statements before such statements are approved
and submitied to the stockholders,

SyCip, Gorres, Velayo and Co., the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders, has andited the
financial statements of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing and has expressed its opinion on the faimess of presentation upon completion of such audit, in its
report to the Board of Directors and stockholders,

Aoy,
FLORENCIA G. T OMAR T. MIFR
Chairman of the Board President & Chief ive Cificer

WL g
UANG
Executive Vice President & Chief Fmancial Officer

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to beforeMieftid 2 200y of April 2007 affiants exhibiting 10 me
their Community Tax Cerlificates, as follows;

Names CTC No, Drate of lssue

Florencia G. Turricla 07437377 Januory 10, 2007 Manila

Crmiar Byron T. Micr 15130241 Janusary 17, 2007 Makati City

Carmen G. Huang 17662938 January 23, 2007 Makgti City
Doc. Mo,

nﬂ"ﬁ
Page No, -I“ﬂl I
Dok No. Ry R Pd Tt A
Series of 2007 s B P, Bot B! duiop Gl
i Mg, £3451

PO s, DGTCEA/1 1) Fonty Clly
2R B50I77/13 2503 Manas 1)
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TR Apuli Aveniie Fac IB3E| BES-0BT2
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SEC Adcriiatian Mo, DO1I-FR-)

B Independent Auditors’ Report @

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Philippine National Bank

PMB Financial Center

President Diosdado Macapagal Boubevard
Pazay City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Philippine National Bank amd
Subsidiaries (the Ciroup) and the parent compuny financial stitements of Philippine National Bank (the
Parent Company ), which comprise the statements of condition as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and
the staements of income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of 1he
three years in the period ended Decemnber 31, 2006, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory noles.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsihle for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). Thas responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant 1o the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors” Responsibility

D responsibility ix o express an opinlon on these Anancial statements hased on our madits. We
conducted our auding in accordance with Plulippine Standards on Auditing, These standards reguire
that we comply with ethical requiremenis and plan and perform the audit t0 obdain reasonable
asstrance whether the financial stafements are free from material missistement.

An audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the anounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selecied depend on the auditor’s judgment, incleding the
wsessment of the risks of material misstatement of the linancial statements, whether due (o fraud or
error, Inmaking those risk assessments, the audilor considers intemal conirol relevani to the Group’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order o design audit procedures that ane
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Grroup®s internal controls, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of pecounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtmmed is sufficient and appropriale o provide a basis for
our audit opimion.

SOV 0 O s roprdeee Jusa fine o Evsi & Vs iladai 1 T
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Opinion

As discussed in Notes 9 and 10 10 the financial statements, to take advantage of incentives under
Republic Act (RA) No. 9182, Tie Special Purpose Vehicle Aer of 2002, and at the same time improve
its chances of recovering from its non-performing assets (NPA), the Parent Company sold cenain
NPA to special purpose vehicle (SPV) companies. In accordance with regulatory accounting policies
prescribed by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) for banks and financial instingions availing of the
provisions of RA No. 9182, losses amounting to 1.9 billion in 2006, B4.3 billon in 2005 and

P1.1 billion in 2004 from the sake of the NPA 10 the SPV companies, representing the allowance for
impainment losses specifically provided for the NPA but released to cover ather impairment losses of
the Parent Comipany, were defermed and are being amortized over a ten-year period. As of January 1,
2005, upon adoption of Philippine Accounting Standards 39, the Parent Company did not set up the
required allowance for impairment losses on the NPA sold in 2005,

Also, as discussed in Note 10, the required additional allowance as of December 31, 2006 on the NPA
to he sold in 2007 amounting to F1.3 billlon was not recognized by the Parent Company since it
imtends to defer the loss on such sale as allowed by BSP. Had the 2006 and 2004 impaimment losses
been charged against operations and the allowance for impainment bosses on the sold NPA in 2005
been set up as of January 1, 2005 as required by PFRS, deferred charges and equity would have
decreased by P6.9 billion and PS.2 billion, respectively, and allowance for credit losses would have
increased by P1.3 billion as of December 31, 2006, deferred charges and equity would have decreased
by 5.2 hillion as of December 31, 2008, and the 2006 and 2004 net income would have decreased by
P3.2 billion and PLI billion, respectively, and 2005 net income would have increased by

Pl 24.8 million.

The sale of the NPA 1o the SPV in 2006 is considerad as o true sale under RA No. 9182 which
qualified for derecognition under BSP regulatory repoming rules, However, PFRS requires that the
accounts of the SPV that acquired the NPA of the Parent Company in 2006 should be consolidated
into the Group's accounts. Had the accounts of the SPV been consoelidated into the Group's accounts,
total assets and minority intercst in equity of consolidated entitics would have increased by

P20.0 million.

In 2004, the Parent Company received zero-coupon notes as part of the consideration for the non-
perfoming loans sold. As of December 31, 2004, the loss of B1.9 billion representing the difference
between the present value and the carrving valve of these rero-coupon noles was defermed as allowed
by HSP. PFRS requires that such difference be trented as loss and charged to current operations, Had
such loss been recognized in 2004, equity as of December 31, 2004 would have decreased by

1.9 billion. Met income in 2004 would have decreased by B1.92 hillion. On Janugry 1, 2003, the

Parent Company recognized the loss on the sero-coupon notes as a direet charge to deficit.
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It our opinion, the fnancial stiatements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Group and of the Parent Company as of December 31, 2006 and 2003, and their financial
performance wnd their cush Bows for cach of the three yeurs in the period ended December 31, 2006 in
accordance with PFRS, except for the efTects on the 2006 and 2005 financial statements of not
recognizing the losses on the NPA sald or to be sald to SPV companies as discussed in the sixth and
seventh paragraphs, the effects in the 2006 consolidated fnancial statements of nol consolidating the
accounts of the SPV as discugsed in the eighth paragraph, and the éffects on the 2004 financial
statements of not recognizing the loss on the zero-coupon notes received from the sale of NPL as
discussed in the ninth paragraph.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO,

Wilsrn ¢ Jan

Wilzon PP, Tan

Partner

CPA Certificate No. Th737

SEC Accreditation Mo, 0100-AR-1

Tax [dentification No, |02-098-460

PTR No. 0267394, January 2, 2007, Malkat City

March 23, 2007
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PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES

Statements of Condition o
{in Theusand Posoe)

Comsalidnted Parenl Company
ber 31
2000 2008 1000 2008
ASKETS
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ote 17) 15,700,000 12,300, [0 5,70, D 1230, 0
Securiiies wl Fair Vilse Threegh Profil ar Lois
Nt ) 1137835 1323501 119037 1L29T.213
Lanns and Recelvabbe itole ) 81591219 Sl T2 Bl 465,287 TR
Hecelvables frem Special Parpme Viebble
(ot 109 15601074 = L361.074 =
Avaitable-Tor-Sabe Imvesimwonis (Moses 11 and 17) AZEI4EI0 HIZ4L035 40322339 SEOE, 8T
Held-ta-Minturity Imvestments (Mot 1) b.BEaSed JI66.5IT 1,400,044 A0 085
Froperty und Eguipanent
Al oogt (e 12) THLIAI TEREIT 6639016 TO343
Al appralsed valoe (Motes 11) 15846319 I 4280365 15846810 14356301
Ievestasénis in Smbsldiaries and on Asscluie
(Mesties 2 sl 13) Bi1.R38 R4 1Tl 5439 52 £.400,5901
Imvewtment Properties (Motes 2. 14 and 24) 14881076 265477607 14,303,748 26, Ta3.021
Other Assets (Note 15) LLOBASIL  BI94331  1L39A18)  BAM2RI4
TOTAL ASSETS 71 Fa2a 50 E2d 95 Pl 4
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
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Comtolidated Parent Company
lezember 31
Tk JiiA TiMin k1 [1k]
EQUITY ATTRIBUTARLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY
Capatal pock (Motes 2 and 229 FIZ920HAT PI1SIORET F21929 847 21819 K37
Copital paid ie exces of par value (Moe 2) 48745 545,745 45748 543,748
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PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES

B Statements of Income o
{In Thousand Pesos, Except Eamings Per Shane Amaunts)

Cangolidated Parim) Campany
Wenry Enleil Devember 31
L L] L] Jon4 o R
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PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES
® Statements of Cash Flows o

in Thousand Pesos)
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Consslidsted Pareni Company
Vi Ended Diecomber 31
e, 2003 2004 0 25 2
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PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES
B Notes to Financial Statements o

1. Corporate Information

Philippine National Bank {the Parent Company) was incorporated in 1916 and started commercial
operations that same year. [ts principal place of business is at PNB Financial Center, President
Diosdado Macapsgal Boulevard, Pasay City. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Parent
Company is owned 77.43% by the Lucio Tan Group (LTG) and 12.53% by the MNational
Giovernment (NG, The remaining 10.04% is owned by the public.

The Parent Company provides a full range of banking and other financial services o corporate,
middle-market and retail customers, the NG, local government units {LGUs) and government-
owned and controlled corporations (GOCCs) and various government agencies. The Parent
Company’s principal commercial banking activities include deposit-taking, lending, bills
discounting, foreign exchange dealing, investment banking, fund transfers/remittance servicing
and a full range of retail banking and trust services through its 324 domesiic and 30 oversens
branches and offices in 2006 and 324 domestic and 33 overseas branches and offices in 2005, The
Parent Company s intermational subsidiaries have a network of 73 and 69 offices in 2006 and
2005, respectively, in key cities of the United States of America (USA), Canada, Western Europe,
Middle East and Asia.

The subsidiaries are engaged in a number of diversified financial and related businesses such as
remittance servicing, non-life insurance, merchant banking, lcasing, stock brokerage, forcign
exchange trading and/or related services while an associate is engaged in the life-insurance
business,

The aceompanying Anancial statements of the Parent Company and 15 subsidiaries (the Group)
and of the Parent Company were authorized for issue by the Parent Company’s board of directors
(BODY) on March 23, 2007.

2. Restructuring and Rehabilitation

The Parent Company is currently operating under a rehahilitation program pursuant to the
Memorandum of Apreement (MOA) signed by the Republic of the Philippines, the Philippine
Deposit Insurance Corporation (PINC) and the LT on May 3, 2002,

Pursuant fo the MOA, the following measures hove been implemented:
(1) Capital Restructuring
i. The Parent Company instituted a capital reduction exercise as of December 31, 2001,
reducing the par value of its common shares from B0 per share to B40 per share, resulting
in a total capital reduction of P7.6 billion. This resulted in a decrease in the authorized

capital stock of the Parent Company from B50.0 billion divided into 833,333,334 common
shares to B33.3 hillion divided into 833,333 334 common shares. The reduction in par
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value and the amendment to the articles of incorporation of the Parent Company were
approved by the BOD of the Parent Company on May 17, 2002 and by the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on July 23, 2002,

i. O May 16, 2002, the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas {BSP) approved the following:
() booking of an appraisal increment of P431.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2001 on properties and recognition of the same for the purpose of determining the Parent
Company's capital adequacy ratio; and () beoking of translation adjsstment of
#1.6 billion for the year ended Decernber 31, 2001 representing the increase in peso value
of the Parent Company’s investment in foreign subsidiaries, for the purpose of the
Rehabilitation Plan and as an exception to existing BSP regulations, provided that the
sarme shall be excluded for dividend distribution purposes.

iil. The transiation adjustment of #1.6 billion was applied 1o eliminate the Parent Company’s
remaining deficit of P13 billion as of December 31, 2001, afler applying U tial
reduction in par value amounting 1o B7.6 billion 25 a resuli of the capital reduction
exercise. This corpornte act was approved by the SEC on November 7, 2002, subject o
the following conditions: (a) the remaining translation adjustment of B3 10,7 million as of
December 31, 2000 (shown in the statement of condition as part of Capital Paid in Excess
af Par Value) will not, without the prior spproval of the SEC, be used for or applied
towards any provisions for losses thal may be incurred in the future; and {b) for purposes
of declaration of dividends, any future surplus account of the Parent Company shall be
restricted to the extent of the deficit wiped out by the translation adjustment.

The foregoing capital resiruciuring measures were aimed at reducing the deficil in the
equity of the Parent Company which amounied to PE9 billien as of December 31, 2001,

The Parent Company's deficit before and afier the quasi-reorganization tollows

{in thousand pesos):
Peficit before the quasi-reorganization (balance ot

December 31, 2001) PR.ETT.004
Reduction in par value during the vear (7,361,409
Application of imnslation adjustment 1o deficit on

quasi-reofEanization (1.626.430)
Peficit after the quasi-rearngan|zaton [310,745)
Transfer to capital paid in excess of par value B310.745

{2} Debi-to-Equity Conversion

I 2002, converiible prelemed shares were issued to the PDIC as payment for the P7.8 billion
bomrowed by the Parent Company from the PRIC. This increased (i) the authorized capital
stock of the Parent Company to B50.0 billion consisting of 1,054,824,557 common shares
with o par value of P40 each and 195,175,444 conventible preferred shares with a par value of
P40 cach and (i) the issucd capital stock of the Parent Company to B22.9 billion ¢onsisting of
378,070,472 common shares with a par value of B4 cach and 195,175,444 convertible
prefierred shares with a par value of P40 gach.
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(30 Assignment of Certamn Government Accounts to the PDIC

On July 30, 2002, the Purent Company and the PDIC signed an agreement whereby the Parent
Company transferred and conveved by wav of “dacion en pagoe™, or pavment in kind, its righis
and interests to the loans of the NG, certain LGUs, certain GOCCs and various govemment
agenvies ind certiin debt securities issued by various government entities (the Government
accounts), o the PDIC. The “docion en pago” arrangement reduced the Parem Company's
outstanding obligations arizing from the financial assistance given to the Parent Company by
the BSP and the PDIC. The acerual of inerest incurred by the Parent Company on the
povernmen! accounts and on the PLOLO billion pavable o the PDIC ceazed on October 1, 2001,

Afler the completion of the corporate actions and rehabilitation set out above {especially, the
conversion of debt 1o equity and the “dacion en pago™ arrangement ), the balance of the Parent
Company’s outstanding obligations to the PIXIC was P6.1 billion as of December 31, 2002, This
balance wirs restruciured inte a term loan of 10 years, with interest payable at 91-day treasury bill
(T-bill) rate plus 1.00% (Note 18).

In line with the rehabilitation program of the Parent Company as approved under Monetary Board
(MB) Resolution No, 626 dated April 30, 2003, the Parent Company and the BST entered into o
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) on September 16, 2003, Pursiant to the MOU, the Parent
Company shall comply to the full extent of its capability, with the following directives of MB
Resolution No. 649, among others:

(1) Maintain a strong manggement leam supported by competent stall;

{2) Improve the Parent Company™s past due ratio;

(3) Sell the PNB Financial Center;

(4) Dispose real and other propemties owned or acquired (incheded under invesiment properties);
and

(5) Comply with certain prescribed limits.

. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying finoneial statements have been prepared on a historical oot basis excepl for
securities at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) including derivative financial instruments,
available-for-sale (AFS) investments and land and building that have been measured o fair value.
The financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the Pareat Company's functional and
presentation currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand pesos (PO0D) except
when viherwise imdicaled.

The financial statements of the Parent Company reflect the accounts maintained in the Regular
Banking Unit {RBU) and Foreign Currency Dieposit Unit (FCDU). For financial reporting
purposes, FUDL accounts and foreign currency-denominated accounts in the RBLU are translated
into their equivalents in Philippine pesos (sce related policy on Foreign Cumrency Translation).
The financial statements individually prepaned for these units are combined and inter-unit accounts
are climinated,
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Statgment of Compliance

The financial statements of the Group and of the Parent Company have been prepared in
compliance with Philippine Financial Reponting Standards { PFRS), except for the accounting for
losses on sale of nonperforming loans (NPLS) 10 special purposes vehicles (SPVs) as discussed in
Mote 9 and the non-consolidation of the SV as discussed in Note 10

Basis of Consohdation
The consalidmed Mnancial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company and
the following wholly-owned and majoritv-owned subsidiaries:

Effective
Coumiry af Perceniage
Subsidiary Indusiry Incorparaiben  of Omnership
FHE Capital and Investment Compomtion
(FNE Capetal] Finangial Markeis Fhilippines LITRELL
FME Forex, Inc. =dlo s « gt = Q0.0
FME Holdings Corpantien (PNE Haldings) - da - - s - LITEELT
PMB Securitics, Ine. Socunithes Beokerage - ik - (LIREL L]
FHE Corporation - G Finaneaal dlarkes Camin L1RELL]
FHE Intermatsonal |nvestments Conporatson
(PRELC) -ila - LiSA (LINELL]
PHE Feope PLE « i« Linited Kingdom 110U
FHE Infermational Finance Limied (FRE [FL) o« Homg Kong LR
PFMB Ghobal Filkpino Remlitanos Spain
(PNE GIRS) .l s Spain [
FME Austria Financisl Services GmibhH
{PAE Anistres) - il - Auslria (EHRLLL]
PAE Haby SpA « i Ialy 1000
PHE Reminance Cemer, Lud Servioes Hiomg Kang 1010 0
Tanzande Ivedments {SPY-ANCY, Ine. Onhers I"hilippimes [LINEL]
Tau Portfiolio lmvestments (SPY-AMC], Inc. = i« o gy = [LINLLT]
Omicron Awsel Pedfolio (SPY-AMC), Ine, =dla - = iy = (LUEELL
Japan = PNE Leswing s Finance Corporat|an
(J=pam - FNE Lesing) Fineneis| Markeis == LT

The financial statemenis of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting vear as the Parent
Company using consistent accounting policies. All significant intra-group balances, iransactions,
income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from inira-group iransactions are eliminaned
in full in the consolidation.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
Control is achieved where the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an enlily 30 a3 10 oblain benefits from its activities, Consolidation of subsidianes ceases when
control 15 transferred out of the Group or Parent Company. The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the yeur are included in the consolidated staternent of incomse lrom the dute of
acquisition or up o the date of dispesal, as appropriate.
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In 2006, the Parent Company sold Opal Fortfolio Investments (SPY AMC), Inc. (OPIT) and certain
nonperforming assets (NPA)} to Golden Dragon Star Equities, Ine. under a transaction that
qualified, and was approved by the BSP, os a legal true sale (see Note 10). OPH will hold the
NPA sold by the Parent Company. Under Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) No. 12,
Consolidation of Special Purpose Entity, the consolidated financial stitements should include the
accounis of OPIL However, no consolidation was made a5 of December 31, 2006,

The financial statements of QP were included in the December 31, 2005 and 2004 consolidated
Tinancial statements,

Minority Interests

Minorily imtérests représent the portion of profit or loss and the net assets not beld by the Group
and arc presented scparaicly in the consolidsted statement of income and within equity in the
consolidated statement of condition, separately from equity attributable to the Parent Company.
Acquisitions of manarity interests ane accounted for using the entity concept method, whereby the
difference between the consideration and the book value of the share of the net assets acquired is
recognized as an equity transaction.

Changes in Accounting Policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial years excepl as
follows:

Amendments to PFREs and Plalippine Interpretation effective in 2006

Thee Group has adopted the following amendments 10 PFRS and Philippine [interpretation during
the perind. Adoption of these revised stundards and interpretations did nol have any significant
effect on the Group except for the additional disclosures in the financial statements.

Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 19 Amendment - Employee Benefits

PAS 21 Amendmens - The Effects af Changes in Forelgn Exchange Rates

PAS 39 Amendments « Financlal nsiruments. Recogrition and Measurement

Philippine Imerpretation IFRIC - 4, Determining Whether an Arrangement Containg a Lease

Fhﬂ{aﬂ'ufnmmimﬂwﬁ'dnbpﬁﬂ
The Group hag also early adopted Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9, Reassesoment af Embedded
Derivatives.

The principal effects of these changes, if any, are as follows:

PAS 19, Employee Benefiis
Amendmrent for ectuarial goins and fosxes, group plany and discfosnres. As of Junuary 1, 2006,
the Group adopied the amendments to PAS 19, As a resull, additional discloswres in the finaneial
statements are made, starting in 2006, to provide information about trends in the assets and
liabilities in the defined benefit plans and the assumptions underlying the components of the
defined benefit cost. This amendment has no recognition or measurement impact, as the Group
$MHHNWMM'WNMWE actuarial gains and losses outside of the statement
income.
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PAS 21. The Effects of Chariges in Foreipn Exchanpe Rates

Amendment for net imvestaent in a forcign operation. As of January 1, 2006, the Group adopied
the amendments to PAS 21. As a result, all exchange differences arising from s monctary item
that forms part of the Group™s nétl investmwenl i a foreign operation are recognized in a separale
component of equity in the financial statements regardiess of the camrency in which the monetary
item is denominuted. This amendment has no signiGcant impact on the financial statements,

PAS 39, Financial festriomenix: Recognifion and Measurentend

Amendment for ffinancial guarantee confracts, This amended the scope of PAS 39 to require
financial guariniee contracts that are nol considered 1o be insurance contracts 10 be pecognized
imitially at fair valoe and to be remeasured at the higher of the amount determined in accordance
with PAS 37, Provisions, Contingend Liabilitics and Contingent Assets, and the amount initislly
recopmized kess, when appropriste, cumulative amoniization recognized in accordance with

PAS 18, Reverme. This amendment has no significant impact on the financial statements.

Amendment for cash flow hedge acconmting of forecass infra-group transactions, This amended
PAS 39 to permit the foreign cumency risk of a highly probable intra-group forecast transaction to
qualify as the hedgad item in a cash flow hedge, provided that the transaction is denominated in a
curmency other than the functional currency of the entity entering into that transaction and that the
forcign currency risk will affect the consolidated statement of income. As the Group currently has
no such trangachions, the amendment did not have any significant effect on the financial
Stalemenis,

Amendment for the fair velue option. This amended PAS 39 1o restrict the use of the option (o
designate any financial asset or any financial liability o be measured at FYPL. The Group has
reassessed is existing FVPL. including documentation of the specilic conditions allowing the
continied FVYPL classification of such investments, The Group has complied with the
requirements of this amendment.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC - 4, Determining Whether an Arvangemens Contalng o Lease
This Interpretation provides guidance in determining whether srrangements contain a lease to
which lease accounting must be applied. This Interpretation has ne significant impact on the
financial statements.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC - 9, Reassessimend of Embedded Derivalives

This Interpretation becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after June 1, 2006, This
Interpretation establishes that the date to assess the existence of an embedded derivative is the date
an entily st becomes a party 1o the contricl, with ressessment only il there is a change to the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows, The Group assessed that adoption of this
Interpretation has no significant impact on the finoncial statements.

On January 1, 2008, the Group adopted PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Disclosure ad
Presentovion and PAS 39, Financial Instruments:  Recognition and Measurement, Tor which the
Philippine SEC has allowed 1w be applied from January |, 2005, Accordingly, the comparative
figures for the year ended December 31, 2004 were not restaled to reflect the adjustments of the
adoplion of these standards. The tolal cumulstive effect of adopling these standards amounting to
2.1 billion, however, was charged agninst deficit as of January 1, 2005, The net effect of the
reclassification from other financial assets to *AFS investments” and vice versa, on *Met unrealized
gain on AFS investments' amounted to P19.9 million as of January 1, 2005,

HI1LIPPIMNE N ATI ONAL B AN K
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Foreign Currency Translation
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of cach entity ane measured using that functional currency.

Tramsactions and bolances

The books of accounts of the RBU are maintained in Philippine pesos, while those of the FCDU
are maintaned m United Sutes (US) dollers. For muscial reponting purposes, the monelary assels
and lighilities of the FCDU and the foreign currency-denominated monctary assets and lishilities
i the RBU ure translated in Phillppine pesos based on the Philippine Dealing System (PDS)
closing rate prevailing at end of the year and for foreign currency-denominated income and
expenses, at the PDS weighted average rate (PDSWAR) for the year, Foreign exchange
differences arising from restatemnents of foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities are
credited 1o or charged against operations in the year in which the rates change. Non-monetary
itcms that ere measured in terms of historical cost in a forcign currency arc translated using the
exchange rates as al the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
mud:lmm currency arg translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined.

Group companics

As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilitics of overseas subsidiaries are translated into the
Parent Company™s preseniation currency (ihe Philippine peso) at the rate of exchange ruling ot the
statement of condition dote, and their income and expenses are transiated ot the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising on translation are taken directly to a
separate component of equity in the consolidated statement of condition. On disposal of a foreign
entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognized in equity relating 1o the particulsr foreign
operution is rocognized in the consolidated sttement of income.

Purchaszes or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on settlement date.
Derivatives ore recognized on trade date basis (i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell), Deposits, amounts dug 1o banks and customers and loans are recognized when cash is
received by the Group or advanced to the borrowers. For PNB Securities, Inc., securitics
transactions are recorded on o trade date buasis,

Mnitial recognition of financial instruments

All financial nssets are initinlly recognized a1 fair value, Except for securities at FVPL, the initial
measurement of financial assets and labilites includes tmnsaction costs. The Group classifies is
financial assets in the following categories: securities at FVPL, held-to-maturity (HTM)
investments, AFS investments, and loans and receivables. Financial liabilities are classified into
securities at FVPL and other financial liabilities (st amontized cost). The classification depends on
the purpose for which the investments were acquired and whether they are quoted in an active
market. Management determimes the classification of its investments @ initial recognition and,
where allowed and approprise, re-cvalumes such designation a1 every reponing date.
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Determincrion of fale volve

The laar value for fmancial instruments traded in active markets ot the statement of condition date
is based on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and
ask price for short positions), without any deduction for ransaction costs. When current bid and
asking prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaciion provides evidence of the
current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances
since the time of the tronsactlon.

For all other fimancial instrumenis not listed inan acfive market, the fir value iz determined by
using approprate valustion methodologies. Valustion methodologies include net present value
techiigues, companson o similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, oplion
pricing modets, and other relevant valuation models,

Day I profir
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different to the fair value from other
observable current markel trunsactions in the same mstrument or based on a valuation technigue

whose variables include only data from observable market. the Group recognizes the difference
hetween the ransaction price and Fair value {3 Day 1 profit) in the statement of income in " Trading
and nvestment secunties gains - net’. In cases where data 15 not observahble, the difference
between the transaction price and model value i only recognized in the statement of income when
the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the
Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1" profit amoumni.

Devivatives recorded af FVPL

The Parent Company and some of 1is subsidianes sre counlerparties o denivalive contracts, such
as curmency forwards, curmency swaps, and interest rate swaps. These derivatives are entered into
0% 8 service o customers and ms a means of reducing or managing their respective forgign
exchange and interest rate exposures, a5 well as for trading purposes. Such derivative linancial
instrumenis are initially recorded at fair value on the date at which the derivative coniract is
entered into and are subsequenthy remeasured at fair value. Any gains or losses ansing from
chonges in fair values of derivatives (excepl those pecounted for as aecounting hedees) are faken
direcily to the statement of income and are included in *Trading and investment securitics gains -
net’. Derivatives are carmied as assets when the fair value is positive and as Habilities when the
fair value is negotive,

For the purpose of hedge accountimg, hedges are classified primarily as either: aj a hedpge of the
fair value of an asset, liability or a firm commitment (fair valoe hedge); or b) a hedge of the
exposure io variability in cash flows atnibitable to sn asset or liability or a forecasted transaciion
{cash flow hedge). For 2006 and 2003, the Group did not apply hedge accounting treatment for its
derivatives transactions.

The Group has certain denvatives that are embedded in host financial {such as structured nves,
deba investments, and loan receivables) and non-financial (such as purchase orders and service
Agrecmenis) contracis,
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These embeddad denvatives include crednt default swaps (which are linked either 1o a single
reference entity or a basket of reference entities), and calls and puts in debt investments, which
include structured notes and deposits; conversion options in loans receivable; call options in
certain long-term debt, and foreign-currency derivatives in debt instruments, purchase orders and
SeTvice agreements.

Embedded derivatives are bifurcited from their host contracts and carried ot fair value with fair
value changes being reponted through profit or loss, when the entire hyhrid contracts (composed of
both the host contract and the embedded denvative) are nol accounted lor a5 securities al FVPL,
and when their economie risks and charactenistics ane nol closely related 1o those of their
respective host contracts.

(ther finamcial assers or financial Babilities held for trading

Other financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading (classified as *Securitics at FVYPL")
are recorded in the statement of condition w foir value, Changes in fair value relating (o the held-
for-trading positions are recognized in “Trading and investment securities gains - net”. Interest
eamed or incurned is recorded in interest income or expense, respectively, while dividend income
15 recorded in *Miscellaneous income” when the right 1o receive payment has been established.

Included in this classification are debt and equity securities which have been acquired principally
{ior the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

Designated financial assets or financial ifobilities at FVPL

Financial assets or [inancial liabilities classified in this category are designoted by management on

initial recognition when the following criteria are met:

¢ The desipnation eliminaies or significanily reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilitics or recognizing gains or losses on them
on u different basis; or

s The assets and liabilities are pan of & group of financial assets, financial labilitics or both
which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
ducumenied risk management or investmenl stralejy: or

s The financial instrament containg an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivmive
does not significantly modify the cash fows or it is clear, with littde or no analvsis, that it
would not be separately recorded.

Financial assets and financial labilines ot FYPL are recorded in the statement of condition at fair
valve. Changes in fair value on financial assets and financial liabilities designated at FVPL are
recorded in *Trading and investment securities gains - net’. Interest earmed or incurred s recorded
in inferest income or expense, respectively, while dividend imcome is recorded in *Miscellamneous
income” according 1o the terms of the contract. or when the right of payment has been established.

HTM investments

HTM imvestments are quoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payvments
and fixed maturities for which the Group's management has the positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity. Where the Group sells other than an insignificant amount of HTM investments,
the entire catcgory would be tainted and reclassified as AFS investments, Afier inirial
measurement, these HTM investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method, less impairment in value. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
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info aocourt any discount or premium on aoquizition and fees that are an integral parl of the
effective interest rate. The amortization is included in Interest income in the statement of income,
Gains and losses are recognized in income when the HTM investments are derecognized and
impaired. a3 well as through the amortization process, The losses arising from impairment of such
imvesiments are recognized in the statement of income under *Provision for impairmient and credit
losses”. The effects of restutement on foreien currency-denominsted HTM investments are
recognized in the statement of income,

Loans and receivables, amounts due from B3P and other banks, and imterbank loans receivables
Classified as loans and receivables are *Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas”, *Due from other
banks", *Interbank loans receivables”, and *Loans and receivables’. These are financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturitics and are not quoted in an active market. They
are not entered into with the intention of immediate or shom-term resale and are not classified as
Securitics at FYPL or designated as AFS investments,

Loans and receivables also include receivables arising from transactions on credit cands issued
directly by the Parent Company. Furthermore, *Loans and receivables” also include the aggregate
rental on finence lease transactions. Lineaméd income on linanoe lease transactions is shown as a
deduction from ‘Loans and receivables” (included in “Unearmed Discount™),

After imitial measurement, the *Loans and receivables’, ‘Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas’,
*Due from ofher banks™ and *Interbank loans receivables” are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method. less allowance for credit losses.  Amortized cost is
caleulated by taking into account any discount or premivm on scquisition and fees that are an
integral pant of the effective interest rate. The amornization is inchuded in the *Interest income” in
the statement of income. The losses arising from imipairment are recognized in *Provision for
mnpairment and credit losses” in the statemient of incoine,

AFS imvesimenis

AFE investments are those which are designated as such or do not qualify to be classified as
Secuntics ot FYPL, HTM investments or Loans and reccivables, They are purchased and held
imndefimitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market
conditions. They inchude debt and equity instruments.

After initial measurement, AFS invesiments are subsequently measured an fur value, The
effective yield component of AFS debt securities, as well as the impact of restatement on foreign
currency-denominated Aks debt securitiex, is reported in carmings. Ihe unrealired pains and
losses arising from the fair valuation of AFS inveaiments are excluded, nel of 1ax, from reportad
eamings and are reported as “Net unrealized gain on AFS investments” in the equity section of the
statement of condition.

When the secunity is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previous]y recognized in equity is
recopniaed us “Truding and investment secuntics gins - net’ in statemnent of income, Inlenest
carmed on helding AFS investments are reported a8 interest income using the effective mtenzst
rate, Mvidends eamed on holding AFS invesimends are recognized in the statement of income as
*‘Miscellaneous income” when the right of the payment has been established. The losses arising
from impairment of such investments are recognized s *Provision for impairment and credit
losses” in the statement of income.
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Bills pavable and other bovrowed funds

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated at FVPL, are classified
as bills payable or other appropriste account titles for such borrowed funds, where the substance of
the contractual armangement results in the CGroup having an obligation cither to deliver cash or
another fimancial asset 1o the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares. The
components of issued financial instruments that contain both Hability and equity elements are
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after
deducting from the instrument as 5 whale the amount separately determined as the fair value of the
liability component on the date of igsue.

After initial measurement, bills payable and other borrowings are subsequently measured at
ameortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective

A financial asset {or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial

assets) is derecognized where:

s the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,;

& the Growp retains the right to reccive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arangemeni;
ar

a  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either {a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferned nor
retnined the risk and rewards of the asset but has transferred control over the nsset.

Where the Group has tranzfermed 15 nghts 1o recerve cash Mows from an assel or has eatered into a
pass-through arrangement, and has neither transfermed nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor irans{emed control over the assel, the asset is recognized 1o the extent of
the Group®s continuing involvement i the assel. Continuing involvement thal takes the form ol a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured a1 the lower of ariginal carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum smount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial labiliny

A finuncial linbility |s derecopnized when the abligation under the linbility is discharged or
cancelled or has expired. Where an existing hinancial liahiliry i replaced by another from the
samc lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
midilied, such an exchange or modification is treated us a derecognition of the original lHability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in profit or loss.

Sml'ttmsmid und:rammm nq:—m'r:.lweat a specified finure date (‘repos’) are not
derscognized from the statement of condition. The corresponding cash received, including
accrued interest, is recognized on the statement of condition as a loan 1o the Group, reflecting the
economic substance of such fransaction,
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Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to resell ai a specified fulure date {‘reverse
repos’ ) are not recognized on the datement of condition. The corresponding cash paid, including
accrued interest, 15 recognized on the statement of condition as *Securitics held under agneements
o resell,” and is considered a 10an (o the counterparty. The difference between the purchase price
and resale price is treated as interest income and s accrued over the life of the agreement using the
elffective inlerest rate method.

Impairment of Finpneial Assets

The Group assesses at each statement of condition date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial azset of group of financial asscts is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as o
resull of one or more events thal has ocowred after the initial recogmition of the assel (am incurmed
“Toss event” ) and thai loss event (or evenis) has an impact on the estimated future cash fiows of the
financial asset or the group of fimancial assets thae can be reliashly estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications ths the borrower or o group of borrowers is expériencing
significant financial ditficulty, default or delinguency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization. and where observable
dota indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash Mlows, such as changes
in arrears or economic conditions that cormelate with defaulis,

Logrins onel recelvablies, duwe from BSP and odler bamks, and interfonk Togws récelvables

For loans and receivables, due from BSP and other banks, and interbank loans receivables camied
al amortized cost, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. | the Group determines that no objective evidence off
impairment exists for individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses for impairment. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows
For groups of such assets by being indicative of the deblors’ ability to pay all amounizs due
according 1o the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated. Asscts that are individually
assessed [or impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are
nod included in a collective assessment for impaiment.

If there 15 objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurmred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset™s carryving amount and the prezent value of the
estimated future cash flows {excluding future credit losses that have not been incumed). The
carrying amount of the asset | reduced through use of an allowance account and the smount of
boss 15 charged (o the statement of income. Interest income continues to be recopnized based on
the ariginal effective interest raie of the asset. Loans, together with the associated allowance
aecounts, pre writien of 1 when there i no realistic prospect of fulure recovery und all colluterul hay
been realized. If, in a subsequem year, the amount of the estimated impaimment boss decreases
because of an event occurring afier the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reduced by adjusting the allowance aceount. 11 a future write=olT is later
recovered, any amounts formerly charged are credited 1o the *Provision for impainment and credit
losses” account
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The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. Ifa loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate, adjusted for the original credit risk premium.
The calculation of the present value of the estimeted futere cash flows of a collateralized financial
asset reflects the cash flows that may resuli from foreclosure less costs for obtainimg and sellng
the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assers are grouped on the basis
of such credit risk characteristics as industry, collateral type, past-due status and term. Future cash
flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evalsited for impairment are estimated on
the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credin risk characteristics similar o those in
the Group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data 1o reflect
the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period an which the historical loss
experience is based and 1o remove the effects of conditions in the historical peried that do not exist
currently, Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are directionally consistent with
changes in related observable data from period to period (such changes in property prices,
payment status, o other factors that are indicative of incurned losses in the Group and their
magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating futore cash Mows ane reviewed
regularly by the Group 1o reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

Restructured loany

Where possible, the Group secks 1o restructure loans rather than 1o take possession of coliateral.
This may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions.
Once the terms have been renegotiated, the loan is no longer considered pust due, Managemenl
continuously reviews restructured loans 1o ensure that all criteria are met and that fisture pavments
are likely to nocur. The loans continoe to be subject to an individual or collective impairment
nssessment, calculated using the loan’s original effective interest mate, The difference belween the
recorded value of the origingl loan and the present value of the restruciured cash lows, discounted
at the original effective interest mate, is recognized in *Provision for impairment and credit losses”
in the statement of income,

HTM investments

For HTM investments, the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence of impairment. 17
there is ohjective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s camrying amount and the present value of estimated
fuiwre cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not vet been incumed). The
cammying amount of the asset i reduced through use of an allowance sccount and the amount of
logs is charged 1o the ststement of income. Interest income continues to be récognized based on
the original effective interest rate of the asset.

If, in o subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decrenses because of an
event occuring after the impairment was recognized, any amount formerly charged are eredited 1o
the “Provision for impairment and credit losses” in the statement of income and the allowance
account reduced. The HTM invesiments, together with the associated allowance accounts, are
writien ofl when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
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AFS imvestments
For AFS investments, the Group assesses at each statement of condition date whether there is
objective evidence that s financial nsset or group of financial assets is impaired,

In case of equity investments classified as AFS investments, this would include a significant or
projonged decling in the fur value of the investments below its cost. Where there i evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference berween the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, bess any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the
stalement of ingome - is removed from equity and recognized in the statement of income.
Impairment losses on equity invesiments are nod reversed through the statement of inconm.e,
Increases in fair valee after impainment are recognized directly in equity.

In the case of debt instruments clazsified as AFS investiments, impairment i3 assessed based on the
same criteria as financial assets camicd at amortized cost. Interest continues to be accrocd at the
priginal ellective mlerest rate on the redoced camying amount of Uhe asset and 15 recorded us pant
of Imerest income in the statement of income. 1F subsequently, the fair value of o debt instrument
increased and the increase can he phjectively refated to an event oocurring after the impairment
loss was recognized in the statement of income, the impairment loss is reversed through the
sitement of income.

Financial assets and finoncial linbilitics are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
condition if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable lezal neht to offset the recognired
amounls and there is an intention o selile on a nel basis, o o realize the assel and setile the
liability simultancously, This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the
related assets and lisbilities are presented gross in the statement of condition.

i
The terminal value of leased sssets, which approximates the amount of guaranty deposit paid by
the lessee at the inception of the lease, is the estimated proceeds from the sale of the leased asset at
the end of the lease term. At the end of the lease term, the terminal value of the leased asset is
gencrally applied against the puaranty deposit of the lessee when the lessee decides to buy the
leased asset.

Financial Guaranices

In the ardinary comrse of business, the Group gives financial guarantees consisting of letiers of
credit, letters of guarantees, and acceptances. Financial guarantees are initially recognined in the
linancial statements at fuir value, in "Other liobilities”. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group's liabilities under such guarantees are each measured at the higher of the initial fair value
less, when appropriste, cumulative amortization calculated to recognize the fee in the statement of
income in ‘Service fees and commizsion income’, over the term of the guarantee, and the best
estinate of the expenditure required 1o settle any [inancial obligation arising a5 & result of the
pudraniet.

Any ingrease in the liahility relafing o Mnancial guarantees is faken o the sintement of income in
*Provision for impairment and credit losses’. Any financial guarantee liability remaining is
recognized in the statement of income in "Serviee fees and commission income’, when the
guarantee is discharged, cancelled or expired.

a1
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Fradimg account securities (TAS)

TAS, which consist of government and private debl and equity securities, are purchased and held
principally with the intention of selling them in the near term. These securities are carmied at fair
value; realized and unrealized gnins and losses on these instruments are recognized in *Trading
and investmient securilies gains - net” in the statement of income.  Interest earned on debt
instruments is reported as “Interest Income”,

Available-for-sale securities (ASS)

Securities are classified as ASS when purchased and held indefinitely, i.e., neither held to maturity
nor for trading purpases, where the Group anticipates to sell in response to liquidity requirements
or in anticipation of changes in interest rates or other factors. ASS are camied ot fair market value
and any unrealized gains or losses are reported s a separate component of equity.

[nvestements i bonds and other debi instruments ((BODI}

TROM are deht securities where the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold 1o maturity.
These securities are carmied at amortized cost on a straight-line basis; realized gains and losses are
included in *Trading and investment securities gains - net” in the statement of income.

Receivables from customrers and affowance for probable lossex
Receivables from customers are stated at the onstanding principal balance, reduoed by uneamed
discounts, other deferred income, capiialized interest, and allowance for probable losses.,

Receivables from customers are classified as nonaccruing or nonperforming in accordance with
RSP regulations, or when, in the opinlon of management, collection of Interest or principal Is
doubtful. At the time the receivable is classified as nonaccruing, inlerest préviously recorded bul
not collected is provided with an allowance for probable losses, Receivables from customers are
not reclassified as accruing until interest and principal payments are brought current or the
receivables are restructured in accordance with existing BSP regulations, and luture payments
appear assured.

The allowance for probable losses, which comprises both specilic and general loss reservies, is the
estimated amount of losses in the Group™s loan portfolio based on management’s evaluation of the
collectibility of the loans, after consideration of prevailing and anticipated economic conditions,
collection and credit experience with specific accounts, fair market value of collateral, financial
capabilities of guarantors, present value of futune cash collections and evaluations made by the
BSP. The BSP observes certain criteria and guidelines basad larpely on the classification of loans
in establishing specific loss reserves. To supplement the specific loan loss reserves, o general
reserve on unclassified loan is ser aside.

The allowance for probable losses is established through provisions for probable losses charged
againsi current operations. Loans are writien off against the allowance for probable losses when
management believes that the collectbility of the principal is unlikely.
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Receivables arising from transactions with eredit cordholders are provided with allowance for
probable losses based on the review and evalustion of the status of the receivables from
cardholders and guidelines issued by the BSP. The MB through BSP Circular 398 issued on
August 21, 2003 provides general guidelines govemning credit cand operations, including the
miinimum credit card receivable classification requirement as follows:

Percentage of
Mo, of Days Pust Dug Classitication Allowance
g1 - 120 Substandard 25%
121 - 180 Doubitful S0%
181 or more Laoss 0%

Revenue Recognition

Kevenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will Aow w the
Giroup and the revenue can be reliahly measured, The Tollowing specific recopnition criterin miusl
alzo be med before revenue is recognized:

Tnterest income

Far all financial instrumenis measured at amortized cost and interest bearing financial instruments
claszified as AFS investments, interest income is reconded at the effective intenest rate, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payiments or receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shomter peniod, where appropriate, o the net camying amount of the
financial asset or financial lability. The calculation takes info account all contraciual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment options), includes any fees or incremental costs that
are directly stiributable to the instrument and are an integral punt of the effective interest rate, but
e fumre credit losses, The adjusted carrving amount is calculated based on the original effective
interest rate. The change in carrying amount is recorded as interest income.

Omce the recondad value of a financial azset or groap of similar Dinancial assets has been reduced
due 10 an impainment loss, interes! income continues to be recognized using the original effective
interest rate applicd (o the new carmying amount,

Foe and cevnmission imcrme
The Group earns fee and commission income from diverse range of services il provides to ils
cusiomers. Fee income can be divided inio the following two calegories:

a) Fee income earned from services that are provided over o centain period of ime
Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of fime are accrued over that period.
These fees mclude investment fumd fees, custodian fees, fiduciary fees, commission income,
crodit related lees, assel management fees, portfolio and olber munagement lees, and advisory
fees. However, loan commiiment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred
{topether with any incremental costs) and recognized as an adjustment to the effective interest
rate on the loan,

b} Fee income from providing transaction services
Fees arising from negoliating or participating in the negotiation of a iransaction for a thind
party = such as the arrangement of the acquisition of sharcs or other securines or the purchase
or sale of businesses - are recognized on completion of the underiving transaction. Foes or
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components of fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognized after flfilling the
corresponding criteria. These fees include underwriting foes, corporate finance fees, and
brokerage fees. Loan syndication lees are recognized in the statement of income when the
syndication has been completed and the Group retains no part of the loans for itsaif or retains
part at the same effective interest rate as for the other participants.

Drivigtenls
Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right 1o receive payment is established.

Troding and Jrrvesiiend secnrifles golng - ned
Results ansing from trading activities including all gains and losses from changes in fair valoe for
financinl assets and financial Habilities at FVPL.

Rental income
Rental income arising on leased properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms on ongoing leases and is recorded in the statement of income under *Miscellaneous income”.

Comm [ssions earmed on eredin carnds

Commissions carned are taken up as income upon receipt from member establishments of charges
arising from credit availments by credit candholders. These commissions are computed based on
cerain agreed rates and are deducted from amounts remittable 1o member esizblishments.

Purchnses by the credit cardholders, collectible on instuliments basis, are recorded o the cost of
the items purchased plus certain percentage of cost. The excess over cost is credited 1o Unearned
discount” account and is shown as a deduction from *Loans and receivables” in the consolidated
statement of condition. The unewrmed disoount is tmken up W income over the installment lerms
and is compuied using the effective interest method.

fmeenie on direct financing leases amd recehanbles financed
Income of Japan-PMB Leasing on loans and receivables financed with short-term malurities s
recognized using the effective interest method.

Interest and finanee focs on finance kascs and loans and recelvables financed with long-term
maturitics and the excess of the aggregate lease rentals plus the estimated terminal value of the
leased equipment over its cost are credited to uneamed discount and amortized over the term of
the note or lease using the effective interest rate method.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include noles and coins on hand,
amounts due from BSP and other banks and interbank loans receivable and securities held under
agreements 1o nesel] thal are converiible to known amounis of cash, with orginal maturities of
three months or less from dates of placements and that are subject to an insignificant sk of
changes in fair value,

Receivables from 5PV

Receivables from SPV are stated of the face value of the related note reduced by an allowance for
eredit lostes, The allowanee for credit losses s determined based on the dillerence between the
outstanding principal amount and the recoverable amount which is the present value of the fulure

cash Now expected to be received in payment of the receivable.
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Invesimenis in Subsidianies and Associal

Investmerts in subsidicries

Subsidinries pertain 1o entities over which the Group has the power 1 govern the finoncial and
operating policies generally accompanying a sharcholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible ane considered when assessing whether the Group controls anather entity, Sev Busis
of Consolidation,

Tnvestmicits i Assoviates

Associates pertain 1o entities over which the Group has significant mfluence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 2084 and 50% of the voling rights. In the
consolidated financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for under the equity
methed of accounting,

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is camied in the statement of condition at
cost plus pust-acquisition chunges in the Group's share of the net sssets of the associate. The
Croup’s share of 15 associmes” posi=acquisition profits or losses is recognized in the statement of
income, and its share of post-acquisition movements in the associates’ equity reserves is
recopnized directly im equety, When the Group’'s share of losses m an associate equals or excoeds
its imierest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate,

In the parent company financial statements, investments in subsidiaries and associates anc camied
ol o, less any impairment in value, Cost represents the carrying value of the invesiments as
the quasi-reorganization date of the Parent Comipany a8 discussed in Note 2, reduced by dividends
suhsequently received from the investees.

Propeny and Equipment
Deepreciable propertics such as leaschold improvements, and fumiture, fixture and equipment are
stoled at cost less accumulated deprecintion and amortization, and any impairment in value,

Land is stated at appraised values less any impairment in value while buildings are stated at
apprased value less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in valee. The appraised values
were determined by professionally qualified, independent apprisers in 2006, The revaluation
increment resulting from revaluation is credited oo the *Revaluation mcrement on land and
buikdings" under equity, net of applicable deferred income Tax,

The initial cost of property and equipment consists of its purchase price, including import duties,
taxes and any directly atiributable costs of bringing the asset w its working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditures incurred afier items of property and cquipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance are normally charsed apainst operations in the
vear in which the cosis are incurred- In situations where it can be clearly demonsirated that the
expenditures have resulied in an increase in the Riture economic benelits expected o be obtained
Froam the use of an item of propety and equipment bevond s originally assessed standard of
performance, the expendiires are capitalized as an addifional cost of property and equipment,
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Deprecimtion ix computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
réspective assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorer of the terms of the
covering leascs and the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

Tz estimated uselul lives folbow;
Uselid Life in Yeors

Buildings 25 =30
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 5
Leaschold improvements I-10

The useful life and the depreciation and amoentization method are reviewed pemodically to ensure
that the period and the method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected
pattern of cconomic henetits from items of propeny and equipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any guin or loss ansing on derecognition of the
assel (calculated as the difference between the nel disposal proceeds and the carrying amounl of
the asset) is included in the statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized.

Investmient Properties

Investment propertics are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. An investment
properly acguired through an exchange transaction is messured a1 fair value of the et soguired
unless the fair value of such an asset cannot be messured in which case the Investment property
acquired is measured at the camying amount of asset given up, Foreclosed properties are classified
under invesiment propertics (rom foreclosure date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, depreciable investment properties are carried at cost less
sccumulated depreciation and impairment in value.

Investment propertics are derecognized when they have cither been disposed of or when the
invesiment property is permanently withdrawn [rom use and no future benelil i expected from ils
disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment properiy are
recognized in the statement of income in *Miscellaneous income” in the year of retirement or
disposal,

Expenditures incurred after the investment properties have been put into operations, such as
repairs and maintenance costs, are normally charged to income in the period in which the costs are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculnted on a straight-line basis using the remaining useful lives from the time of
acquisition of the depreciable investment propertics ranging from 25 o 30 years.

Transfers are made (o investment propertics when, and only when, there is a change in use
evidenced by ending of owner eccupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party
or ending of construction or development. Transfers are made from investment properties when,
and anly when, there is a change in use evidenced by commencement of owner occupation or
commencement of development with a view to sale.
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Intangible assets

Exchange rrading right

The exchange tading right, included in “Other nssets”, was soquined, together with Philippine
Stock Exchange (PSE) shares, in exchange for the exchange membership seat under the
conversion program of the PSE, The exchange rading right is camied at the amount allocated from
the original cost of the exchange membership seal (after a corresponding allocation for the value
of the PSE shares) less allowance for impairment loss, The Group does not intend to sell the
exchange trading right in the nepr future,

The exchange trading right is deemed to have an indefinite useful life as there is no toreseeable
limit to the period over which the assel is expected to generate net cish inflows for the Group. It
censed w be amortized on Januwary 1, 2004 bul i 1ested annually for any impairment in realizable
value. Any impairment loss is charged directly to the statement of incoms.

Software costs
Software costs gre capitalized on the basis of the cost incurmed 1o acquire and bring to use the
specific software, These costs are amortized over fve yvears on a stradghi-line basis,

Cosix associated with mainiaining the compuier Soltwane programs are recognized as expense
vihen meurmed.

Al each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that its nonfinancial
assets may be impaired. When an indicator of impainment exists or when an annual impaicment
testing for un assel is required, the Group makes a formal estimale of recoverable amount.
Recoverable amovint is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs wo sell and is value in use and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is assessed as part of the cash generating unit 10 which it belongs. Where the camrving
amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset (or cash
penerating unit) is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in wse, the estimated future cash fows are discounted to their present value using a pre=tax
discount rate that reflects cumrent market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks
specific to the asset (or cash penerating umit).

An Impairment losg s charped to operations in the vear in which it arises, unless the asset 8
carried al a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is changed to the revaluation
increment of the said asset.

An asgessment is made ot each reporting date os 1o whether there is uny indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. 1 such indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only il there has beem a chisgge in the estimates used (o determing the asset's recoverable amount
singe the last impairment loss was recognized, 17 that is the case, the camrying amount of the asset
is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannod exceed the carmying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no mpairment loss
been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reviersal is recognised in the statement of
income unless the asset is carmied at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
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revaluation increase. After such a reversal, the depreciation expense is adjusted in future vears to
allocnte the asset's revised carrving amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its
remaining life.

Mrtenigible assens
Intangible assets with indefinite wseful lives are tested for impairment annually as of December 31
either individually or at the cash generating unit level, as appropriate.

Intangihle assets with finite lives are agsessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impained.

Lemses
The determination of whether an amrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement and reguines an assessment of whether the ful fillment of the arangement is

dependent an the use of a speciflc asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right 1o use the
assel. A reassessment is made after inoeption of the lease oaly i one of the [ollowing applies:

{a) There i3 a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the armngement;

b Amﬂ#mﬁﬂm&dmﬂﬂmgﬂﬂmlﬁhﬂﬂnﬂﬂmmﬂm
extension was initially included in the lease term:;

{¢) There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset;
ar

{d} There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise o the reassessment for scenarios a, ¢ or d above, and at the date
of renewal or extension period for scenario b,

For arrangements entered into prior to January, 1, 2003, the date of inception is deemed o be
January 1, 2005 in accordance with the transitional requirements of Philippine Interpretation
IFRIC-4,

Crroup ox Lessee

Finance leases, which transfer 1o the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental 1o
ownership of the leased item, are capitalized @ the inception of the lease at the fair value of the
leased property or, il lower, at the present value of the minimum |ease payments and included in
Property and equipment sccount with the cormesponding liability to the lessor included in *Other
liabilities" account. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of
the |ease liability 50 as to schieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liahility. Finance charges are charged directly to *Interest expense’.

Capitalioed leased assels are depreciated over the shorer of the estimated uselul lives of the assets
or the respective lease terms, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obdain
ownership by the end of the lease term.,

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are

classified us operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the
slatement of income on o straight-line boasis over the lease tem,
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Group as Lessor

Finance leasss, where the Growp transfers substantially all the risk and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item to the lessee, are included in the statement of condition under * Loans
and receivables’ account. A lease reccivable is recognized ot an amount oquivalent to the net
investment {asset cost] in the lease. All income resulting from the receivable 15 included in
‘Interest income” in the statement of income,

Leases where the Group does not iransfer substantially all the rigk and benelits of ownership of the
agsets are classified as operating leases. Lease payments received are recognized as an incomse in
the statement of income on i straighi-line basis over the lease term.  Lease payments received are
recopnized a8 an ncome in the statement of income on & straight line basis over the lease temi.
Imitial direct cosis incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as the rental income. Contingent
rents are recognized o8 revenue in the period in which they are camed.

Retirement Benelis
The Group has a noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan.

I'he retirement cost of the Parent Company and ceram subsidiaries s determined using the
projected unit credit method. Under this method, the current service cost is the present value of
retinement benefits payable in the future with respect to services rendered in the current period.
The liability recogmized in the statement of condition in respect of defined benefit pension plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation a1 the statement of condition date less the fair
value of plan asscts, topether with adjustments fior unrecognized aciuarial gains or losses and past
service costs. The deflined benefit obligation is calewlated mmnually by an midependent actuary
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimpted future cash outflows using interest mte on govermmeni
bonds that have terms Lo maturly approximating the terms of the related retivement liability,
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are credited to or charged against income when the net cumulative unrecognized
actuarinl goins and losses at the end of the previous period exceeded 10%6 of the higher of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets ai that date. These excess gains or
losses are recognired over the expecied average remaining working lives of the emplovees
participating in the plan,

Past-service costs, i any, are recognized immediately in income, unless the changes 1o the pension
plan are conditional on the employecs remaining in service for o specified period of time (the
vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs are amaortized on a siraight-line basis over the
vesting period.

The defined benefit asset or liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligaion
less past service costs not yet recognized and less the fair value of plan assets out of which the
phligations are to be settled directly. The value of any asset is restricted to the sum of any past
service cost nol vet recognized and the present value of any economic benefits available in the
form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the fure cortribulions 1o the plan.
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O

recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal o constructive) as a
result of u past event and it is probable that an outflow of assets embodving economic benefits wall
be required to sefile the obligation and a reliable estimate can bz made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provigion is presented in the
statement of income, net of any reimbursement. [f the effect of the time value of money is
mterial, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash Mows ot o pre-tax rote
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability, Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the

pussage of lime is recoenized as an nlerest eupense.

Cantingent liahilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the fnancial statements but are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of assets embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets ane
not recognized but are disclosed in the firancial statements when an inflow of economic benefits
is probable.

Insome Taxes

Deferred tax is provided, using e balance sheet linbility method, on all temporary differénces s
the statement of condition date between the tax bases of assets and abilities and their carmying
amounts for Mnancial reporting purposes,

Deeferred tax liahilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, including asset
revaluations, Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences,
camylorward of unused tax credits from the exeess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT)
over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT), and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCOY),
to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible emporary differences and carryforward of unuesed tax credits from MCIT and unused
NOLCO can be utilized. Deferred income tax, however, is not recognized on temporary
differences that arize from the inilial recognition of an asset or lability in a transaction thal is nol a
business comhination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor
taxable income.

Deferred tax liabilities are not provided on non-taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in domestic subsidiaries and nssociates. With respect to investments in foreign
subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax liabilities are recognized except where the timing of the
reversal of the iemporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
dilference will nod reverse in the foreseeable fuiure,

The carrying amount of deferred inx pssets {5 reviewed ot each stntement of condition date and
reduced to the extent that it i no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 1o
allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset o be utilized. Unrecognized deferred 1ax assets
are reassessed at cach statement of condition date and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profit will allow the defemred tax asset 1o be recovered.
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Deelermed fax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates thot are applicable (o the period
whicn the asset is realized or the Fability is setthed, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been
enacied or substaniively enacted at the statement of condition date.

Current tax and deferred tax relating 1o items recognized directly in equity is also recognized in
equity and not in the statement of income.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if'a legally enforceable night exists 1o set
of 1 curvent tax assets apanst current tax liabilities and deferred taves related o the same taxable

entity and the same taxation authority.

Tressury shares and contracis on own shares

Crwn equity instruments which are acquired (reasury shares) are deducied from equity and
accoamted for at weighted average cost. No gain or loss is recognized in the statement of income
on the purchase, sale, (ssue or cancellation of the Parent Company®s own equity instruments.

Eamings Per Share

Basic enmings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income for the vear attributable 1o
common sharehalders by the weighred average number of common shares outstanding during the
year after giving retroactive effiect to stock dividends declared and stock rights exercised during

the xear, if any,

Diluted eamings per shure 15 caleulated by dividing the agpregate of e income attributable (o
commaon sharehalders and convertible preferred sharcholders by the weighted average number of
common shares oustanding during the vear adjusied for the effects ol dilutive convertible
preferred shares.

Dividends on commaon chares

Dividends on common shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when
approved by the respective sharcholders” of the Parent Company and subsidiaries, Dividends for
the vear that are approved after the staiement of condition date are deaht with as an event after the
statement of condition date.

5 i Evenls

Any post-vear-enid event that provides additional information aboul the Group®s position al the
statement of condition date (adjusting event) is refleciad i the financial statements. Post-year-end
events that are nod adjusting cvents, if any, are disclosed when muterial to the financial statements.

Segment Reporting

The Group's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according o the nature
of the products and services provided, with each sepment representing o stralegic business umnil
that ofters different products and serves different markets,

Eidiciary Activities

Assets and income ansing from hduciary activities logether with related undertakings fo refum
such assets o customers are excluded from the linancial stalements where the Parent Company
acts in o fiduciory capocity such as nominge, tnustes of agenl,
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The Emp hnm nppﬁﬂllhr l-':-H-.'rwm.a PFRS and Philippine Interpretations which are not yet
elfective for the veur ended December 31, 2006:

PFRS 7. Financial Instruments; fiscinsures and complementary amendment fo PAS 1,

Jarniary £, 2007).

PFRS 7 introduces new disclosures to improve the information about financial instruments. It
requires the dischosure of qualitative and quantitative information about exposure to risks ansing
from financial instruments, including specified minimum disclosures about credit risk, liquidity
risk and market risk, as well as sensitivity analvsis to market risk. [t replaces PAS 30, Disclosures
i the Fimancial Statemenss of Banks and Similar Financial Institaions, and the disclosure
requirements in PAS 32, Financial Insiramsenis: Disclosore and Presemarion, 1t is applicable to
all entities that report under PFRS. The amendment to PAS | introduces disclosures about the
level of an entity’s capital and how it manages capital, The Group is currently assessing the
impact of PFRS 7 and the amendment to PAS | and expects that the main additional disclosures
will be the sensitivity analysis to market risk and the capital disclosures required by PFRS 7 and
the amendment to PAS 1. The Group will apply PFRS 7 and the amendment 1o PAS | in 2007,

PFRS B, Operating Segments feffective for amital pevieds beginming on or affer Jamvary [, 2000)
This PFRS adopts o management approach to reporting ségment informmation. The information
reported would be that which management uses intemally for evaluating the performance of
operating segments and allocating resources (o those segments. Such information may be diflferent
from that reported in the statement of condition and statement of income and companies will need
to provide explanations and reconciliations of the differences. PFRS 8 will replace PAS 14,
Segment Reporting. The Group will assess the impact of the standard on its current manner of

reporting segment information,

Philippine Interpeetation IFRIC-T, Appiying the Restatement Approach wnder PAS 29, Financial
Reportimg in Hyperinfationary Evonomies feffective for anmual periods beginming on or afier
March 1, 2006}

This Interpretation provides guidance on how to apply PAS 29 when an economy Tirst becomes
hyperinflationary, in panticular the accounting for deferved income ax, The Imerpretation has no
significant impact on the financial statements of the Group.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-8, Scope PFRS 2 feffective for anmial periods beginning on or
after May 1, 2006

This Interpretation requires PFRS 2 to be applied 10 any arrangements whene equity instruments
are issued for consideration which appears to be less than fair value. The Ivterpretation has no
impact on the financial statements of the Grouwp.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-10, foverim Financial Reporting and Impalvment (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after November 1, 20i)

This Interpretation prohibits the reversal of impairment losses on goodwill and AFS equity
investments recognized in the interim financial reports even if impairment is no longer present at
the annual balance sheet date. This Interpretation has no significant impact on the financial
statements of the Group.
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Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-11, PFRS 2 Group and Treaswry Share Transactions (effective for
artnvied periods begirming on or after March 1, 2007)

This Interpretation requires arrangements whereby an employee is granted rights to an entity"s
equity instruments io be accounied for as an equity-setiled scheme by the entity even if (a) the
entity chooses or is requined 1o buy those equity instruments (e.g., treasury shares) from another
party, of (h) the shareholder(=) of the entity provide the ¢quity instruments needed, [t also provides
guidance on how subsidiarics, in their separate financinl statements, account for such schemes
when their emplovess receive rights (o the agquity instruments of the parent. The Group currenily
does not have any stock option plan and therefore, does not expect this Interpretation to have
significunt impuct on its financial statements,

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-12, Service Concession Arramgements feffective for ammial
periods beginning on o after Jamrary £ 20008)

This Intérpretation covers contractual amangements arising from private entities providing public
services and is nod relevani to the Group’™s cument operalions.

Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the Group to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities. Fuoure events may occur
which will cause the assumptions used in amriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any
change in estimates are reflected in the financial stitements as they become reasonably
determinable.

Judpmenis and estimates are continually evaluated snd are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the
circumsiances.

b
fa) Cperating leases
The Group has entered into commercial propery keases on ils mvesiment property portfolio.
The Group has determined that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
these propertics which are leased out on operating lease basis.

i Failr vafue of finaricial instromenis
Wheere the fuir values of Anancial assets wnd Anucial Habilities reconded on the sttement of
condition cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that inclisde the use of mathematical models. The input o these models
1% taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is nol feasible, o degree of
judgment is required in establishing fair values. The judgments include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs such as correlation and volatility for longer dated derivatives,

fet FTM invesimends
The classification to HTM investment requires significant judgment. In making this judgment,
the Group evalumies its intention and ability 1w hold such imvestmenis to maturity. 17 the
Group fails to hold these investments to maturity other than in certain specific circumstances -
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for example, selling an insignificant amount close to matunity - il will be required to reclssify
the entire portfolio as AFS invesiments. The invesiments would therefore be measured at fair
value and not at amortized cost,

fef} Finaneial assets mol guoted in an active market

The Group classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted
or not in an sctive market. Included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is qooted in
an active markel 1 the determination on whether quoted prices are readily and regularly
available, and whether those prices represent actunl and regularly occurring market
transactions on un mm°s length basis.

Estimates
fx) Impairment fosses on logs and receivables

The Group reviews its impaired loans and receivables at each reporting date to assess whether
an allowance for impairment should be recorded in the statement of income. In panticular,
Judement by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash
flows when determining the level of required allowance. Such estimates are based on

ions about & number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future
chumges o the allowance.

In addition to specific allowance again individually significant loans and receivables, the
Crroup also makes a collective impairment allowance against exposures which, although not
specifically identified as requiring a specitic allowance, have a greater risk of default than
when eriginally granted, This collective allowance takes into consideration any deterioration
int the oan or investiment raing from the time the account was granted or amended, and such
other factors as any deterioration in country risk, industry, and technological obsolescence, as
wiell as identified structural weaknesses or deterioration in cash flows and underlying propenty
prices, anwong otlers.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, allowance lor credil losses on loans and receivables
amoumited 1o P13.3 billion and P24, 1 hillion, respectively, for the Group and P13.3 billion and
R23.9 billion, respectively, for the Parent Company. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
louns and receivables are carried ot BEI6 billion and BR0.1 billion for the Group and

PE1.5 billion and P77.9 billion for the Parent Company. respectively (see Note 9).

B Fair valives of stroctired debt instruments amd derivatives

The fair vahees of structured debt instruments and derivatives that are nol quoted in active
mrkets are determined using valuation lechniques. Where valuation technigues are used to
determing fair values, they are validmed and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of the area that created them. All models are reviewed before they are used, and
models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market prices.
To the extent practicable, models use only observable data, however areas such a8 credit risk
{both own and counterparty), volatilities and comrelations require management to make
esthmates. Changes in nssumptions about these factors could affect reported fair value of
financial instruments. Refer 1o Notes 6 and 30 for information on the carrying values of these
instruments,
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Falwation of snguoted eqieiny investmerts

Valumion ol unquoted equity investments is normally based on one of the following:

#  recent arm’s length market trapsactions;

& curment fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same;

o  the expected cash Nows discounted at current rates applicable for terms with similar terms
and risk characleristics; or

# other voluation models.

The determimation of the cash flows and discoum factors for ungquoied equity investmenis
requires significant estmation. The Parent Company reviews the valumtion techmiques
periodically and 1ests them for validity using either prices from observable current market
iransactions in the same instrumeni or from other svaileble observable market data. As of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, unquoted aquity instruments amounted wo P35E.0 million and
P364.6 million for the Group and Parent Company, respectively (see Mote 11),

Impairment of AFS equity investmenis

The Group treats AFS equity investments as impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decling in the fuir value below its cost or where other objective evidence of
impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant’ o *prolonged” requines
judgment. The Group treats *significant” generally as 20%% or more and “prolonged” greater
than & months, In addition, the Ciroup evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in
ghare price for quoted aquities and the funere cash Mows and the discount factors Tor unguoted

equities.
Refer to Node 11 for the information on the: carrying amourits of these investments.

Recogmirion of deferred fmoome favis

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused iy losses to the extant that it {5 probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can he utilized. Significant
management judgment 13 required 1o determine the amount of deferred tax asseis that can be
recoenized, based upon the Tkely tming and level of futere mwable profits oeether with
future tax planning strategies.

The Group's estimates of future taxable income indicate that certain wemporary differences
will be realized in the future. As discussed in Nole 25, recognized net deferred tax assels as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005 amounied (o PLE billion and P2.6 billien, respectively, [or the
Group and Parent Company. Deferred tax assets on the temporary differences amounting to
#9.3 hillion end B7.9 billion for CGroup and B9.3 hillion and #7.8 billion for the Parent
Company as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, wene not recognized.

Prexent value of retiremens obligation

The cost of defined benefil pension plan and other post emplovment benefits is determined
using actuarial valustions. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about
discount rates, expecied rates of retum on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and
future pension increases. Due to ihe oo terim nature of these plans, such estimales are
subject 1o significant uncentainty.
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The expected rate of return on plan assets of 107% was based on the market prices prevailing
on the date applicable to the period over which the obligation is 1o be settled. The assumed
discount rates were determined using the market yields on Philippine government bonds with
terms consisient with the expected emplovee benelit payoul as of statement of condition dates.
Refer to Note 23 for the details of assumplion used in the calculation.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2003, the present value of the retirement obligation of the
Parent Company amounted to 2.0 hillion and P775.7 million, respectively (see Note 23).

fgl Tmperlrmient of nos-fnancial assers
The Group assesses impairment on assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an assel may not be recoverable. The factors that the
Group considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

« significant underperformance relative 1o expected historical or projected future operating
resulis;

» significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and

*  sipnificant negative industry or economic trends.,

The Group recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrving umount of an asset exceeds

its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is computed wsing the value in use approach.
Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it i= not possible, for the cash-

generating unil to which the asset belonps.,

As of December 31, 2006, the carrying value of the property and equipment and investment
propertics amounted to P16.6 billion and P24.9 billion, respectively, for the Group and

P16.5 billion and P24.8 billion, respectively, for the Parent Company. As of December 31,
200¥5, the carrying value of the property and equipment and investment propertics amounted to
P15.3 billion and P26.% billion, respectively, for the Group and P15.2 billion and

P26.8 billion, respectively. for the Parent Company (see Notes 12 and 14).

fhy Estimated axeful fives of property and equipment and investment properties
The Group estimates 1he useful lives of its propeny and equipment and investment properties.
This estimate is reviewed periodically to ensure that the period of depreciation and
amorization are consistent with the expecied pattern of economic bepefits from the items of
property and equipment and investment properties.

As of December 31, 2006, the carrying value of depreciable property and equipinent and
investment propertics amounted to P56 billion and P6.6 billion, respectively, for the Group
and B5.5 hillion and 6.5 hillion, respectively, for the Parent Company. As of December 31,
2005, the carrving value of depreciable property and equipment and investment properties
amounted to 5.3 billion and P5.0 billion, respectively, for the Group and P5.2 billion and
P4.9 billion, respectively, for the Parent Company {see Notes 12 and 14).




5. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's activities are principally related 1o the use of financial instruments, The Group
secepils deposits from customers at fixed rates, and for various periods, and secks (o carn above-
average interest margins by investing these funds in high-quality assets. The Group seeks to
increase these margins by consolidating shomn-term funds and lending for longer periods ai higher
rates, while maintaining sufficient liquadity to meet all claims thet might fall due.

The Group also seeks 1o rise its interest margins by obtaining above-average margins, nit of
allowances, through lending to commercial and retail borrowers with a range of credit standing.
Such exposures involve not just an-balance sheet loans and advances, The Group also énters inlo
guarantees and other commitments such as letters of eredit and performance and other bonds,

The Group trades in financial instruments where it 1akes positions in traded and over-the-counter
instruments, including derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market movements in equities
and bonds and m currency and interest mite, The Group places truding limits on the level of
exposure that can be 1aken in relation o both overnight and intra-day morket positions.,

Credit Risk

The Parent Company faces potential credit nsks every time it extends funds to borrowers, commils
funds to counterparties, guarantees the paying performance of its clients or invests funds to issuer
either through implied or actual contractual agreements (i.e. on- or off-balance sheet exposures).

It manages its credil ek ol various levels (i.e. sirategic level, portliolio level down 1o individual
credit or transaction) by adopting a credit risk management environment that has the following

CUmponents:

o Credit risk policies, systems and procedures that are subject 1o periodic review to consider
intermal and extenal developmenis.

s Regulatory and intemal limits that are BOD-approved and reviewed at beast annually; among
the limit measures include single borrower™s limit, directors, officers, stockholders and related
interests (DOSRI), group of borrowers, concentration by security, segment, location, market
vpe, el

®  Svstems, data and technology support Tor the credit management function which includes a
newly-acquired core banking system and a centralized management information system (MIS)
capable of capturing and monitaring credit exposures;

s Credit Risk Rating System (CRRS) for risk profiling of its loan portfolio and in evalusting the
adequacy of impairment provision;

&  Credit controls that include:

portfolio analysis and management

independent pre-review and post review of individual loans

quarierly review of loon [oss reserves

credit evaluation 1o determine the payment capacity of borrowers and securing credit risk
mitigants by obtaining collateral and puaraniees

apop
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Credit-relaied commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is 1o enswre that funds are available o a customer as
required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit which represent imevocable assurances that the
Group will make payments in the event that a customer cannod meet its obligations 1o third parties
carry the sume credit risk as loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit which are
written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer authorizing a third party to draw drafis
on the Group up 1o a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions are collateralized by
the underlying shipments of goods to which they relate.

Commitments o exiend credil represent unused porions of authonzations (o extend credil in the
form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With respect (o credit risk on commitments to extend
eredit, the Group is potentially expased to loss in an amount equal to the total unused
commitments, However, the likely amount of loss is less than the 1ol unised commitments, as
most commitments 1o extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit
standards. The Group monitors the term to maturity of credit commitmenis because long-term
commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk than short-lerm commitments,

Market Risk

The Parent Company is exposed to the potential loss in its trading portfolio becouse the values of
its trading positions are sensitive 1o changes in the market prices and rates. Similarly, it is also
exposad o market risk in s investment portfolio. Market risk s dimensionsd and controdled in
baoth the trading book and in the balance sheet. In the trading book, market risk is controlled by a
daily analysis of the Value-Al-Risk ( VaR) of irading instraments under normal market conditions.
The volatilities used for this regular analysis are those for a rolling one-year period, updated
quanterly. The risk amounts computed are for a 99% confidence level.

Forsign C Ril
The Group takes on exposure 10 ¢ffects of Muctuations in the prevailing forelgn currency exchange
rates om its financial position and cash flows.

Foreign currency linbilities generally consist of foreign currency depasiis in the Rank's FCDU,
account made in the Philippines or which are generated from remittances to the Philippines by
Filipino expatriates and overzeas Filipino workers who retain for their own benefit or for the
benefit of a third party, foreign currency deposit sccounts with the Parent Company and foreign
currency-denominated borrowings appearing in the regular books of the Parent Company.

Forcign currency deposits are gencrally used to fund the Parent Company’s foreign cumency-
denominated loan and investment porifolio in the FCDU, Banks are required by the BSP (o malch
the foreign currency liabilities with the foreign currency assets held through FCDUs. In addition,
the RSP requires a 30% liquidity reserve on all foreign cummency lisbilities held through FCDAU S
Outside the FCDLU, the Parent Company has sdditional foreign currency assets and liabilities in its
foreign branch network.

The Group's policy i to maintain foreign cumency exposure within aceeptable limits and within
mnn;lmil.lllm?,[mdcﬁm. The Group believes that its profile of foreign cumrency expasune on
its nsacts and liabilities is within conservative limits for a financial institution engaged in the type
of business in which the Group is involved,
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The table below summarizes the Group®s exposure (o foreign curmency exchange rate risk as of
December 31, 2006 and 20038, Included in the table are the Group's axsets and lisbilities at
carryimg amounts (in thousand pesos), categorized by currency.
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Information relating to the Parent Company”s currency derivatives is contained in Note 30. The
Pareni Company has outstanding foreign curmency spol transactions {in equivilent peso amounis)
of P1.3 billion {sold} and P09 billion (bought) as of December 31, 2006 and P04 billion {sold)
and B0.4 billion (bought) as of December 31, 2005, respoctively.

I'he Group's hiquidity management involves maintmning funding capacity to acoommadate
Muctuations in asset and liability levels due to changes in the Group's business operations or
unanticipated events created by customer behavior or capital market conditions. The Group seeks
to ensure liquidity through a combination of active management of liabilitics, a liquid assct
portiolio composed substantially of deposits in primary and secondary reserves, the securing of
money market lines and the maintenance of repurchase facilities to address any unexpected
liquidity situations,

Liquidity risk is monitored and controlled primarily by a gap analysis of manrities of relevam
assels and liabilities reflected in the maximem cumulative outflow (MOO) report, as well as an
analysis of liquid assets, which providez guidance as to the Group®s ability to peneraie sufficient
liquidity. The MCO focuses on a 12-month period wherein the 12-month cumulative outflow is
compared to the ncoeptable MCO limit sl by the BOD. Furthermore, an internal liguidity ratio has
been st o determine sulficiency of liquid asseis over deposil liabilities.

Liguidity is monitored on o daily basis und under siressed situstions. Reler (o Note 33 for the
maturity profile of the Group™s assets and liabilifies.

| sl His

The Parent Company seeks 1o ensure that exposure to fluctuations in interest rates are kept within
acceptable limits. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce or
crente losses in the event that unexpected movements arise.
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Repricing mismatches will expose the Bank 1o interest rate risk. The Parent Company measurnes
the sensitivity of its assets and liabilities to interest rate fMluctuations by way of a “repricing gap™
analysis using the repricing characteristics of its balance sheet positions tempered with approved
assumplions, To evaluale eamings exposure, interest rale sensifive liabilifies in each fime band are
subtracted from the corresponding interest rate assets to produce a “repricing gap™ for that time
band. The difference in the amount of assets and liabilitics maturing or being repriced over o one
year period would then give the Parent Company an indication of the extent to which it is exposed
1o the risk of potential changes in net intcrest income. A gap is considered negative when the
amount of interest rale sensitive linbilities exceeds the amount of interest rade sensitive assets, A
yplsmns&lduﬁl positive when the amount of interest rate sensitive assets exceeds the amount of
interest rate sensitive liabilities. Accordingly, during a period of rising interest rates, a company
with o positive gap would be better positioned than one with a negative gap to invest in higher
yielding assets more quickly tham it would need 1o refinance s interest-bearing labilities. During
a period of falling interest rates, a company with & positive gap would tend 1o see its assets
repricing at a fster rate than one with a negative gap, which may restrain the growth of it nel
inzome or result in a decling in net interest income.

For risk management purposes, the repricing gap covering the one vear period is multiplied by an
assuined change in interest rates to yickd an approximation of the change in net interest inconse
that would result from such an interest rate movement. The Parent Company”s BOD sets a limit on
the level of eamings af risk (EAR) exposure tolerable o the Parent Company. Compliance to the
EAR limit is monitored monthly by the Risk Management Group.

The following table sets forth the repricing gap position of the Paremt Company as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in million pesos):
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Fair Value Measurement

The methods and assumptions used by the Group in estimating the fair value of the financial
insiruments ang:

Cazh equivalents and shori-term invesiments - Carrving amounis approximate fakr values due to
the relatively short-term maturity of these investments.

Debt sccuritics = Fair values are gencrally based upon quoted market prices. If the market prices
are nod readily available, fair values are estimated using either values oblained from independent
parties offering pricing services or adjusted quoted market prices of comparable investments or
using the discounted cash flow methodology.

Cuoted equity securities - Fair values ane hased on quoted prices published in markets.

Unquoted equity secuniiies = Fair values could not be reliably determined due to the unpredictable
nature of future cash flows and the lack of suitable methods of amiving at a reliable fair value.

Loans and receivables - Fair values of loans are estimated using the discounted cash flow
methodology, using the Group's current incremental lending rates for similar types of loans.

Liabilivies - The fair value of quoted debt insmruments are based on quotes obtained from an
mdependent pricing service. For unquoted instruments, fair valoes are estimated using the
discounted cash flow methodology using the Group's current incremental borrowing rates for
similar borrowings with maturities consistent with these remaining for the [ability being valued.
Except for bills and acceptances payable and subordinated notes, the camrying values approximate
fair values due to either the presence of o demand feature or the relatively short-term maturities of
these liabilities.
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Derivalive instruments - Fair values are estimiled based on quoted market prices, prices provided
by independent pamies of acceptable valusion models,

The following table summarizes the carrving amounts and fair valves of the financial assets and
liabilities as of December 31, 2006 and 2005:
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7. Begment Information

Business & ns

The Group’s operating businesses are determined and managed separately according o the nature
of services provided and the different markets served with each segment representing o strategic
business unit. The Group's business segments follow:

Retail Banking - principally handling individual customer’s deposits, and providing consumer
tvpe loans, overdrafls, credit cord facilities and fund transier (acilities

Corporate Banking - principally handling loans and other credin fecilities und deposit accounis for
gorporate and instinmional customers

Treasury - principally providing money market, trading and treasury services, as well as the
management of the Group®s funding operations by use of T-bills, govemment securities and
placemenis and accepiances with other hanks, through mreasury and wholesale banking.

These segments arc the bases an which the Group reports iis pimary scgment information. Oiher
operations of the Group comprise of the operations and financial control proups.  Transaclions
between segments are conducted at estimated market rates on an arm’s length basis. Intered is
eredited to or charged agnnst business segments based on o pool mic which approximates the
margmal cost of funds,

Business segment information of the Group Follows (in thousand pesos):
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Geopraphical Segments

Although the Group™s businesses are managed on a worldwide basis, the Group operates in five
principal geographical arcas of the world, The distribution of assets, lisbilitics, off-balance sheet
items and revenues by peographic region of the Group as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 follows
{in thousand pesos):
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The Phalippines is the home country of the Parent Company, which is also the main operating
company. The Group offers a wide range of financial services as discussed in Note 1.
Additionally, most of the remitiance services are manaped and conducted in Asia, Canada, USA
amil United Kinedom.

The arcas of operution include all the primary business segments.

8. Becurities of Foir Value Through Profit or Loss

This account consists of:
Comundil wiod Paremt Comgany
Yl His il 2005
i(ln Thaousand Pesos)
Digrivative assots (Note 10 P61, 06T FiEs, |32 FRB1 867 PTEAIZ]
Cvemnmen secueilios [N ST 14D 145870 A1 001
Equiny securities 18,608 313M - -

PLIITENS  PILA2S91  PL10%037 P97

Govermment securities include unrealized gain of P1.1 million and PD.S million as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, for the Group and the Parent Company.

Equity securities include unrealized gain of 1,0 million and P28 million as of December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively, for the Group.

In 2006 and 2005, the effective intérest rates of government securities rmange fmom 4. 1025 1o 9.65%
and 5.83% to 12.00%, respectively.
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9, Loans and Receivables

Thiz accouni consisis of:

Coasnlldsied Paremi { smpamy
Mt 25 2 S
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As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, 57.48% and 62.91%, I'Hpﬂﬂl\-‘l‘.‘lj". ni"lhﬂ-nl.lllnﬂu

receivables of the Parent Company were subject to periodic interest repricing.

Remaining

reccivables carry annual fixed interest rales ranging from 5.25% (o lﬂiﬁ‘}imm:mlj?ﬂ%m
12.28% in 2005 for foreign currency-denominated receivables, and from 5.75% 10 22,75% in 2006
and 5.0 to 29.0F% in 2005 for peso-denominated receivables.

Sales coniract receivahles hear fixed interest rate per annum of 0.58% o 21% in 2006 and 0.58%

o 19.05% in 2005,

The cffective interest rates of *Loans reccivable”, *Unguoted debt instruments” and *Sales contract
receivables” range from 5.67% to 10.69% in 2006 and from 5.26% to 15.00% in 2005 for foreign
currency-denominated receivables, and from 5.51% to 18.84% in 2006 and from 6,00% 1o 19.05%

in 2003 for peso-denominated receivables.

BSP Circular 520 dated March 20, 2006 requires that the difference between the selling price and
the carrving value of investment properties sold under installment shoold be recognized in profit
or loss al the date of sale, Accordingly, the Parent Company reversed the outstanding deferred
imeome and credils representing the unrealized gain on sale of investment properties amounting to
#750.0 million and credited to the beginning balance of deficit, net of deferred income 1ax

amounting to P225.0 million,
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In 2004, the Parent Company sold the cutstanding loans recelvable of P53 billion from National
Stee] Corporation (MSC) 1o 5PV companies under the provisions of Republic Act (RA) No, 9182,
The Special Puvpose Vehicle Acr of 2002, In consideration for such sale, the Parent Company
received rero=coupon noles and cash ioaling P4.2 billion. In sccordance with the BSP
Memorandum dated February 16, 2004, Acconrring Guidelinegs on the Sale of Nonperforming
Assets (NPAs) fo Special Purpose Vehicles, the #1.6 hillion allowance for impairment losses
previously provided Jor the NSC loans receivable was released by the Parent Company fo cover
additionad allowance for credit and impairment losses required for other exizting MPAs and odher
nisk assets of the Parent Company. With the release of such allowance, the loss on the sale of the
NEC loans receivable to the SPY amounting to P1.1 billion representing the difference between
the camying value of the receivables and consideration received was deferred by the Pareni
Company as allowed under the regulations issued by the BSP for banks and financial institutions
availing of the provisions of RA No, 9182 (see Note 15).

Unquated debt instruments include the zero-coupon notes received by the Parent Company on
October |5, 2004 as discussed above at the principal amount of PB03.S million (Tranche A Note)
payable in five years and wi the principal amount of P34 billion { Tranche B Note) pavable in eight
years m exchange for the outstanding loans receivable from NSC of B33 hillione. The notes are
secured by o first ranking morgoge and securily inleres! over the NSC plant assets,

As of December 31, 2004, the zero-coupon notes had an outstanding balance of P3.E billion, after
receipt of an additional cash payment of PI40.3 million and e recognition of an allowance Fos
eredit losses of P259.8 million. Using o discount rate of 13.24%, the present value of such notes
a5 of that date amounted to P1.9 billion. The B1.9 billion difference between the present valoe and
the outstanding balance of the notes was deferred over a ten-vear petiod in accordance with
regulutory accounting policies prescribed by the BSP for banks and non-bank financial institutions
availing of the provisiens of BRA Mo, 9182 However, on January 1, 2005, the Parent Company
recognized this difference as a direct charge against deficit. As of December 31, 2006 and 20035,
these notes had a carrying value of B2.2 billion and F2.0 billion, reapectively,

In 2005, the Parent Company sold another pool of NPL with outstanding balance of P4.7 billion.
Upon adoption of PAS 35 on January 1, 2003, the Parent Company did not set up allowance for
credin lesses on the WPLs sold to SPV since it availed of the provisions of RA No. 9182 in the
recogmition of the loss from sale of B3 hillion (see Mate 15,

In 2006, the Parent Company entened into a sale and purchase agreement Tor the sale of certain
NPLs and foreclosed properties booked under *Investment properties’. The loss on sale
amounting to P19 billion was deferred ond will be amortized over 10 veors ns allowed under

RA Mo, 9182, As part of this sale and purchase agreement, another pool of NPLs will be sold in
2007. The additional required allowance for credit losses on these NPLs amounting to #1.3 billion
i nol recognized in the Anuncial ststements since upon sale, the losy will be deferred and
amortized over |0 vears (see Note 10)
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Under RA No. 9182, losses on sale of NPL to SPV companies con be amortized over 10 vears
hased on the following schedule:

End of Period From Date of Cumulative Write-down ol
Transaction Deferred Charges
Year ] b
Year2 {15
Year 3 13%
Yiear 4 25%
Year 15y,
Year 6 45%
Year T 55%
Year§ T
Year 9 B5%
Year 10 10

For the purpose of compuring the Parent Company”s regular corporate income 1ax, the loss is
treated as an ordinary loss and will be cammied over as a deduction from the Parent Company”™s

taxable income for a period of five consecutive taxable vears immedintely following the year of
sale.

Had the 2006 and 2004 losses been charged against operations and the allowance for impairment
losses on the sold NPA in 2003 been set up as of January 1, 2003 as roquired by PFRS, defomed
charges and equity would have decreased by B6.9 billion and P82 billion, respectively, and
allowance for credit losses would have increased by P13 billion as of December 31, 2006,
deferred charges and equity would have decreased by B5.2 billion as of December 31, 2005, and
2006 and 2004 net income would have decreased by #3.2 billion and #£1.1 billion, respectively,
and 2005 net income would have increased by P124.8 million,

In 2006 and 2005, the amortization of the loss on sale of NP As amounting to P267.9 million and
P54.0 million, respectively, was charged to deficit,

Unquoted debt instruments also include the following securities:

a. Twelve-year peso-denominated bonds with face value amounting 1o B1 1.2 billion. These
bonds, with an original amount of P24.3 billion, were issued by the NG in setlement of the
Parent Company’s claims from NG. These bonds, which will mature in 2007, are eligible as
part of the liguidity cover requirements on government deposits. These bonds were
redesmable al any time al the option of the NG and were onginally =sued as nonlrmnsierable
until the lifting of such restriction in 1997, In February | 998, B10.0 billion of these bonds
woere sold with an agreement to swap interest payvments based on the average 91-day oand
Jod-day T-bill rates during the three-month penod preceding the annual repricing date for the
remaining term of the bonds. These bonds are pledged to secure performance of the estimated
met interest differential under the interest rate swup agreement (see Note 30), The intenes rute

swap agreement maiured on August 1, 2006,

As of December 31, 2006, these bonds are pladged as collmeral 1o secure the Parent
Company's borrowing from PDIC (see Note 18).
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b. Bonds issued by Philippine Sugar Corporation (PSC) amounting Lo P28 billien, The bonds
carry an annual interest rate of 4.00%% and will matune in 2014, The full repayment of
principal and accumulated interest to maturity is guaranteed by a sinking fund managed by the
Parent Company”s Trust Banking Group {TBG). As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the net
asset value of the sinking fund amounted to P3.9 billion and P3.0 billion, respectively, eaming
an average rate of return of 9.44% per snnum. Management expects that the value of the
sinking fumd in the vear 2004 will be more than adegquate to cover the full redemplion value of
PSC bonds.

On Movember 27, 1997, Mayvbank Philippimes, Inc. {(Maybank) and the Parent Company signed a
deed of assignment transferming to the Parent Company cenain Maybank assets (included under
sccounis receivables) and linbilities amounting o P19 billion and P1.3 billion, respectively. in
connaction with the sale ol the Parent Company's 60.00% equity in Maybank. As of

December 31, 2006 and 2005, the halance of these receivables amounting to #2.0 billion and
P24 billion, respectively, of which is included under loans and receivables, may be offset ngainst
the equivalent amount of transferred liabilities {included under Bills pavable 1o BSP and local
banks - Notc 18). The cxcess of the transferred reccivables over the transferred liabilinies is fully
covered by an allowance for credit losses amounting (o P40.9 million and P38.3 million as of
December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively. The remsaining equity ownership of the Parent
Company in Maybank was sold in June 2060 (see Note 29).

Miscellaneous receivables inchude assets previousty transferred 10 the NG as part of the Parent
Compeny's rchabilitation in 1986, These receivahbles were repurchased by the Parent Company
from the NG at a discount and are mostly secured by real estate moripages. These receivables are
likewise fully covered by allowance for credit losses amounting to P237.6 million and

P339.8 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

B3F Reportig

The information relating to loans receivables as to secured and unsecured and as to collaters|
follows:
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Parent Company

1084 2005

A i e A b

{Ampmis. in Thousand Pesos)

Spgared:
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Umsecured 25250 84K 41LEE 1R, 719 204 naz

6019647 W0 PhO.910.736___ 1000
The information on loan concentration as to industry follows:

2084 M0
A st ) AN )
fAmounts In Thewsand Peses|
Whelemle =nd retall trade PILE20 267 e el | PEST, 1] (R
Meruficiaring LR EEE 3] 1438 0,023,295 1397
Teansginrt, ssorage shd comanmications T.2W9 S 1.74 T, 142 1
Fleal eniaie, renting and bosdness metivibe %L UKL 1013 10,1658 i 1557
Pullic admanisirutios and defene LALFFLY] BA5 EA2T 260 .75
Electriciny, gis and water E0T0ETE E.15 EATI2TH 1181
Fimancial intermedisies 4340066 6,58 4, B55,0TH aIv
Agricubiure, bunting and forsery 32057 521 3,540,693 453
Construction LiwETe in6 250:,0055 162
(her commemnity, sacial pnd persorsl servioes L IT44TR X,y 1,155, K73 440
Privare howszhald L135131 343 1G5 A 134
Hotel and seitsran 646,937 1.0d 355070 Q50
Edusmsan J7aei 5 JIT.HE add
Mining and gquarrying 171,261 0.2% 0,533 039
Health and secial woek 12214 L0 19,114 L]
Fishing T84 @01 i0,419 il
Dehera 1KH 268 0,46 %{H ﬂﬁ
IEITE LT F"u'li ?I |
— Parent Company
1l 20HIE
Amomnt ) Amount ]
{Amounts in Thousand Peus)

Whealesale wnd netill e FILAM 458 iz PR 2be, |38 1182
Manudiclanng B2THAET 1573 G 47 A58 13,56
Transport, sSorge and comammications LRIUIELH 145 T155.304 1oz
Feal estade, renting and bersiness activities 8271361 [URT] 159,810 1193
Public adminliraiion end deferme 1IN, TRS 848 BA27.260 1208
Fleetricity, gas nnd water E0T0 6T 841 RATIZTR A !
Fimancial insermediaris 419855 799 4.506,122 BES
Agricubiure, busting and focestry LATIIRL 476 3540073 507
Consirustion 190576 3,94 393,903 371
Oher community, soctal and persorsl servioes LITAN6T 377 3,03 441
Frivate homss=hold 153 565 LN F 1 347433 193
Hodel aod restaurant f2 030 1,07 3500673 050

(Forward)
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Fareat Compamy

20 2005
Ammnd % Amnuni i
{Amounts in Thousasd Pesos)

Education P63, T80 0.4 PGS k24
Minieg nil qerryling 171261 .28 Rr {EL LR (b4
Hizahh and sscial work 13,574 o,m} 18154 | Nakl
F'ishing T 0. 10440 ki
ihen 4 RY 0.0l - -
M_I'E‘J!T Im_..léﬂ- PS5 HE‘!-E 100,00

The BSP considers thai boan concentration exists when the total loan exposure o a particular
industry exceeds 30.00% of the total loan portfolio. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the
Croup and the Parent Company do not kave loan conceniration risk to any pamicular indusiny,

MWPLs s to secured and unsecured follows:

Cpmzolidated I':n-ll'-nmEﬂ
ity Ll i 2005
{In Thoswand Peuns)
Secured FTAMDES PI4A93,903 FT 30033 PI4EIGANN
Unsecured 4 A6 621 3,021 568 409K 3000 5EF

PILI%h688 F27.0015.500 PILIAGAOIN  P2TEAT.REY

Generally. NPLs refer to loans whose principal andfor interest is unpaid for thirty (30) days or
more after due date or afier they have become past due in accordance with existing BSP rules and
reguiations. This shall apply to loans payable in lump sum and loans payable in quarterly, semi-
annual, or annual mstallments, in which case, the toal ouistanding balamce thereof shall be
considered nonperforming.

[n the case of lvans thal are payable i monthly installmenis, the Wil oustanding balance hereol
shall be considered nonperforming when three (3) or more installments are in amears,

Inn the case of loans that are pavable in daily, weekly, or seni-monthly mstallments, the total
outstanding balance thereof shall be considered nonperforming at the same time that they become
pist due in sccordance with existing BSP regulations, §.¢., the entire outstanding balance of the
receivable shall be considerad as past due when (he ool amount of arréarages reaches len percenl
{10%:) of the total loan balance.

Loans are classifed as nonperforming in accordance with BSP regulotions, or when, in the
opinion of management, collection of interest or principal is doubtful. Loans are not reclassified
as performing until interest and principal payments are brought cumrent o the boans are
restrociured in sccordance with existing BSP regulations, and funure payments appear assured.

Loans which do not meet the requiremenis o be treated as performing loans shall also be
considered as NPLs, Current banking regulations allow banks that have no unbooked valuation
reserves and capital adjustments to exclude from nonperforming classification those boans
classified as Loss in the lates! examination of the BSP which are fully covered by allowance for
crodit losses, provided that intenest on said receivables shall not be sccrued.

A
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The details of the NPL of the Group and of the Parent Company follow:

Consolidated Parent Company

2000 2003 2006 2005
(In Thousand Pesos)
Toua| WL PIZI% 656 BT 004 503 [P RE T 2T EST AW
Less MPL fuilly covered by allowance for
credin losses 117884 8, T38,008 1,974,800 G674 648
FHLITE 21,177 (LN ETES P21 MB35 235

Most of these loans are secured mainly by real estate or chattel mongages.

Restruciured loans of the Group and of the Parent Company as of December 31, 2006 and 2005
amounted to P14.5 billion and P23.2 hillion, respectively,

.

Receivables from Special Purpase Vehicle

Receivables from SPV represents the present value of the note received by the Parent Company
from the sale of the first pool of NPAs to an SPV on December 29, 2006, The nasct sale and
purchase agreement (ASPA) were executed on December 19, 2006, The BSP izsved the cenificate
of eligibility on Janwary 31, 2007. However, the BSP confinmed that this transaction qualified as a
true sale under RA No., 9182 and thut the NPAs muy be derecopnized alrendy from its books as of
December 31, 2006,

The more significant terms of the sale are as follows:

a. Cenain NPAs of the Parent Company will be sold to the SPV and divided into two pools. The
sale of the first pool of NP As with outstanding balunce of P11.7 billion was made on
December 29, 2006 for a total consideration of PI1LT billion. The sale of the second pool is
expected to be completed on March 30, 2007 for a total consideration of B7.6 billion.

b. The agreed purchase price of the first pool of NPAs shall be paid as follows:

i. An initinl amount of P1.1 billion (inchedad in Accounts receivable as of December 31,
20063, which was received in full and scknowledged by the Parent Company on

February 14, 2007; and

ii. The balance of P10 billion, through issuance of SPY Motes (the Notes), shall be paid
over a period of five years based on a cash flow waterfall armangement and at an interest
eqquivalent to the 3-month MART prevailing as of the end of the quarter prior to the

paymient date.

The Parent Compony availed of the incentives provided under RA No, 9182 in the recognition of
loss from the sale amounting to B1.9 billion (included in deferred charges under “Other assets’).
Under RA No. 9182, the loss on sale of NPAs to SPV companies can be amortized over 10 vears
(3¢ Note ).
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Under the ASPA, the sale of the second pool of NPAS amounting to P7.6 billion with allowance
for credit losses of B5.5 billion shall be effective in 2007, However, the BSP already confirmed in
its letter dated February 28, 2007 that these NP As qualify as a true sale under RA No. 9182 as of
December 31, 2006, As discussed in Note 9, since the Parent Company will again avail of the
incentives mentioned above, it did not recognize the required additional allowance for credit losses
of these NPAS amounting (o P13 billion. The NPAs (o be 2ol to 5PV 15 included in “Other
assets” (see Note |5).

The sale of the NPAs to the SPV qualified for derecognition under BSP regulalory reporting rules.
However, PFFRS requires that the sccounts of the SPV that acquired the NPA of the Parent
Company should be consolidated into the Group®s accounts, Had the accounts of the SPV been
consolidated into the Group's accounts, tolal asscts and minority interest in equity of consolidated
entities would have increased by P3O0 million.

1.

Invesiment Securities
Thig seeoum consiss of:
Consolidnted Parent Csmpany

P =05 2 = LS
{|n Thousand Pesos)

AFS investmenis:
Crrvwrminent secunitss (Mobes 17 and 273 P23.725,314 P3N, LB 0 F21,T45. 949 Pl k=h 55
Ok ileba sexuriion (LETTEL RELT 18,292,590
Equiny secariiis - net of allowance fos
credn bases af PEdE 4 millon and
BL228 millicn mn 2006 and 2005,
respoctively (Mot 16} 1,003 400 1,111,537 gy LETY) 1,097 293
41824, K10 441, 142 153 40 X2 230 3 s 157

FULPA eawsDmeats:

Clonern mend securitn (Mote 27} 1. 528,050 SaneElT 120044 500 655
Oicher deb seg uritics 16317 - i el
1,554,168 5,266,817 1,420,984 3,001 855

PITITE a5 A0ES5T  RE242.100 P, | TAETY

Unguated AFS equity securities as of December 31, 2006 and 2003, amounted 1o PI5B.0 million
and P364.6 million, respectively,

Unrealized gain on AFS investments amounied to PEG2.2 million and PE19.8 million as of

December 31, 2006 for the Group and Parent Company, respectively, Unrealized gnin on AFS
investments amounted to #9038, T mallion (et of unrealized loss of B2.8 million of subsidianes)
and PBER.T million as of December 31, 2005 for the Group and Parent Company, respectively,

Effective interest rates range from 5.25% to 22.87%% and 4.20% wo 17.28% for peso-denominated
and foreign cumency-denomimaled AFS invesimenis. respectively, in 2006, Effective inferest rates
range from 42086 to 17.28% and 4.03% o 10.63%% for peso-denominated and forelgn currency-
denominated AFS investments, respectively, in 2005,
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Effective imenest rate for peso-denominated HTM investments is 7.35% and ranges from 5.19% 10
8.87% for foreign currency-denominated HTM investments in 2006, Effective interest rates range
from 4.17% 1o B.57% and 5.19% 10 3.88% for peso-denominated and foreign currency-

denominated HTM investments, nespectively, in 2005,

Inferesd meome on [nvesiment securiies consisis of:

Cansolidatcd Poremi Company
006 2008 20 ikl 2005 il
i1 Thsaisand Pesoa)
Securities m FVPL PI1102 862 Pas4, A BSa, 001 )02 EA2 PGEa 04 456,001
AFS investments Lh6NANE  2R56,769 FULEIY  ISMMTAR 1714 IM233
HTM investments ATN248 SI4,683 1,166,380 385,551 il
145656 P00 5,309 146 P4 P 0
12, Property and Equipment
'ﬂw:uuwuiﬁdnuflnﬂ:l'-iguhfmnn' m.ﬁmﬂq.&pnrﬂlﬂdhudmld inq:mrﬂh:tll:
follow:
Consslilnisd
RIHM
Farnidure,
Flbares and L cangleakl
Tais) 2005
{In Theusond Pews )
Ciaslt
Ihsking e @ Beginning of yoar [ ANE PITEAID PANOT I8 AR TR
Additiong MR AE aTIET AR ST 497,001
i 1 ] 1,182,038
e Rb i 00
wlal himertian iies
Baknie ul beginning wf yar AT LK ] 158397 3,198,563
Deprecintion md mmorti xation b TR 15880 2w any 245, 10F
Dipossieany (#42376) 21,728 {IW1.151) B4,
Jiakiniy ¢ o il LT 131457 2088 108 19,192
e Mok Valoe ot EaToT Vet S SR TTTF . S .1 :
Paruni Caanpny
e
Farmliure.
Flutwres and Loeusehakl
T
m‘%d — atsl 2005
Canid
Rakince m beginning of yewr FLAA 240 PR CATITRTT LA AT
Aadit i FLAN D a7y EILE AN KR}
Disparsls (79.308) __= FLNES
Bakinee 3 omd af veie LI FTNE 1530062 300, k0
Sccmmmlatod and Amertirnfion
Hakings m of yem 227an ATz FRI[NTE] pde i
Diepreciation and mmortizatios 136,500 1H, 448 1758540 A2
Digucrsals {19,145} = (1%, 14R) JERT AT
]

Hnd-e.lﬂ:ﬂ']%
St ook Valee ot afl Yeur

L —r
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The composition of and changes in land and buildings follow:

Cansolilated
il
Lamil Haihlin gy Tiial 20038
il Thisran] o)
Appreived Vale
Nalanc: o hogimnimg of year P AR PELTIZ 0 FIE, | |6 b P61 625
Anpraaal o Hann nLun (FIEF T
Adddkmns LES AL 28,6010 LK ] 21N
I i 5 {1E5.502 ) i1, 1 ¥ 166, TRE) 20,1 55
Halasge ol el of year 11 242,71 304,011 17,546,717 16, 118400
A prmmia e D roriing
sk i1l hopgimmininge ol s o = 280,003 LIS [ W[ WY
Dipeicialiom - 148,381 145, 045% 144811
Drispaoeal s = (£ 4545 (1,454 [LE T ]
Talascs m ond ol vear 100E,07 i M0 Y TR 1250113
Nit Boak Vadee uf Enad of Venr FIlST8A18 FidohSl_ FISAASIS B4 s4elns
I rewd Compasy
D
Lamil Haiklimgs Tatal 23
iln T Pesos)
Apperaised Valie
Halasce mi hogisning of yem LA N F4 T4 dsE 1A, 100 Sia P, 100 A%
Apprassal inoreuse i el 44,608 181 S8 -
Addinioms JESNTHTT 15401 THL &1 el o)
Dinpumsal wirihin (LR i1, T by (157008 {RARTTS
lalasce ol ond af vear IEET e ST 17,545,717 [y, |kt
Acenmmlaied Depresislios
ks i heplaning of year - 1247253 1,147,358 1,000 575
Depetiuilm - 14516 |45 206 144 855
Iispuril w'arther = L[k L 1] {1BTRS
Halane il ond ol yeur = 1892 973 ] L7} 1247 161
Allemance lor Impaimmewt Laas [Motc 18] 42, 5%0 Hib V16 s
Bid Bank Vales ni Ead of Vesr PILITEIA Pi_RAR 500 15 Rdq 1T P4, T8 T

Depreciation on the revaluation imerement of the buildings amounted to B57.3 million,
B55.7 million and P60.3 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, for the Parent Company.

Diepreciation and amortization expense, inclusive of the depreciation on revaluation increment of
the buildings, charged against operations of the Group amountad (o P365.0 million. P3350.6 million
and P456.2 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and P310.5 million in 2006,

P524.6 million in 2003 and P429,5 million in 2004 for the Parent Company. Had the land and
buildings been carnied at cosl, the net book value of the land and buildinges would have been

P4.9 billion and P5.2 billion as of December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively, for the Group and
Parent Company.

Land and buildings with carmving amount of P9.8 billion as of December 31, 2005 were pledged as
eodlaters] 1o yecure the Parent Company s borrowaings from PDIC, In 2006, the morigage
agreement was amended replacing this collateral with mvesiments in govenment securilies (see
Mote 18D
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13, Tnvestments In Subsidiaries and an Assoclate

Lews allovwancs for mpairmonm ks

The details of this account follow:
e sl b b FParenl Co
ELLL] 2003 1006 2005
; {ln Thigamiand e )
ity
A Dgguisiti oo cost af
PFNB 1T P B-  FIOFRIEF POLUOTEZDD
FNB Eurege PLC = = TRS 0w TREIDG
PME IFL - = TEN D 1 06]
&R Halifiags - - 577476 iTIRTG
B Capital - - LT 250000
MNB Forew I, = = &0, 105000
FH Seoafithes, Inc. - - 41,351 LT
PHB jualy - Spa - - 54,350 R0
FNB GFRS it = T =
F&B Remitency Cenler, Lisl - - X102 R
Omicrom Assel Porifello (517 - AMCL lre. - = M. 2% I.2%0
Tanzaniie breesimens (SFY - AMC) ne. - - Al 25 nis
Tou Porifolie |nvessments (5P - AMC) Inc. - - 31,250 250
B Coporation - Guam - - T.6TE 7472
FNB Aulria - = .72l -
Jagun - PRIY Lewilig - - 103,176 102,176
PNB Ventare Capite] Corposrstfon {1009 awned) 5861 106! 5,01 406
Bereficial - FNA Life [nsurasce Compasy,
[z, (40NN cvmpsd) 4V El4 AU ER4 490 B0 ST An |
Ll = = b o
SRS S4AIs &an.aer ¢
Ao bl od egmily in i ez
Badange ot beginning of year 179300 1 IRE4) - -
Eagialy’ in ret crirmiomgs for the venf 48299 LT A - -
— el Y : -
il ] 0 07,371 | - -
Share in the oquity adjmtments of an acsociale:
Bty i ot unreallocd gain vn AFS invisalingety S1.540 = - =
Equity in revnluation ingrement A3 AN - - -
Equity n sccumislmed crarslasion adisimen 4314 - - —
9391 - - -

On December 29, 2006, the investment in OPIl was sold together with certain NPAs of the Parent
Company (see Note 10,

As discussed in MNote 2. the SEC approved on November 7, 2002 the application of the
accumulated transiation adjustment of P16 hillion to eliminate the Parent Company’s remaining
deficit of #1.3 billion as of December 31, 2001, afier applymng the total reduction in par value
amounting o PT.6 billien. The SEC approval iz subject (o the following conditions: (a) remaining
translation adjustment of B310.7 million as of December 31, 2001 {shown as part of Capital Paid
in Excess of Par Value) will not be used to wipe out losses that may be incurred in the future
without prior approval of SEC; and (b} for purposes of dividend declaration, any future surplus
account of the Parent Company shall be restricted to the extent of the deficit wiped out by the
translution adjustment,
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As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, acquisition cost of the invesimenis in the Parenl Company
fimanicial statements include the translation adjustment and accumulated equity in net camings, net
of dividends subsequently reccived from the quasi-reorganization date, that were closed to deficit
on restruciuring date.

14, Tnvestment Properiies

The composition of and chonges in this account follow:

Conselbdaicd
P
Huilding amd
Lumil  Improvemsents Tordnd 2(HYS
il Thesusad Pesos)
g
Bolkanee a1 baginning of voar FIS017.09% BT, FI2EXT. 0N P2 RRS AFS
Al dithons 1281 558 LS00 Sl EHELE L] 1113987
Disposalsiothers (5177237 1,30, Vil [ 481.957) 2,182, 139)
Bakmnce at end of voar I131.711 B 3% 040 0L LG 12RT7. 207

Apcummlnged [oprociatiom
amd Inspairment Losses

Bukance at boginning of year 321007 2,769,209 4979 4% £,555 384
Dieprecialion - T4 ALT T AT J16, 268
Provinion fie mmpairmeni bisos G266 13,004 655 046 1829
Revenalvinthers = (1, 784.914) (1.784.914) 549,565
Bakance a1 end of vear 3 R52 848 1,795,742 686,555 5,070,436

Mgl Hook Valee i End of Year

00,1 0 BET4 ERD01 T PI6.B4T, THT

Faremi Eﬂ-!ll_'.'
B
Huilding sl
Lamd  Improvemenis Tidnl et
[ Thissamsd Pesns|
Cogt
Bulenee ot boginning of voar FEE O ENT 7 a0E 565 P13, 725063 LA T
Addditsons 2,181 558 1,501,500 EME 023,743
[ sposais/others (5,177.237) (1, 303,454) [6ABGY1)  [LIE2139)
Balance a1 end of vear 11,131,135 8297011 IAZH 46 3LTI5,362
Avcumalaicd Dyprocdation
and lmpalrment Lisses

Falance af heginning of year 1210078 2,750,286 860,561 4 0G5 381
Depreciation - T#e 14 TG4 267,345
Provision for bmpal et losse Gl 2 sl 15D B5E GdE 2182119
Revanal wiheas - i1, TA7, 013} (1,787 0335 544,413
Balanee ai end of ves 3852441 1,771,787 562450 3,064, 361
Mel Book Valee ol End of Year FI1EITHAM I"i.ﬂ_ﬁ-d-“ L4503, 748 Ble Fed 0

Cenain invesimen! properic: consisting of prime commercial propemies amountmg (o
£1.8 billion as of December 31, 2005 were pledged as collateral to secure the Parent Company s
bills payable to PINC inclusive of the bills payable transferred from DSP (see Nole 18],
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The fair value of the investment properties as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 pmounted 1o
P34.1 billion and B34,4 billion, respectively, as determined by independent and'or in-house

appraisers.

15.

Other Assels
This sccounl consists of:
o Consolidated
26 305 ik 20
i In Thowsand Pesos)

D lerred charges PSS L] PEZETA40  PRERIIOSE PAIET.I0
M AS wy b sodd b SPY - pet of allowanee for

wtedin losses of B5S bl Hom (Moses 10 and Téj 158,004 - 1,053,004 -
Dhefirred Eax astets - net (Mobe 25) 1,847,288 21 AITAGL 1,794,291 2598014
Prepaid expenses FrLE Il 123,139 £3,140 108,103
Sundiry da s LWL THATE .09 TE992
Miscel laneaus 1,131,531 | fE6,235 71,932 1277776

Deferred charges mainly represent the loss on sale to SPVa being amortized over 10 years i
allowed by RA No. 9182 (sce Notes 9 and 10).

Miscelaneous include exchange trading rights. Under the PSE rules, all exchange trading rights
arc pledged at its full valoe to the PSE to secure the payment of all debits due to other members off
the PSE arising out of or in connection with the present or future members® contracts.

The carrying values of the investment in PSE shares and the exchange trading right in the accounts
of PNB Securities were 2 [ollows:

2006 _ _2005
{In Thousand Pesos)
AFS investments - 50,000 PSE shares F14.000 F7.500
Exchunge truding rights 967 961
P14.967 PE.467

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the latest transacted price of the exchange trading right (as
provided by the PSE) amounted to B5.0 million and B35 million, respectively. As of
December 31, 2006, the market value of the PSE shares based on quoted price is P2R0 per share.
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16. Allowance for Impairment and Credit Losses

Changes m the allowance for impairment losses follow:

Canselisdated Pareet Compamy
Tl i i) Hilkh 2004
{Im Thouzsemd Pesas)
Balssce of beginning of yem
Frapesty snd eqgupment PFil5sll Fi28n22 Pal5ell PFI125501
Inwesiment propeties 4036 162 4. 147%, 4036, 162 4,143,864
nher gesers 1,008,022 254,684 06,151 2033
5370, 106 4,724,582 5168165 4,681 401
Prenilons dusieg the year L1650 S04,213 e 649 LIl L]
Dhispaveals. teansfers snd others {1,850, 10T) 140,311 (94r.514) R0
Bakance of end of vesr
Fropesty snd oguigninent (Mote 133 206,926 i R Inanla 125522
Evenienenl properies (Note [4) 4,004,211 4,004, |62 413402010 4,056,062
Oigr assets (Nade | 9) £15.512 08, (k2 51350 Ol 1% |
Investminis in subsidiaries and an associse
(N 13} - - 7

PAS6.649  PS.IT0.100  PA062A00 PS5 I68308

Changes in the allowanee for credil losses Tollow:

Comsalisd nied Pareat Compamy
2K Zih05 ik 205
{la Thonrand Pesos)

Holance a1 beginnng of voar
Lixins and ricceivables P4 130 080  PE2T 524006 PRROBETHE BTV OTEOTPD
AFS mvestmenis 113 346 527421 13X 844 537421
240 W2 L PR 24059528 27 RS 490

Alkwance on SPY subondnmod noscs chorged e

dhetic (Mole 9) = 1, B5E 290 - 1, B6E 209
E =i nl'l:hn.'-'e m lnrnunl!rlﬁ fior impairmend keases - 1,90 R0 = 1,913,544
Halbance ai heginning of year, as restaied 24108 o) A0, R40.517 pr LS N | 11,687,350
Prowiadons duslng Ehe yeor 1. 063683 - 2 MSEL0KT -
Accounis chenged off, transfers and others {TARIDS0E) (TAEAAIN  (AATEATY (7. SRT.TOR)
Bolamce of eoxd of vear

Loars ana eceimbdes Mot @) 13497121 241 X0, 080 13,1 T0.800 I3 036,787

AFS nvestriests (Mate 1) 45,428 1 X2 e 445,438 122846

MPAs o be sold i 5P (Mede | 5) £ 46310 - 5466510 -

FIOAOR961  PJ4255.920  PIS.182.541 B34 05625

17. Deposit Lianbilities

Of the total deposit libilities of the Parent Company, #7.4 billion in 2006 and #6.6 billion in 2005
are noninleredi-bearing. Remaining deposit liabilities generally earmed annual fixed imerest rales
ronging from 0.50% o 5.03% in 2006 and from 0,50% to 4.62% in 2005 for foreign cumency-
denominpied deposil labilines, and from 0 50% 1o 13.94% in 2006 and from 0.50% 1o 12,.66% in
2005 for peso-denominated deposit liabilities.
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Uner existing BSP regulations, non-FCDU deposit liabilities of the Parem Company are subject
o liqﬁd'? reserves equivalent to | 1L00% and statutory reserves equivalent to 10.00%. Availzhle
reserves follow:

2006 2005

{In Thousand Pesos)
Cash on hand B4.051,961 4,040,539
Due from BSP 12,566,759 3.719.362
Securities held under agreements to resell 15,700,000 12,300,000
AFS investments 10,383,733 9,477,683

P41,702.453 P29,537.584

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Parent Company was in compliance with such
regulations.

18,

Bills and Acceptances Payvable
This acoounl consists ol
Cansolldated Paremt Y
Dimh 20 200 215
{In Thausnnd Pesosp
Bilks payable o
BSP and [oca) banks FLATILSIS  PL9MPRE FRLOTISIAZ  PRSSS.H04
Forzign banks 1425893 1824408 114 EE8 213817
PRI sl olbes §.518.580 0 T BRI
10545 988 13,084 8410 §.0%) TEL 12382250
Acocptances outsianding 409,960 61035 A, ol 61033
FIDSSS 948 P11 145570 PIOAGI.TIS P K3

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, 70.31% and 70,70% of the bills payable of the Group and the
Parent Company, respectively, are subject to periodic mnterest repricing. The annual interest rates
ranged from 3.70% to 6.19% in 2006 and from 2.13% 10 5,43% in 2005 for foreign currency-
denomimated borrowings, and from 3.50% to 12.00% in 2006 and from 3.00% to 12.00% in 2003
for peso-dencminated borrowings.

The Parent Company s bills payable to BSP includes the transferred liabilities from Maybank
amounting to P19 billion and P2.4 billion as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively,
(see Mote O,

Under the MOA mentioned in Note 2, notes pavable to BSP of P13.9 billion as of October 28,
2001 was assigned 10 PDIC. Such assignment increased the Parent Company's total obligation to
PDIC 1w P23.9 billion. In October 2001, of the tolal obligation, (a) P10.0 billion was settled thru
“dacion en pago” of the Parent Company’s assets comprising of loans to, and debt securities
issued hy various government entities, (h) #7.8 hillion was converted into conventible preferred
shares of the Pareni Company, and {c) the balamce of #6. | billion was converled into a nobes
payuble in ten vears with interest of 91=day T-bill rate plus 1.00%, As of December 31, 2006 and
20035, the balance of the notes payable included under bills payable to PDIC amounted 1o

P6.1 billion.
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On October 14, 2006, the Bank and PDIC amended the loan and mortgage agreement by way of
substitution of collateral at the request of the Parent Company. PDIC has agreed to release its
morigagze lien on the real estate properties and in substitution, the Parent Company assigned
favor of PDIC certain government secarities with a face value of P6.2 billion as of December 31,
2005 [see Mote 7).

Bills Payable - Others also includes funding from the Development Bank of the Philippines, Land
Bank of the Philippines and the Social Security Svstem under which the Parenl Company peis as a
conduit for certain Mnancing programs of these institutions. Lending to such programs is shown
under Loans and receivables (see Note 9.

Interest expense on Bills payable and other borrowings consists of:

Comslidated Paremt Comprany
iy JiWks pLiEY ihni, Ipas 2
(1 Thoussnd Pesos)
Hill poyahle P63 TTO PRAG D PFTIR RET PEERALT PHTEET2 PO 14|
Bearrivwings 63 T2 IR0 R0 Kl 1 AL 362 Ak RO AR
Chbwrs 154074 LT 45,133 IS0 43 AT 42 XhT

FLESAINS PILI24R66  PIIS6612  WISOSORF  PILOSTALE P, | 25600

19, Acerued Taxes, Interest and (iher Expenses

This sceount eonsists off

Consobldaed Paront Comjpany
MG oS MW 2015
e T housssd Fesos)
Enleris] FIST5004  PLOTIIIZ PRATATHY  P29GDGHT
Tases (FENIJHi | 54,2010 ([T 142,403
{_Jlfm___g e [ ) | G LG !EI-IL'I-!-I 1,484,526

PLERATT  PLTHGET  RGHIIELD MRS

20. Subordinated Debt

On May 26, 2006 and August 3, 2006, the Marent Company™s BOD approved the issuance of
unsecured subordinated notes of F5.5 billion that qualify as lower tier 2 capital. The MB i its
Resolution Mos, 979 doted Aupust 3, 2006 and 374 dated July 6, 2006 approved this issuance
subjiect to the Parent Company™s compliance with certain conditions.

Relative 1o this, on August 10, 2006, the Parenl Company Bsued P55 billion, 108 subordinated
nodes (the 20046 Motes) due 1n 2006,
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Among the significant terms and conditions of the issuance of such 2006 Motes are:

(a) Issue price ar 100.00% of the principal amount;

(b} The 2006 Notes hear interest af the rale of 10.0% per snnum from and including August 10,
2006 to but excluding August 10, 2001, Inerest will be puyable quarterly in arrears on the
10th of Febreary, May, August and Movember of each vear, commencing on August 10, 2006,
Unless the 2006 Notes are previously redeemed, interest from and including August 10, 2011
to bul excluding August 10, 2016 will be reset ol the equivalent of the [ive-year Money
Market Association of the Philippines 1 Fixed Rate Treasury Notes (MART1 FXTN) as of
resct date multiplicd by 80.0%, plus a spread of 4.4935% per annum. The stepped-up interest
will be payable quarterly in arears on February, May., August and November of cach year,
commencing on Movember 10, 2011;

(c) The 2006 Notes constitute dinect, unconditional unsecured and subordinated ohligations of the
Parent Company and at all times rank pari passu without preference among themselves and at
least equally with all other present and future unsecured and subordinated obligations of the
Parent Company;

{d} The Parent Company may redeem the 2006 Notes in whole but not in part at a redemption
price equal to 100,00% of the principal amount together with accrued and unpaid interest on
the dav following the last day of the tenth interest period from issue date, subject to the prior
consent of the BEP. The 2006 Notes may nol be redecmed at the oplion of the noetebolders;
mnd

(e} Each natehobder, by accepting the 2006 Notes, imevocably agrees and acknowledges that: (a)
it may not exercise of claim any right of set-off in respect of any amount owed by the Parent
Company arising under or in connection with the 2006 Notes: and (h) it shall to the fullest
sz;_mlpmniundhy applicable law, waive and be deemed to have waived all such rights of set-

On December 19, 2003, the Parent Company's BOD approved the raising of lower tier 2 capital
e issuance in the local capital market of subordinated notes with maximum principal

amount of P3.0 billion maturing in 10 years but callable with step-up on August 16, 2009, The

notes bear a coupon rate of 12.50% per annum with step-up after five years,

The issuance of the foregoing subordinated notes under the terms approved by the BOL was
approved by the MB, in its Resolution No. 06/01-23-04 dated January 22, 2004, subject to the
Parent Company’s compliance with certain conditions.

Relative 1o this, on February 16, 2004, the Parent Company issued P10 billion, 12,500
Subordinamed Motes (the 2004 Motes) due in 2004, As discussed in Note 30, on March 2, 2004,
the Parent Company swapped the proceeds from the 2004 Notes into USD, which are then
invested in USD-denominated interbank placements, Republic of the Philippines (ROP) and US
Treasury honds,

Among the significant tenms and conditions of the issuance of such Notés are:

(a} Tssue price at 100.00% of the principal amount;

(b) The 2004 Notes bear interest at the rate of 12.50% per annum from and including February 16,
2004 1o but excluding February 16, 2009, Interest will be payable semi-annually in amrears on
Februery 16 and Avgust 16 of each year, commencing on August 16, 2004, Unless the Moles
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are previously redeemed, interest from and including February 16, 2009 to but excluding
February 16, 2004 will be reset at 11.23%, the equivalent of the Ave-vear MART ] FXTN as
of February 9, 2004, plus a spread of 5.27% per annum, The stepped-up interest will be
payable semi-annually in arrears on February 16 and August 16 of each year, commencing on
August 16, 2000,

(ch The 2004 Notes constinie direct, unconditional unsecured and subordinated obligations of the
Parcnt Company and at all times rank pari passu without preference among themselves and at
lemst equelly with all ollwr preseni and fulure unsecured and subordinaed obligaions ol the
Parent Company;

{d) The Parent Company may redeem the 2004 Notes in whole but not in part at a redemption
price equal to 100.00% of the principal amount together with accmied and unpaid inferesi on
the day following the last day of the 1enth interest period from issue date, subject (o the prior
consent of the BSP. The 2004 Motes may not be redeemed at the option of the notcholders;
anid

{¢) Each notcholder, by accepting the 2004 Notes, irrevocably agrees and acknowledges that:

{a} it may not exercise or clamm any night of set-off n respect of any amount owed by the
Parent Company arising under or in conneciion with the 2004 Moles; and (b} it zhall fo the
fullest extent permitied by applicable low, waive and be deemed 1o have waived all such rights
of set-ofT.

Az of December 31, 20416 andl 2005, subordinated debt i5 net of unamort sed transaciion cost of
#110.3 million and P41.6 million, respectively.

21. Other Liabilities
Thiz account consiss ol
Camsolidated Parent Conspany
Toe 2(HK5 I0h L]
{1n Thousand Fesos)
Agxnunis payable P, 139 444 P26 T PR AR 2T PR SE0, 144
Rilks puschased - contra 1903228 2804 257 2993 218 2,894,237
Slangper's checks and domand drafls outstanding 1 HT A1 4TS L9KT.410 472 B0
Suliarpghrn dlruses s cannall csids Bt o ruad S, 283 G4 537 kb, 2R3 827
Due w cther honks 436,087 T, S60 £13,004 B30 HEd
Reserve for unssmed premboms IETOTS 293 47 - -
Retireosend liakiSty (MNose 23 ) e L8 | 7o kld IRN I 7%.RId
[hig jos NP 114,31 114,54 14 14,704
D liarrad credies (L1 § ] EELTS 1K 625 HE 250
Niiscellanenus IR 0,704 54 1,177 568 1,571,759
Fil FIEOEL I i OELRYY ROl | 54
P HI1 LI PP I N E N ATI O N AL B AN K



22 Equity

Capital stock as of Decomber 31, 2006 and 2005 consists of {in thousand pesos except for par
value and number of shares):

Shares  Amoust _ Sheen  Amoum Sk e
Preferred - Pl par value
Asthirised I#5175444 15,1 75,44 LM IR
Essped il i sanding

Tinlaree ul begimning of yonr OETTH P2ATLID :H.I'Iu'!-.-l-l* FIEDVOIE  B95,ITH444  FTA07.008
“ - - -
4352751 i ie |

Amthorasd 1ARLAT 4, 59T 1JF54, R 24557 154,824,557
beed el ouintanding
Hilangs al bogmning of year S les I8TEENDT  FTETRATY 10122009 ITa0MATY 13 020K0%
Conversisn frem prefomal siock — EREY. | 481 7651 5632, T0E -
Pntwses ai endl of vesr SIARALIBS  20,755517 1-@&&1 !;méﬁ M-ﬂl [ENEEETL]
T S2NET e

The Parent Company shares are listed m the PSE.
The preferred shares have the following leatures:
(a) MNon-veting, non-cumulative, fully participating in dividends with the common shares;

(h) Convertible, at any time at the option of the holder who is gualified to own and hold common
shares;

ic) With mandatory and automatic conversion inle commaon shares upon the sale of such preferred
shares (o any person other than the NG or any GOCC"s; and

(d) With rights 1o subscribe to additiona] new preferred shares with all of the features described
a

In 2005, the NG sold a portion of its prefiemmed sharcholdings in the Purent Company o LTG. In
accordance with the Anticles of [ncorporation, the prefemed shares wene automatically converted
inin commamon shares,

Under existing BSP regulations, the determination of the Parent Company’s compliance with
repulatory requirements and ratios is based on the amount of the Parent Company’s “unimpaired
capital” {regulatory net worth) reported to the BSP, which is determined on the basis of regulatory
sccounting policies, which differ from PFRS in zome respects, In addition, the risk-based capital
ratio of a bank, expressed as a percentage of qualifying capital to risk-weighted assets, should not
be less than 10.00% for both solo basis (head office and branches) and consolidated basis {parent
bank and subsidiarics engaged in financial allied undertakings but excluding insurance
companies ), Qualifying capital and risk-weighted assets are computed based on BSP regulstions.
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As discussed in Note 2, the BSP has approved the booking of additional appraisal increment of
P431.8 million in 2001 on properties and recognition of the same in determining the capital
adequacy ratio, and booking of translation adjustment of P 1.6 billion in 2000 representimg the
increase in peso value of the investiment in foreign subsidiaries for purposes of the guasi-
reorganization and rehabilitation of the Parent Company provided that the same shall be excluded
for dividend purposes. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Group was in compliance with the
enpital adequacy ratio, The capital-to-risk assets rtio of the Group as reported 10 the BSP as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, was |9.6% and 17.2%, respecuively.

21, Retiremeni Plan

The Parent Company has separaie funded noncontributory defined benefit retirement plans
covering substantially all its officers and regular employvees.  Under these retirement plans, all
covered officers and emplovees are entitled 1o cash bemefits after safisfying certain age and service
requirements.

The Parent Company’s annual contribaution to the retirement plan consists of a payment covering
the current service cosl, amortization of the unfunded actuarial acerued liability and inlerest on
such unfunded sctuarial Bability. The retivement plan provides o retirement benelit equal 1o one
hundred and twelve percent { 1 12.00%) of plan salary per month for every year of credit service.

The following table shows the nciuarinl assumptions as of January 1, 2006 and 2005 used in
determining the retirement benefit obligahion of the Parent Company:

26 2015
Expected rate of retum on plan assets 10%% 0%
Discount raie 14% 2%
1,004 effective
Salary rate increase B Julv 1, 2006
% peT yeur
thercafter

Asg of December 31, 2006, the discount rate used in determining the retirement obligation is 7%,

The overall expected rate of retum on plan assets is determined based on the market prices
prevailing on that date applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

Actuarial valuation is made ar least every two years.

The amount of liability recognized in the Parent Company statement of condition {included under
Other linbilities) is as follows (in thousand pesos);

2006 2005
Prescnt valuc of defined benefit obligation #1,986,807 R7735,689
Fair valuc of plan asscts 45053 710317

1,041,754 63,372
Unrecornized actuanial losses {gains) (757811} 114,452
Retirement liability P283.,943 P179.524
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The amounts included in Compensation and fringe benefits in the Parent Company statement of
income are as follows (in thousand pesos -

216 2005
Current service cost P6H 850 P60 403
Interest cost 108,507 93,425
Expected retum on plan asscts (71,032) (67,733
Net actuarial gaims recognized during the year "{Eﬂﬁi : mg! 399}
1

The actual return on plan asscts amounied o P289.9 million, P78.5 million and P37.5 million in
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The movements in the retirement liability recognized in the Parent Company statement ol
condition follow (in thousand pesos):

e 2006 2005
Balance st beginning of year F179.524 POG, 128
Retirement expense 104,119 81,696
Balance at end of year FI81,943 P179.824

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as Tollows (in thousand pesos):

p{L1Y 20045
Defimed benefit obligation a1 beginning of year P775.689 P&66T 28
Interest cost 108,597 93423
Current service cost HH. 859 60,403
Renefits paid (55, 168) (45.467)
Actuarial loss 1,088,430 =
Defined benefit obligation at end of year 1,986,807 P775,689
Changes in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows (in thousand pesos):
i 2006 2005
Fair value of plan assets ol begimning of year #710,317 P677,330
Expected renem 71,032 67,733
Bencfits paid (55,168) (45,467)
Actuarial gain 118,872 10,721
Fair value of plan asscts a1 end of year F945,053 pri0s17

The fir value of the plan assets a3 off December 31, 2006 and 2005 includes the fair value of the
invesiments in the Parent Company shares of stocks amounting to F344.7 million and
P1E4.1 million, respectively.

The Bank helicves that the plan has enough funds to pay any retiring employee in 2007
Accordingly, it does not expect o contribute to the plan in 2007.
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The major categories of plan assels ns a percentage of the fair value of 1olal plan assets are os
Fioel lovws:

1] 20035

Debt securifies B3 %
Parent Company's own common shares 37 25
Recvivables from related parties 10 &
Equity securities and others - I

100 10:0%

Information on the Parent Company’s pension plan in 2006 {in thousand pesos) is as follows:

Present value of the define benelit obligntion P ,9R6 807
Fair value of plan asscts 045 043
Deficit i plan assets 1,041,764
Experience adjustments arising on plan Habilities 52968
Experience adjustments arising on plan psses JIBET2

As of December 31, 2006 and 20035, the net retirement linbility (asset) included in Miscellancous
liabilities and asses, respectively, of certaim subsidianies of the Group Tollows (in thowsand pesos):

B Eanope PMB Capitnl PNB Scouritics Japan-FNE FMB Cien
December 31, 2005 P- B P- P2 169 (P70 5)
Deecember 31, 2006 50,803 (1.397) 935 1,813 (T.B36)

Retirament expense of the Group changed to operations, included in Compensation and fringe
benefits in the statement of income amounted to B107 9 million, B92_4 million and #8035 million
in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

. Lases

The Parent Company [eases the premises occupied by majonity of its branches (about 41.59% of
the branch sites are Parent Company-owned). Some of its subsidianes also lease the premises
occupied by their Hend OMices and most of their bramches. The lease contructs are for periods
ranging from | to 25 vears and are renewable at the Group”s option under certain terms and
conditions. Varioes lease contracts inclide escalation cliuses, most of which bear an annual rent
imcremss of 10%.

Rent expense charged against cument operations (included in “Occupancy and oquipment-related
costs” in the statement of income) amounied to B346.28 million in 2006, P383.2 million in 2003
and P369.00 million in 2004 for the Group, of which P247.63 million in 2006, P274.7 million in
2005 and P235.1 million in 2004 pertain to the Parcnt Company.

87
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Future minimum rentals pavable under non-cancelable operating leases follow:

Cimzadidated Parend Comiguaay
1806 205 j0en oo
{In Thowamsd Pesos)

Within one vear Flie 08 PRAIH Bi50 380 Fl63632
Eveyoind ome vear bol mot mone than

five yeuss LLLEART] 204,013 Jan, T 2709

Beyond more than five yeurs 0,483 AL 51,680 AX019

BRIZINE B3G5 500 BES0TE] PATEA |

The Parent Company has entered into commencial property leases on its investment property.
These non-cancelable leazes have remaining lease terms of between two and five years. Some
leases include escalation clauses (such us 5% per year) In 2006, 2005 and 2004, wotal rent income
(included under *Miscellangous income’ ) amounted 1o P20%.9 million, P172.2 million and

1835 million, respectively, for the Group and B207.5 million, #171.04 million and

P187.4 million, respectively, for the Parent Company.

Future mimimurm rentals receivable under non-cancelable operating lenses follow:

2006 2005

{In Thousand Pesos)
Within one vear P30,587 P44 400
Bevond one year but not more than five vears 6,290 22,200
PI6ETT P66, 600

. Income and Oriher Taxes

Under Philippine tax laws, the Parent Company and certain subsidiaries ane subject 1o percentage
and other taxes (presented as Taxes and Licenses in the statement of income) as well as income
taxes. Percentage and other laxes paid consist principally of gross receipts tax and documentary
St L.

Income taxes include the corporate income tax, discussed below, and final taxes paid which
represents final withholding tax on gross interest income from govermment securities and other
deposit substinnes and income from the FCDU transactions, These income taxes, as well as the
deferred tax benefits and provisions, ane presented as *Provision for income tax” in the statement
of income.

Prior to November 1, 2005, the RCIT rate was 32%. Interest allowed as a deductible expense is
reduced by an amount equivalent 1o 38% of interest income subjected 1o final tax. RA No. 9337,
Anm Act Amending Nattornal Internal Revenue Code, provides that effective November 1, 2005, the
RCIT rate shall be 35% until December 31, 2008, Staming January 1, 2009, the RCIT rate shall be
310%. Interest expose allowed ux o deductible expense is reduced by 429 sturting November |,
2003 unil December 31, 2008, Staming January 1, 2009, imerest expense allowed as a deductible
expense shall he reduced by 33% of interest income subjected o final tax.
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An MCIT of 2% on modified pross incomse is computed and compared with the RCIT. Any
excess of MCIT over the RCIT is deferved and can be used as a tax credit against future income
tux linbility for the next three years. In additlon, NOLCO s allowed as o deduction from taxable
incone in the next three vears from the perod of incurmence for the Parent Company and cemain

suhsidiaries.

FCDU offshore income {income from non-residents) is tax-exempt while gross onshore income
{income from residents) is generally subject to 10%: income tax. In addition, inferest income on
deposit placement with other FCDUs and offshore banking units {OBUs) is taxed at 7.50%.

RA No. 9294, which became effective in May 2004, provides that the income derived by the
FCDU from foreign currency transactions with nen-residents, OBUs, local commercial banks
including branches of foreign banks is tax-exempt while interest income on forcign currency loans
from residents oiher than OBUSs or olher depossony bimks under the expanded system i3 subject 1o

10,008 Income 1ax,

Provision for income tax consests of

Cansilldated Fareatl Company
T 25 204 W 25 24
ilm Thewnand Peses)
Clirrend PFTIR.E5D FTI2.602 B4, TR PEIRRSD PI52,654 BITH.T9]
Lhelepred 194,127 1179024 L 2002 L1790 24 -
P26 PLESL TG BEIE 142 PFTSRETY WLTILTTE B4TE, ™93
The components of net deferred tax assets inclhuded in *Other assets” follow:
Cansolidaied Parest Company
(MM 2003 2UHMy RLILES
iln Thousand Pesod )
[hedermed pax asat on:
Allowamce for impairmen lnsses BE I8N TRE P A0 S0 F 254 64 R R
WOLCO mnd athers 1 7 - -
MBI 3075 1,154,091 1am1 ]
[hedeied s Eatwliny an
Eesnluntioa increment on land and buoildings HR3 383 631 415 £R3 353 634415
Unrealized tding gaine on derivatives ket 138 850 318,704 138,850
Unealized galn on AFS invesinsents 43,150 JER 1 23,104 8112
b IR9.470 219,200 -
154100 BE, ik 1460, 40 ET377
(] ,3-175.5.! PRETT 463 P‘I,ﬂ-l.EiI B2 5084934
Deferred tax charged {credited) directly to equity during the vear is as follows:
Concolidnied Furemt Company
2004 200: 204 2005
iln Thousand Faos)
Revalamion increment on kand andd baildings Fildnd [ a2 L BT (P42 204)
Unreslired galm on AFS Invesomenss {63.551) ak.113 (65,0 Rz
Others 114,995 - 1088 -
I!-HE‘I‘! PiSRIR HHEI PiSRIE
HI1I L1 PP I N E H A T I O H A L B A N K



Based on the five-year [inancial forecast prepared by manngement and duly approved by the
Executive Committee of the BOD, the Parent Company”s deferred tax assets of P1.E billion and
P2.6 billion as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, is expected to be realized from its
taxable profits within the next three to five vears. The Parent Company and cenain subsidianies
did nid recopnize deferred 1ax assets on the following temporary differences:

Consalidated Parest Company
Pl 25 P Hins
(I Thousand Pesas)
Ivislmicnd proportics;
Allawance for impairment losses PAIMZIT PAO3E1EY P20 P06 16D
Accamulated depreciation I 26R. 260 1.924,159 1. 108206 154,159
Fadr valug adjestment (6,061.609) (4057047 (6,863,60%)  (4.057.047)
AREESR 1903314 AREEGR 1,m3.304
Allowance for impairmeni bosses on kanns
and reoc]vables RISIARE 1260056 BIa5@03 11375272
BOLOO INETIALT  WRETRIID DORSLESR  (OLASEIDY
MICIT B850 42551 A48 41 430
Chars. __L4sR370 617,937 L396IRK 527614

PI0.0u0.092  PI606TIET  FMLB06A1P PI3546. 798

Details of the Group™s NOLCOD follow:

Y Incumed Amounl Lsad Expired Halance Expiry Year
i In Thouzand Pesos)

T2 b |9 izl P, 124 vl 2007 10 M08
a3 23R 00 2238200 - i
004 1, Tl - I, PO R 2oiy?
L 0240 ) b - 1029, 1 1) 2008 1 200
2005 12174522 - L1782 e020n

l‘g.lﬂ.‘?}-‘? I“EI}!IISH HD..'HEW'.'

The Group's NOLCO of P12.1 billion in 2006 and #7.0 billion in 2005 includes the Parent
Company™s loss on sale of NPAS to 5PV companies amounting to P9.6 billion in 2006 and

F5.4 billion in 2005 which can be claimed as deductions from taxable income for a period of five
conseculive lwxable years immediately following the vear of sule,

The Ciroup's NOLOO includes net operating losses of PNB Corporation - Guam from 1992 10
1999 amounting to P12, million recognized based on applicable tax laws similar to those of USA.
Guam™s NOLCO matures 10 vears from the date such NOLCO was incumed.

Details of the Group's MCIT follow:
Yeur Incurrod Amount Usad 'Expired Balance Expiry Yeur
(In Thousand Pesos)
2003 Pa53 P53 - 200
2004 16,428 - 16,428 2007
2005 23510 = 25510 200E
200 4,045 - 14,045 0gs
56,936 Pa53 P53.931
— -
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Details of the Parent Company's NOLCO follow:

Year Incarred Amowint Used Expirad Balance Expiry Y car
{In Thousand Pesos)
2003 BIIB0.9TD BEL 1805979 B- 210G
2004 1689, 030 - 1 689030 2007
A TG 120 - T2, 30 208 p 210
LI [ 12,132,800 - 12032 B 200 o 2001
P3,633,028 B2 1RO F20LR51.059

Details of the Parent Company’s MCTT follow:;

Yiear Incarred Aot Used/Fxpirod Halance Fxpary ¥ car
{In Thoussnd Peeo)
el | 1] PITh BTG B 20y
LIS 15,773 - 15,773 2047
L1 25,510 - 25510 d
i 13,628 = 13.638 2009
B35,087 BT Fa4.911

The reconciliation between the slalutory income tax rate to elfective income 1ax rale follows:

Comsalbdatid Parent Conipany
TG 20015 204 2ilisk Z'I'Illj e

SAmutory ingome B Fc Bt J250% 3,000 ARG  31.H0% A2 00
Tax elflicts ol

Lirmecognized defemed s mseis 527 76,27 T4.87 41,13 a6 82 14128

Mon-deductible epenses 10,76 10,38 E Fir 13.74 13.19 T8

FEDLU mieoeme bedire {I8.02) {25.3%) 44,54 (12K (33.21) {Hd.A%5)

Tax-gxempl Eegome (120 {1238 {75 (AT {1575) {15.02)

Tox-paid I [(3.94) i6.54) (1. M 3Any (T2 (51.28)

[ Hhiers - il - .3 (0. 7H) - - =
Effeetive ineome B mie I TN 63.19% SLRI%  RTJd% D181%

Revenue Regulations (RR} Mo, 10-2002 defines expenses to be classified as entertainment,
amusement and recreation expenees ( EARE] and st a limit for the amount that is deduchible for
tax purposes. EARE are limited to | .00% of nel revenues for sellers of serviees. EARE charpged
against current operations (included in *Miscellaneous expense’} amounted to P11LT million in
2006, B116.1 million in 2005 and B102.4 million in 2004 for the Group and B111.7 million in
2006, P110.1 million in 2005 and P98.2 million in 2004(see Note 26),

26, Miscellancous Income and Expeases

Miscellaneous mcome consists of:

Conuslidstod Paread Company
Tl 2005 J0{H ol s i T
{In Theowusand Pescsi
Met gain oo sale orexchange of
mrisgis FIAT ey PFIT2 342 PRI 3TN P78 (LR R
Remnn| (Moies 24 med 26 i #1K 172,200 185,504 T ARS 171,838 L8731
Oihers 626, THS TES 5T #84.276 TIHAA1 4 THRETY

FLIS3,THE 1,008,021 B1,711,392 W2,250,650 l‘1.IIE.}_." Kl JRLITT
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Miscellancous expenses consist of:

Consolidated = Parem
— T e oT

(In Thouwsand Pesos)

Imarance EARL 535 e e P90 IRR  EATRNI} PRI SRD PRO6 25K
Foaeelamue 187,138 247858 213,163 LLPARL J4T.HER 133,165
I'romotiomal 134,325 | 53510 5,078 46330 152,192 B2
Management and professional feec (LR L ARRERT 143,199 iz 2432510 135 450
ian and Fwvel 133,742 | 23807 | 23,080 iz74m [RERL 10642
Stasoriery sl sugplie usal 122024 | 2007 107,704 ii6 079 119,632 103, 76
Represeramtion amd enteriainmend
Mo 2) 17,7 | Tir) 102,395 111655 LRATE] b b
(bt LITLI3E  LINT.TI3 HAS 184 BIS420 601,528 305282

F2AM.237  PLo42331  PLOILSI) PLIN4IS9 PLOISUAS  PLAGIAEIT

Miscellancous - others include information technology-related expenses, postage, telephone and
telegraph, repairs and maintenances, EARE and litigation expenses.

27.

Trust Operations

Securities and other properties held by the Parent Company in fiduciary or agency capacities for
its customers are not included in the accompanying statement of condition since these are not
asscts of the Parent Company. Such assets held in trust were carried at a value of B14.1 billion
and P14.9 billion as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively (see Note 29). In connection
with the rrust functions of the Parent Company, govermment securilies amounting to

P157.9 million and P152.0 million (included under *AFS investments’ and *HTM investmenis®) as
of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, ore deposited with the BSP in compliomee with trust

regulations.

In complinnce with existing banking regulations, the Parent Company transferred from deficit to
surplus reserves of #17.1 million in 2006, #13_4 million in 2005 and B36.5 million in 2004,
comesponding to the 10.00% of the net income realized From its trust, investment management and
other fiduciary business until such related surplus reserve constitutes 20.00% of its regulatory

capital.

2%, Related Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of business, the Parent Company has loans and other transactions with s
subsidiaries and affiliates, and with certain DOSRI. Under the Parent Company”s policy, these
loans and other transactions are made substantially on the same terms as with other individuals
and businesses of comparable risks. The amount of direct credit accommodations to cach of the
Parerd Company™s DIOSEL, T of which must be securedd, should nol exceed the smount of
their respective deposits and book value of their respective investments in the Parent Company. In
the agpregate, DOSRI loans generally should not exceed the Parent Company's equity or 15% of
the Parent Company”s (oial loan portfolio, whichever is lower. As of December 31, 2006 and
2005, the Parent Company was in compliance with such regulations.
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The information relating to the DOSR] loans of the Group follows (amounts in thousand pesos)c

1006 2005

Total cutsianding DOSRI loans
Inclugivie af loans extended 1o NG and
GOCCs PI12574.264 B0, 714,504
Exclusive of loans extended to NG
and GOCCs 2ATIADS 2,757,635
Percent of DOSRI loans to total |oans
Inclusive of loans extended to WG and
GOCCs 20.85% 15.33%
Exclusive of loans extended to NG
and GOCICs 4. 10% 3.94%
Percent of unsecured DOSR] Toans to total
MISKEI loans
[nclugive of loans extendad o WG and
GOCCs 0.75% 1.61%
Exclusive ol lonns extended to NG
and GOCCs d.82% 6.25%
Percent of past due OSSR loans to total
DOSR loans 1.23% 0.05%
Percent of nonperforming DOSE] loans 1o
total SR loans = =

In accordance with existing B5P regulations, the reported DOSRE] performing loans exclude lopns
extended o certain borrowers before these bomowers became DOSELL

The information relating to Pareat Company”s reccivables and other accommedations 1o
government umits follows:

2006 05

(In Thousand Pesos)
NGGOOCS with NG guaranty PT.H28. 955 B5,052,8504
GG 2.471,903 3 004,065

P10,100.858 P7.956,869

In the computation of the minimum allowance DOSRI loans (the lower of the Parent Company's
equity or 15%% of the Parent Company s total portfolio), the receivables from NG and GOCCs with
NG guaranty are not included.

The Parent Company has bease apreements with some of its subsidiaries. In 2005, the lease
agreement was amended to indicate the share of the subsidianies in the maintenance of the building
in licu of rental paymenis. The income related 1o these agrecments amounting Lo

P48 million in 2006, P47 million in 2005 and P2.4 million in 2004 is included in “Miscellansous
mcome” 1n the statement of imcome.
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On January 31, 2007, BSP Circular No. 560 was issued providing the rules and regulations that
govern loans, other credit accommodations and guaramees granted 1o subsidizries and affiliates of
banks and quasi-banks. Under the said Circular, votal ousstanding exposures to each of the bank’s
subsidiaries and affiliates shall not exceed 10% of bank’s net worth, the unsecured portion of
which shall not exceed 5% of such networth, Further, the total outstanding exposures 1o
subsidiaries and affiliates shall not exceed 209 of the networth of the lending bank. BSP Circular
No. 560 is effective on February 15, 2007.

Thee sigmificant account balances with respect 1o related parties included in ihe financial statements
(after appropriate eliminations have been made) follow:

206 2008
L Interest Lasems Imemest
Related Party Reeelhvnhie Imcome Recrivable Income
e Theouisnd eun)

Formune Tobssos Compodation 0 SER) H125, %42 120000 s e
Asia Bereveery Inc. S e 43.66T Z{W) 0 &9 3RS
Asian lretitite of hasagemien 144,554 i5313 154,425 12343
Philippine Ajrlines 6497 - - -
Chess 22055 12072 182913 71,202

4 7338 11

The compensation of the key management personnel fiollows:

Comsnlidated Pareni
ik 2005 2004 201k 2003 M
10 Thoussed Pesay
Short term employes benefits  FIOSI3  PI01522  PIDGASE  B482%  PUGOS9  PSASIS
Post-employment bemefite 6 5912 7 3, 7RI 53
P11405 [ i P5a.82) [T

. Commitments and Contingent Liahillries

In the normal course of business, the Group makes various commitments and incurs certain
contingent linbilities that are mot presented in the finuncial ststements including several suits and
claims renain unsettled. Mo specific disclosures on such unsettled assets and claims are made
becausc any such specific disclosures would projudice the Group's position with the other partics
with whom it is in dispute, Such excmption from disclosures is allowed under PAS 37,
Provisions, Cortingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The Group and iis legal counse] believe
that any losses arising from these contingencics which are not specifically provided for will not
have a material adverse effect on the Minancial statements.

In Movember 1994, the BSP, Maybank and the Parent Company executed 3 Memorandum of
Agreement {MA) providing for the settlement of Maybank's P3.0 billion liabilitics 1o the BSP,
Under this MA, the Parent Company is jointly and severally lisble with Maybank for the full
compliance and satisfaction of the terms and conditions therein. The MA provides for the creation
of an escrow fund 1o be administered by the BSP where all collections from conveyed assets and
cerain annual guaranieed payments required under the MA are 1o be deposited.
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Relative 1o the sale of the Parent Company’s 607 interest in Maybank, the Parent Company has
requested the BSP to consider the revision of the terms of the MA 1o, among others, (a) delete the
provision on the annual puarantesd payments in considerntion of an immediate payment by the
Parent Company of an agreed amount, and (b) exclude Mavbank as a panty to the MA. On May 7,
1997, the BSP approved the Parent Company’s request to amend the terms of the MA, subject 1o
the following conditions among others:

a) The Pareni Company shall remit 21300 million 1o the escrow account oul of the proceed=
feom sale:

b} The Pareni Company shall remat to the escrow accound an amount equivalent to 50% of any
profit that may be realized by the Parent Company on account of the sale: and

) I the amount in the escrow sccount has not reached the total of B30 billion by June 30, 2013,
the difference shall be paid by the Parent Company by way of a deldt to its regular account
with the BSP,

On Movember 28, 1997, the Parent Company remitied B 130.0 million in compdfiance with wem (a)
The Parent Company anticipates that the payment of B150.0 million to the BSP together with the
existing balance of the funds in escrow as of that dave will allow the escrow sceount 1o reach the
required B3.0 billion carlier than programmed. This has effectively released the Parent Company
from any further payments under the MA. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the total trust
pssets of the escrow socount mainiained with Use BSP armounted to P20 billion and PL7T billion,
respectively. Average vield during the vear ranged from 1 1.00% to 16.00%. Management expects
that the value of the eserow aceount by 2013 will be mors than adequate to cover the B30 billion
linbility due the BSP.

The Parent Company’s remaining investment in Mayvbank was sold on June 29, 2004), The sale
was approved by the BSP on August 16, 2000,

The following is a summary of varous commitments, contingent assets and contingent liabilitics
al their equivalent peso contractual amownts:

Copsalidated Pareni Campany
lisba 2005 B 05
[In Thaisnaid Pésash
Trusl deporiment socoants (sale 37§ Pl I30.582 Pl 03ETHI R4 BN F40E TR
Dreficiency chims receivable 1L T2 446 9029 IRT 12,763, 100 8.9 387
Linussd commercial lefters of credit B2 R 5224 1k 6,2 R1G 5213104
Inwased bills B collection &5 300 B ARENUT 6533310 RS 500
Conlirmed expert letiees ol oredil b 2 ARE T 2, TER 090 el ]
Thnmending guamneess [ssued 351947 1T2683 141,567 1&T.3TH
Chaiwaed bills fior colloetion 151738 JE00a 152,738 18000
ther cordmpont sooemis SE403 47 00 51,561 49,500
liems beeld &8 ool Inigral LT 1,708 1.0 1748
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30, Derivative Financial Instruments

The table below shows the fair values of derfvative financial instruments entered into by the
Parent Company, recorded as derivative asscts or derivative liabilities, topether with the notional
amounts. The notional amount is the amount of a derivative’s underlying asset, reference rie or
index and is the basis upon which changes in the value of derivatives are measured. The notional
amounis indicate the volume of trensactions ooistanding @< of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and
are not indicative of either market risk or credit risk (amounts in thousands, except average

forward me)
200
Average Motisnal
_ _ Assels Lishdlities  Forward Rare Ameini*
Frocitandbng derivarives:
Currency frwsnds and swaps
Ly
] L B 4900 18858
IPY - 5,16l 740 1130, Bl
CAD il - 116 150
Oithers A7 B o 1608
SELL:
LS TaA442 Sln EL A L LREUI)
EUR 121% i 1431 5900
1y 6E - 11743 150
Others 1476 188 = 6,402
Cross currency swips THE 36T - 5634 51253
Embedded derivatives:
Currency forwandy &1 - - Hi
Crodit defauh swaps 106,742 - - 121,708
FR61.067 Lo UL
2005
A Matbanal
Adssis Lishilities Forward Rais Amioni*
Frecstanding derivarives:
Cureengy arwards sind swips
nuy:
Lisi» #4410 0,504 Ao 11963
CHF 5,580 = 128 1281
1y Gl elz | SN R
SELL:
Cal 14345 17,731 1.1% T
EUR - L 1.9 LLTLLE
Usp - w27 k] 136,538
Lithern .5 WLEST - B
Cross Surmency swips TR - LR 325
Foraard scll of ROE bonds - 196,016 - 108400
Inbenedd mbe rwap - 167,375 - LT TN
Embsidaded derivaties:
Curreney loiwsnds 50,299 6,720 - 93,253
Heomd options 0,325 W = 124,900
Crodit definl swaps 6l - - 3,700

w
* The natineal amsousis perisin (o the originel ourrency excepi for the *thery”, which represei the equivalen)

5% amounts of odher curmmncies.
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As discussed in Note 9, the Parent Company sold in February 1998 #10.0 billion bonds with an
agreement [o swap interest pavments based on the overage ?1-day and 364-day T-bill rates of the
auction result immediately preceding the annual repricing date for the remaining term of the
bonds. As of December 31, 2005, the fair value of the interest rate differential on the basis swap
agreement, representing the net present value of the interest differential that the Parent Company
has to pay the counterparty, amaunied to F267.4 million. The agreement expired on August 1,
M),

On March 2, 2004, the Parent Company entered inlo a cross currency swap agreement with a
counterparty bank in which the proceeds from the Notes were swapped for USD. The USD
amounts were then invested by the Parent Company in ROP and US Treasury bonds. Under the
swip agreement, the Parent Company i committed to sell USI) and buy PHP in 2000 at a
specified exchange rate, On a semi-annual basis, the Parent Company pays 5.66% on the USD leg
and receives 12.5% on the PHP leg. As of December 31, 2006 and 2003, the aggregate notional
amoumt of the cross currency swap 15 11555325 million or B3 billion while the positive fair valoe
amounted 1o PT68.4 and P278.5 million, mespectively.

I'he Parent Company enters into cerain inancial and non-financial contracts that contain
embedded derivatives which are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related 1o those of the host contract and the host contract is
not carried ol FVYPL. Such derivatives include conversion oplions in convertible debt instruments,
credil defaull swaps and foreign-currency derivatives in structured notes and deposits, call and put
options in investment securities and loans and receivables, bond-linked deposits, and forcign
currency derivatives on non-linancal coniricis such as purchase orders and service dgreements.

Among the embedded derivatives that have been hifurcated include the Fﬂllnwing:

i.  Credit derivatives in structured notes and deposits with a notional reference of
LISS120.7 million and US536.7 million with a positive fair value of’ F106.8 and
P123.6 millien as of Decernber 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

ii. Conversion option in a forcign currency denominated convertible prefermed share with a
ntional guantity of 18495 shares with a positive fair value of BT million as of December 31,
2003, The related investment in convertible preferred shares was disposed of in 2006,

ili. Foreipn currency derivative in a structured note with o notional reference of P40.0 million
with a negative Fair value of P67 million as of December 31, 2005, The related struciured
note matured in 2006,

iv. Derivative embedded in bond-linked deposits with & notional amount of US5124.9 million

with g positive fair valuee of P30.3 million as of December 31, 2003, Theze deposits matured
i1 300,

a7
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31. Earnings Per Share

‘The camings per share of the Group, attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company, are
calculated as follows:

2006 2005 2004

al  Met income astributable (0 equity holders
of the Panent Comgany (in thowsand
psns) PRI4435 P620921 P351,.017
Less meome aributable 1o convertible
preferred stocks classified ns equity
{in thowsand pesos) TIIIK 161,365 119819

by Met sncome aftribatahle o com mon
sharcholders F137.207 P460, 350 P231.098
] AVETIE of common
shares for basic eamings per shase S18.888. 165 425009, 703 ITR0AT2
dj  Effect of dilubon;
Convertible preferred shares S4,357,751 148,236,213 195,175 444

e) Adjusted weighted average namber of
common shares for diluled earmings

shaire 7 o1 ST3.245916 £73.245.916
1 Buosic camings per share (bhic) R H] .08 6|
H 0 luned e-'mr‘n por share {ala) |..1_: 108 i

32, Finuncial Performance

The following basic ratios measure the financial performance of the Group and of the Parent

Company:
I— L Parend Commpany
e 200 2004 LI 2008 2004
Retum on avermge oty L% 25 1A% T 1L11% 1 6%
Hemum on avernpe maens [ RiiY 134 01T [ L0 1% [ 0 ]

LOTnE dastn LTE% 199% 163% 25 s 4%
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33, Maturity Profile of Assets and Liabilities

The following table shows an analysis of assets and labilities of the Group and Parent Company
amalyzed according to whether they are expected to be recovened or settled within one vear and
beyond one year from statement of condition date (amounts in thousand pesos):

0 el el
] L]
Lt ghuant Dhr Lo b Oves
T=shey Miemtlis  Taghs Masils Toted  Tisphop hbomiils  Tuehs Shonrils Tawl
Flupiginl dsais
ol ] oo crsh e [ EIRE ] [ [ RIINE ] AT [ PR TR D
M Feam BEF 1 1560 TR a [ B AL ] 57119 362 > 3. TI9 30T
i Baam oile Bk LT ] = LELLE L] L e W]
lifw sz b, linats my bl JLA0ArT = LIFILT L L GRE R (RIS R L]
Seogan s 1ol oy ey oy s
reicdl [ (T 1] - 15, M0L00 12500, Hn - 12 S H
Lrceriiee sl IFVPL [SRSEL.] - LT A 1333500 - 1323501
Loviarsm: i vy = g Mol W ELNELED ] SENILAE L NE N L EERE TR Ml 4470 TILTET AR
| bt el il i s i D il
s | P ) 11 b T (LT R R] i) T4 - 20,068 ik 0,908 25
b receivu o - gross heic %) AT hinde [CNELESY - Fad R E] ® AT, 500 I8 505
Rpermah s ety SV - Tl 5 1L AT - - -
AT divunifreesia « grow Paria 1) [ESEEE el PN ARETI M Al oA 1l Je KT el TR
HRE frwsnw manns - | A%, s A%, ol - EonAd |7 826RA 1Y
— T AkvEER_ BLNLIAT  (TLRAAT TRALAN ___ TUneul e
Sl neinl Avsris
ISty i g ine=l - FL
A gl = TAniE T e NEAT?
A aprprajed value - (EEFTATC [EFELE L - 14541, Y 1450 RS
Irnimtrsersta wm sbebferies mad mn
L Lrin - L L] A - LTI = A |
| aiirsriii ieper kv - Fri = TAHE> A% HL B ST ELE DR
Ul mmauri s - pross | Poeie |50 TRATLE T. 8L 9% | Py 1R [NEER ] Ladn, ARh B 4
[TETEe ) AR STzt [N FER] 51547, 761 TR
Leer  Allasisod For g fiein. i
el s ok el - AANLAT ATRFIAATE - (2R A [l R
s i) ainl wottan duilsmnd
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Rasvet Compuny
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Motes to Statements of Cash Flows

Of the total interbank loans receivable of the Group and the Parent Company as of December 31,
2006, R3.1 billion has original mamrity of more than three months,
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15, Reclassification

Certain accounts in the 2005 and 2004 Hinancial statenients were reclassified 1o conform with the
2006 presentation which takes into sccount the fundwmental nulung and significance of the
iransactions 23 well as general financial sEement presentation giving consideration 1o BSP ¢han
of accounts as applicable under PFRS reporting.
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B Disclosure on Risk Management o

PNR, &s a financial institotion, recognizes that it is in the bosiness of taking risks; recognizing that it is vulnerable 1o
varous forms of rsks. The key risks that the Bank faces are as follows: mnnrrms:,mmrmu
OPERATIONAL RISK. However, as the global financial community becomes l'ﬂhuhm
1o various other types of risks that must be considered: Wﬂtﬂﬁ?!ﬁmm
COMPLIANCE RISK, and LEGAL RISK.

The approval of the Risk process, policies, risk appetite and infrastructure is vested in the Risk
mmmmm umﬂﬁ-mhﬁmnrhm*:uk
management. 'With the above in mind, the group has adopted the Enterprise Risk Management Framework where the
above risks are oot only monitorsd under their separate and distincl componenis, bul also monilored with the mterrelaied
components in mind.

PNB's Enterprise Risk Management Framework revolves around concrete risk management objectives as follows:

Institutionalize the Risk Management Process

Define and disseminate the bank's risk philosophy and objectives,

Develop the Risk Management infrastructure

Identify, measure, analyze, and manage risks inherent in all the bank"s activities,

Assist the risk-taking business and operating units in understanding and messuring risk/retum profiles.

Tiae sbove objoctives arm transbaied it taakes and activitios where interolated components integrated fimmowork
by wikich A1l zasfor Gaficed Sk categotios sie mrsnaged: i

»  [dentification of risk areas within PNB and its affilistes - This ensures that all the bank"s risk taking business
umits are identified, to inchude subsidiaries and affiliates

*  ldentification of risks - This revolves around the three main risks, namely: Market, Credit and Operations.
Further, the approsch extends risk monitoring 1o other risk arcas such as: Technology, Compliance, and Legal
Risks, among others. As the bank's Risk Management function matures, the framework should encompazs all
mﬁ:ﬁ?ﬁ mﬂm Thh:l:'trhfll:h adopts the ERM components
and involves four main aspects: Identification, Hmwwm

With the BSP"s introduction of new circulars and guidelines to conform to the Basel 1T Framework, it is within this
mandate that the group will undertake its future overall Risk Management approach at an inlegrated framework. No
longer will each of the originally defined risks (Credit, Market, Operational) operate under separate management approaches.
There is a need 1o consolidate these management approaches to ensure that the correlation between the three major risks
are undersiood and subsequently managed.

The succeading sections aim 1o outline the ERM approach to major risks identified.

L

Credit Risk

Effiective Credit Risk Management is a very vital component of the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM), lending activity
being the heart of banking. Hence, PNB carefully manages its credit risk at various levels (i.e. stralegic level, portiolio
level and down to individual credit or transaction level). PNB has been creating an appropriate credit risk environment
ind has adopied the standardized approach to identify, messure, monitor and control credii risk.

The actual involvement of the Board through the oversight function of the Risk Managemen! Commitiee (RMC) and
direct participation of Senior Management in managing credit are the core principles of the bank's ERM.
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PHB defines the Credit Risk Management infrastructures across the group as follows;

= Credit risk policies, systems and procedures are in place. A continuing review of such are underiaken to respond to
government legislation, competition posed by poer banks, and directives from Management/the Board based on their
perspective and thrust

*  The credit risk functional organization is rationalized wherein Risk-Taking Personnel (RTPs), risk management
functions and compliance functions (sudit and compliance office) arc independent, The objective of this sct-up is to
have & “check-and-halance™ environment 1o aftain qualifty loans without compromising the prompd delivery of service,

. ﬂnmﬂmﬂ.@uryﬁmiu.%mhﬁhmhymﬂiﬁhguhnﬂnﬂmﬂlmm. The Board
approves the limits (SBL, DOSRI, group of borrowers, industry segment, prodocts, ctc.). Actoal exposures agminst
Timits &re monitored dadly via the Central Liability System (CLS). Subsequently, these limits are annually reviewed
and/or es when the need arises,

* PNB adopts state-of-the art systems/tools and technology to support the management of credit.  Lasely, it acquired a
new core banking systemn 1o suit the size of its loan portiolio and the complexity of its various loan
products,

»  Centralized effective Management Information System {MI5) capable of captunng scourate data on credit. A well-
defined reporting system supports the Board in its policy-formulation and Management in its decision function,

+  As an initial step towards Basel compliance, PNB has increased its existing Credit Risk Rating System (CRES) firom
10 grades to 14 grades. This aims fo have an accumte risk profile of its loan portfolic and cnsure that impairment

provisions ane provided for losses.

Moving forwand, PNB will prepare for the key challenges of the Basel Il advanced approach in 2010. Initially, the
Bank has cngaged the services of a third party advisor to conduct the gap analyss and formulate the implementation
ioff a rosdmap to sddress the identified gaps.

Market Risk

With reganrd to Marker, Balance Sheet & Liquidity risks, these are managed using a fmamework of risk management policies,
annoally by the Risk Management Group (RMG) and spproved by the bank's Assets & Liabilities Committee (ALCO),
the Risk Management Commitioe (RMC) and the Board of Dircctors. The Board and Senior Management, through the
RMC, is kept abreast of market and liquidity risks arising from the activities of the risk taking units through periodic
reporting of the RMG. The following are the regular monitors:

*  Market Risk - this is dimensioned and controlled in both the trading book and in the balance shect. In the trading boclk,
market risk is controlled by a daily analysis of the Value-At-Risk (VAR) of trading instruments under normal market
conditions. The volatilitics used for this regular analyuis are those for a rolling one-year period, updated quarterly.
The rsk amounts computed ene for 99% confidence level. The VAR figares are back wsted against profit and loss of
ithe trading book to validate the robustness of the VAR model.

Below is o table showing the VAR of the parent company for the yveir ended December 31, 2006,

e e e T e e e e e s L e = e "

Risk Factor-Trading Book YEAREND | AVERAGE HIGH LOW
Interast Rate Risk 4.0 134.16 450.23 11.95
Foreign Exchange Risk 3.06 520 16.83 0.80
Total VAR 47.07 139,35 411.29 1346

Note: ® The high and low of the iotal portfolic may not equal the sum of the individual compomenis ax the high and
lowa qf the individual portfolios may have oocuirred on different trading days.
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Likewise, to complement the VAR measure, PNB performs stress tests wherein the trading portfolios are valued
under extreme market scenarios not covered by the confidence interval of the bank’s VAR model. Stress tosts
determineg the effects of potentially extreme market developments on the value of our market risk sensitive
exposures. Other limits employed include the dealer's limit and loss limits.

* [Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book - the impact of changes in interest rates are assessed over a one year
period in the banking book wsing Earnings-At-Risk (EAR), which arrays assets and liabilities sccording to their
repricing profile and tempered by approved assumptions.

Risk - this is monitored and controlled primarily via a gap analysis of maturitics of relevant assets and
HlHIjnnnﬂmudIanI:Gml.undluuuhrﬂmf asets. These measures provide an indication
of the bank's ability to generate sufficient liguidity, Purther, an liquidity ratic has been st to determine
Mﬂﬂwum“uﬂmﬂlﬁhﬂiﬂu Also, & concentration risk in funding is racked by the Large

Funders Report.

Operational Risk

Going hqmﬂmhmhpmmﬂuqﬁhlr dmmﬂhnduhmmdqwmmhmﬁmﬁh
ﬂ'pll'lhl.ll Wﬂw mmhdm'mm lﬂ’ﬁwl

fnhlﬂ,&mnﬁhphrmdmﬁmdmmumln:rpmu . Sufficient internal

mhhmwﬁmuﬂwmmmﬂhmmm

However, with the promulgation of Basel 11 and the related legislations ufhm.ﬁtbnkummhﬂdn;
scriously in the implementation of Basel Il complisnt Operational Risk controls. While the Bank opted to compute
capital charge for Operational Risk using the simple Basic Indicator Approach, management of Operational Risk at
PNB now follows a more structured and sophisticated framework such as risk identification, analysis, moaitoring
and mitigation.

Further, the bark is now adopting the following principles on best practices for Operational Risk Management
imposed by Basel I1:

*  Owersight of the Board of Directors through the Risk Management Committee (RMC)

Accountability and direct involvement of Management in managing Operational Risk
Well-defined Risk Management policics contained in the ERM Manual - Operational Risk Management Manual
Designation of & Risk Overseer in each business line and operating unit

Shared risk management responsibility across the organization from top level to the lowest staff in the organization

The Risk Management Group introduced the following tools to fully institutionalize Operational Risk Management-

*  Risk Control & Self Assessment (RCSA)
Qualitative tool focused on the present situation to identify potential Operational Risk vs. a menu of vulncrabilitics.
The owner of the RCSA is line management which knows the strengths and weaknesses of its operations,

wmmwmmmn by risk categories, by business units, by business processes
reported to the RMC, RCSA also gmnﬂmmmnhmhhm Eﬁtm

. %ﬁ:ﬂllﬂdiﬂdﬂ which “warning signals" of the f risks. As such, appropriate
ane cators which serve as L] GLcurrence o As

preventive controls can be done to aveid the occurrence of actual losses. Data collection and interview with

business lines and operating units are on-going o come up with meaningful and relevant KRIs per office.
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= Historical Data on Loss Events
The bank has staried collecting operational loss events &s an mital step toward the advanced meassrement approach
in 2010. It provides a platform for analyring the causes of logs events as basis for remedinl action, Business lines,
cvent type and causes are fully aligned to Basel 1 guidelines.

*  Business Continuity Plan (BCP)
The bank has defined a recovery site, a calling tree, and contingency plans for the continuity of buginess in case of
emergency  business disruphions. mmmmmmumwu}mamm
relevance,

= Prodoct Mamual'Opernting Manusal
and objectives in a product manual, These manuals form the “bible" by which any future actions and activities revolving
arpund the product is governed, This cnsurcs the eniform application of sk policica/procodures throughout the banlke,

Information Security and Technology Risk

Information Socurity and Tochnology Risk is the responsibility of everyone in the bank. The Board, however, performs
oversight functions in managing said rsk. At the outsst, the Board plays & major role of reviewing the impact of new
technology projects to the bank’s operations and approving it. Senior Management, on the other hand, takes care of the
day-to-day monitoring of said projects.

Internal controls and monitoring efforts established by Management o manage and address these risks ane:

*  Crestion of an independent Information Security & Technology Risk Unit under the ambrella of RMG

*  Adoption and customization of the technology risk management framework and the conduoct of information security
assessment.

*  Inventory, review or updating of all existing systems to determine ity cfficiency and applicability

= Documentation of policies and procedures on information security and technology process (e.g. Quality Assurance
Standards, Project Management Mamual, ete.)

*  Continuous fraining of existing manpower to kecp abresst with technology development and continuous screening of
qualified applicants to maintain & sufficient workforce considering the e of staff turm-over in the IT industry

* Defining and testing the Business Continuity Flan including system software back-ups 10 ensure continuity of
opcrations in the event of disruptions

= Conduct of vulnerability assessment and penetration testing to svoid unauthorized intrusion

= Monitoring/review of all outsourcing activitics

= Consistent monitoring of systems to address downtime and causes of failure

The technology-related risk management process is designed o help the bank 1o identify, measure, moaitor, and control
its risk exposure. The bank is engaged in the fiollowing activities to manage techmology related risks:

1. Flan for its ase of technalogy - When considering whether to ndopt o now technology or to upgrade cxisting
systems, the Bank assesses how it will use the technology within the context of its overall strategic goals and its
market

2. How to Implement the Technology - Proper implementution of projocts and initistives are needed io convert
plans into better products and services, delivery channels, and processes

3. Measure and monitor risk-taking activities - Management also monitors and measures the performance of
technology-related products, services, delivery channels, and processcs in order to avodd potential operational
failures and to mitigate the damage that may arise if such failures occur, Technology processes are also reviewed
peniodically for quality and compliance with control requirements.
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B Corporate Governace o

The Bank adheres 1o the principles of good governance as culled from leading best practices intemationally and on &
national level. It subscribes to the philosophy of imtegrity, accountability and transparency in its manner of doing business,
and its subsidiaries, und respoct for the laws and regulations of the countries where it conducts business. Internally, it
follows a philosophy of rational checks and balances as well a5 a structured approach to its operating processes.

To this end, the Bank has promulgated a Revised Manual on Corporate Governance and appointed a senior officer to ensure
compliance with the provisions of the Manual. The Directors, Advisors and Exscutive Officers of the Bank have taken a
course on Corpomte Governance to be able to understand and implement the principles thereof in a consistent and satisfactory
MENRET.

= Measures to fully comply with Corporste Governance

Under the Manual, compliance with the principles of good corporste govemance principally siarts with the Board of
Directors. It 15 the Board's responsibility to foster the long-term success of the corporation and secure its sustaimed
competitiveness in accordance with its fiduciary responsibility. In onder to bave a central focus for the Bank’s activitics,
the Board has appropristely established the company’s Mission and Vision Statements,

To have a structure for compliance, the Manual established and defined the responsibilities and functions of the Board
and the various Commitiees necessary for good governance, ie., the Corporate Governance Commitice, the Audit and
Compliance Committee, the Risk Mansgement Commirtée and the rolés of the External and Internal Auditors and the
Corporate Secretary. The Manual also established an evaluation system by which the Directors and the Executive Officers
can mate the Bank periodically against certain leading practices and principles on good corporate governance, Last but not
the least, the Manoal made provisions for the protection of Investors” Rights including Minority Interests.

+  Evaluation System

The evaluation system which was provided to meéasure or determine the extent of compliance with the Manual of Corporate
Governance consisis of a Self-Assessment Questionnaire which is filled up by the various functional groups indicating
the compliance rating of certain instittional unity/processcs/activities which include the Board of Diroctors, Management,
Organizational and Procedural Controls, the Nomination Process, Independent Audit Mechanisms and Disclosure and
Transparency among others. The evaluation process includes a self-assessment scorecard which is filled up by the: Members
of the Board. The above are submitted to the Compliance Officer who tssues the required certificate of compliance with

the corporate governance mechanism to the SEC, The Manual provides for & sef of graduated penalties for non-compliance
with/violation of its provisions,

= No material deviations

Because of the heightened sense of accountability among the staff and an enhanced culture of complinnce within the whole
bank, there have been no material devistions noted by the Complisnce Officer,

#=  Pluns o improve Corporate Governance

The Manual was updated on March 5, 2004, January 28, 2005, April 8, 2006 and Febroary 17, 2007. Apart from these
there are oo other plans o change the Manual for the moment.
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The Board and Management Team o——

Board of Directors
Board of Advisors
Senior Management Team
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The Board of Directors
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The Board of Directors
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The Board of Advisors
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Senior Management Team
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Senior Management Team
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Senior Management Team
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B The Bank's Congenerics o

Banking
Phillppine MNational Bank (Europe) PLG

Htmlywﬂ beidiary in the United Kingdom,
e e o R e

Foreign Exchange Trading
PNB Forex, Inc.
PNB Inc. o in the and of mencies. However, it is
mwiﬁﬂ“ was organized 1o engage buying and seling of foreign cu

Holding Company

PNE Holdings Corporation
PNB Holdings Comoration is the parant company of PNB Ganeral Insurers Co., Inc.

PNB International investmants Corporation

mnwwmﬁulmuum bl nl:ﬂ?uﬂu
Hﬂmm ﬂl‘l!'hﬁ‘k
mnru- 11 states of the United States of Amernca,

PNB RCI also owns PNB RCI Lid., established to be the holding company of PNB
?nmh % H::hmﬁnlﬂﬂhummh“m

PNB RCI Holding Company, Lid.
pany was incomporated on Algust Californaa mited liabdity company. PNB RCI
Muu-mﬂm-ﬂm? 1“% i

General Insurance
PNB General Insurers Co., Inc.
A non-life insurance company that offers fire, marine, motor car, surety, casualty, engineering and accident

Investment Banking
PNB Capital and Investment Corporation
mmw-ﬂm nﬁﬁa PNB. I‘tm
wmmi on also assiats mwmhmmmm
project finance, and transactions.

Leasing and Financing

Japan-PMB Leasing and Finance Corporation
memmu ventura betwean PNE and well-established Japanese
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Lending
PNE International Finances, Ltd.

The PNB Intemational Finance, Lid. (PNB IFL) is PNB's ld'rulv—mﬂadwbucﬁlgln Hong lﬁnuwm
in retall loans to overseas workers and main office is in L
g Kong with branches in Shatin and Yuen Long, s

Remittance
PNB Ramittance Centars, Lid.

The PNB Remitiance Center, Ltd, (PNB RCL) is PNB's wholly-owned remittance Ihtﬁ-ﬁﬂ.l]l' based in
Hong Kong. it has ning branches providing money remittance services for overseas Filiping workers in
Hong Kong. The company also services the remittance requirements of Indonesian overseas workers in
Hong Kong through a remittance be-up with Bank Mandiri,

PNB Remittance Company (Canada)
Established and incorporated on April 26, 2000 in Mova Scotia, Canada as an unlimitad liabil .
PNB RCC is authorized to engage in money transfer business in Canada. Wmmanrhm?;-mﬁ
branches and one (1) marketing office.

PNB Remittance Center, Ltd. (Hong Kong)

WMMIH1WMHWIWMHVH based in engaged in the
remittanca businass and mmmﬁmm mmmmm

mdmndt-lnng Hnwhm One branch in Causeway Bay the
indonesian market in p with Bank Mandiri-Hongkong Branch. F‘NH Iamgl.ﬂahr.lh;r

Company's Registry of Hong Kong.

PNBE Italy Spi

PNE Italy SpA s a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated In italy. Presently, its principal business is to

sefvice mWMﬂmﬁlmmhm It hes offices in Rome, Milan and

Hi
11
i
: 1
L
i
L
1
é
E

PNB Netherlands B.V.

PNB Netherlands BV. iz a MM*WWMMM&Whm
hmmmﬂnm1 Hxﬁﬂwmmm Rotterdam to service the
remittance neads of Filiping saaman.

PNB Corporation, Guam
The PNEB Corporation, Guam (PCG) s a wholly-owned subsidiary of PNB ized to engage in money
transfer business. Hs principal office ia located h'-dtmm. PCG has a branch in Saipan.
PNB Austria Financial Services GmbH

muwwmwmlmammmmmehﬂnmmm
June 8, 2006 & registered limited liabiity company in Vienna, Austria engaged in providing remittance
mumﬁmmw

PNB Global Filipino Remittance Spain, S.A.
FHEEiubalﬁprHuﬂrﬂﬂrl:&Em Ehﬂaﬂmz-mnﬂd subsidiary of PNB which started
de Espana to

on Movember 15, 2006. | was grantad a license by provide remittance senvices to
Fipinos in Spain. It has a branch in Barcalona that mmmmmmmﬁplm
SEAMBn.

Stock Brokerage
PNB Sacurities, Inc.

The PNB Securities, Inc, (PNB Si) is the wholly-owned siock brokerage subsidiary of PNB that deals in
the trading of shares of stocks Ested at the stock exchange,

117

P HI1 LT PP 1 N E M AT I © N A L BE AN K



B Products and Services o

DEPOSITS AND RELATED SERVICES
G Hmdr Savings Account
Enmm.wm:
PMB Prime Bavings Account
OFW Account
B85 Accourt
e Checldng Account
ﬂmﬂﬁmﬂ

n Currency Accounts
Accounts

U.S. Dollar Savings Account

Greencheck {Interest-bearing U.S. Dollar
; Time

BNE S MRt Azcount. e Daposiy

Dallar Wealth Multiplier Account

Euro Accournts

Euro Savings Account
Euro Time Deposit Account

mmhmuﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂmgu
a-Collpet
mmmﬂm

T
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BANCASSURANCE

Life

Insurance
PNB Pangarap Series Pangkabuhayan Package
ﬁmmmmw

FUND TRANSFER SERVICES
Muﬁtggﬁgﬁfmﬁmumdnmmnﬁﬂ
B e g 59
Integrated Remittance
F@ﬂﬂuﬁunﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁmfﬂﬂ

B el Loy - R
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TREASURY PRODUCTS AND
SERVICES

EXPORT /IMPORT SERVICES

E“m}msﬁuﬁumﬁﬁ-nh
Confirmation of Lathies of Crodit
Megotiation

s under Latters of Credit, Documents
Paymant (DF} and Docunants agains!

Acceptance (DA)
aof rig undar and
Payrmsnt m Prepayment and Open

Import Sarvices
IH{.IFI-F'“M negotiation of Lothors of Cradii
Issuance of Sh Bonds
Trust ng
Saorvicing of | undor DADA and DP
AITRNGEM

Servicing of Colaction of Final Customs Duties

Advance Payment Bonds
Bonds
Performance Bonds
Ohar Bonds
Issuance of Standby Letters of Credit under PNBE's

Issuance and Senvicing of Defermed Lotters
Cradit s of paymant for :
Importation or Local Purchase of Capital

Goods
Services Rendened (8.g., Constrection
Projects, etc.)

LENDING SERVICES
Commerclal and Industrial Loans
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Local Guarantes Facilities

PhlEXIM Guaraniasa Trust Services
- Corporate
Loans to Local Govarmment Investmeant Portfolio Managament
'L Facll Lmu"hmml'” Hﬂtmnt:uw -
I M “'ﬁ'&' il Trus! Indenture
% Hicld Out Global Custodial Services
LGU Custodianship Services for Local Corporalions
LEL Band Flotatisn (theu Capital and
—— A0 oo
Loans to Government-Ownad and Controllad Bond Registrar
Corporations/MNational Governmeant Agencies F Agency
Term Loans Stock
Linos Recoiving Bank
F Facllities
I Latters of Gredit/Trust Lina
mport i Receipts
Trada Finance
Export Credit Agency Lines
Sura Fund
Sure v Veljcle Loan)
Sure Home Loan)
Sure Homa
Confract 1o Sell Financlng
Crhwm a Phiippine Home
Loans Foid Out
e oo va. Paso/i Depsits
Credit Card Services
PHB VISA Card

ASTRA Secured Kred|t (ASK) Card

TRUST PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Unit Investment Trust Funds (UITF)
o Plus UITF

PIEWH‘“UITF

Pi'ﬂﬂuh' g
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PNB Fnancial Centar

Pres, Diosdado Macapagal Boulevard
Pasay City 1300

Metro Manila, Philippines

P.O Box 1844 (Mania)

[ =4 =1 P.O Box 410 (Pasay)

Cable : PHILMABANK

Telex  : 63282, 62911

We manage risks, Tel. Nos : 891-8040 1o 70,
wa provida opporiunities. 526-3131 to 02
Mamber of Philippine Deposite Insurance Corporation.
woepabcom.gh V MecnL inx 7 |
e P Maximum deposil insurance for each depositor P250,000



